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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  Let’s go ahead and begin the hearing.  I do want to call to order the informational hearing on the Senate Governmental Organization Committee.  We are talking about the Tribal-State Compact between the State of California and the Agua Caliente Band of Indians.  Good afternoon.  I’m Senator Dean Florez, chair of the committee.  I want to thank members of my committee for being here.  And I do know members will be coming in and out of the hearing room itself.

If you have seen the agenda, you know that I’m going to give an opening statement.  I’ll ask Members to give any statements they’d like.  And then, we’re going to have Mr. Milanovich give some testimony; Mr. Brokaw; and Bernie Simons.  And then, we’ll go ahead and start the hearing.


Obviously, you know that the hearing is going to examine the terms and conditions of the amendment to the Tribal-State Compact between the State of California and Agua Caliente.  It’s my belief that each Tribal-State Compact for gaming should be examined separately and placed in individual pieces of legislation for ratification by the Legislature, and, obviously, that each completed compact should be approved on its own individual merits.  I want to thank the Tribe and the members and 
Ms. Garcia, for respecting that.


Today we’re going to talk about the terms and conditions of the amendment of the compact including, local mitigations, payment to the State in place of payments to the Indian Gaming Special Distribution Fund, the increase of the number of slot machines, and the construction of a third casino.

As you can see, we have a busy afternoon ahead of us according to the agenda.  I do appreciate witnesses being brief, particularly.  And I’m going to ask my colleagues at this point if they have any opening statements.


Yes, Senator Battin.


SENATOR JIM BATTIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I am happy to be here today, and I am very happy to see that the Governor and my constituents, the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians….I cannot say it as fast as Richard can, but than no one can….have reached a compact.  I understand we are actually setting, I guess, Senate policy here.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Because we’ve done it both ways, but we’ve just….the Rules Committee, which I vice-chair, has given the waivers necessary for the bill to be heard on the Floor, actually, I think, even to be voted on here.  However, this House has had informational hearings and then just moved to the Floor, which is what I think we’re doing, correct, Mr. Chair?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I believe what we’re going to do is, we’re going to have an informational hearing on this compact, and the 
GO Committee will meet to vote on pushing this compact out to the Floor.  That can happen very soon, so let’s have an exhaustive hearing.  It will not be today, but then we will allow the Senate Floor to vote on it.  That is the procedure that we will be following.


SENATOR BATTIN:  That notwithstanding, I am happy to be a joint author with Assemblywoman Garcia on the ratification of the compacts.  I have been involved in this issue for a very long time.  I’m proud to say, I was the one that carried the ratification of the first Agua Caliente Compact in 1999 with Assembly Bill 1395.  And we have seen in Palm Springs and throughout the entire Coachella Valley and the Desert, the success that comes with smart, well-managed, tribal gaming, where we have thousands of jobs now, millions of dollars into our economy.  
It’s not a mistake to me that the desert is growing as fast as it is because we have improved our destination resort mystique where people now are not just coming to play golf, and swim, and play tennis, but they’re also coming to go to the casinos and go to the products that Agua, as well as Cabazon and Twenty-Nine Palms and Augustine and Morongo, have built in the desert.  And it’s just a….when it works, it works great, and we have seen it with the great stewards that the Aguas have been.  On top of that, they have also been very good community neighbors.  


You know, one of the most exciting things each year is just this big giveaway.  Agua Caliente does over a million dollars.  They give back to the community.  It’s not any requirement of any compact.  They just do it because they want to.  They give it to nonprofit organizations; they give it to the cities.  They’re buying fire trucks, and they’re buying tennis shoes for kids that don’t have shoes—they buy them.  And they help the Piranha Swim Club.  And they do over a million a year.  They’ve been doing it for many, many years, and it’s very nice to see.  And that it’s just something that they’ve done, and that is the result of the gaming revenues that they’ve got.  And they’ve given back to their community, as well as, I believe, I think you were the Agua’s largest employer in the desert, if not….


UNIDENTIFIED:  Yes.


SENATOR BATTIN:  And so, I mean, it’s been very good.  


So having said that, I look forward to hearing the details of it, and listening to Assemblywoman Garcia, and hearing her thoughts so far.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you very much.  Okay, how would you like to proceed, Ms. Garcia?


ASSEMBLYMEMBER BONNIE GARCIA:  Well, he pretty much said everything I was going to so I’ll make it brief.


I will make some brief comments and then allow the Tribal Chairman and members of the negotiating team to talk specifically about the compact.


Mr. Chairman and Members, it’s my honor to have the opportunity to present this compact today, which is an amended version of the 1999 Compact already in place with the State of California.  It’s joint authored with Senator Battin, who I’ve had the pleasure of working with as a staffer, and I have worked closely with the local governments in our community prior to coming to the Assembly, so I am well versed in the great relationship we have with our local community—and some representatives are here today to testify.  This compact also has close to 25 members as co-authors and additional members are adding on, and those will be put across the desk as amendments in the Appropriations Committee.  


This bill, or this amended bill, is related to tribal gaming to ratify an amendment to the Tribal-State Gaming Compact signed August 8th, between the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians and the State of California.  The new compact is unique in that it takes into consideration the unique circumstances of the Tribe and codifies practices that the Tribe already has in place to comply with state and local practices.  It also enables the Tribe to continue to expand its economic development practices in the Coachella Valley while providing significant revenue to the State of California.  Specifically, this compact increases revenue to the State General Fund from $11.9 million to $23.4 million per year or approximately 10 percent of the net win.  Over the life of the compact for the year 2030, that is going to amount to more than $1.8 billion.  It also provides for strong environmental provisions; addresses mitigation of off-reservation impacts; provides additional protections for patrons and employees; and sets forth JAMS-style arbitration.  It does have workers’ compensation protection.  And I will let the members here today, in honor of the brevity of this hearing, to tell you specifically some of the key points.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Mr. Chair, I do have lots of questions about this compact, so I’m not sure if you would like to do an opening, but I would like to get to each amendment (I-XIII), and I do have specific questions on it.  So, settle in, Ms. Garcia, this might be a little longer than most of our hearings, but I do want to make sure we get these on the record.


Mr. Brokaw, you had a comment.


BARRY BROKAW:  Mr. Chairman and Members, Barry Brokaw on behalf of the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians.  I just wanted to introduce our team and let you know the experts we have available to field your questions.  Obviously, the chairman is here, Chairman Richard Milanovich.  We also have the Tribe’s special counsel and our chief negotiator with the Administration, Bernie Simons, who is available to answer specific questions.  We have our Tribe’s chief planning and development officer, Tom Davis, who was instrumental in the drafting negotiation of all the environmental and the local government ordinance issues.  And we have other experts available as they may be required.

We have a short statement by the Chairman to give you an overview of the compact, and AB 2399, which would be the ratification vehicle.  And we look forward to making that presentation.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  

RICHARD MILANOVICH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee.  I’m not always accustomed to reading stuff but I think in this instance I better read it, otherwise, I’ll get carried away here.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Not only that, but we have a running transcript of this so we want to make sure you get it right.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Mr. Chairman and Members, my name is Richard Milanovich.  I do have the pleasure of serving as the chairman for the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians.  I have been chairman of our 420 member Tribe since 1984.  We don’t have term limits.  The Cahuilla Indians have lived in the Coachella Valley for many centuries dating back before any European explorers or settlers entered California.  Our Tribe discovered the hidden medicinal wonders of the area that has come to be known as Palm Springs.  We have treasured the healing hot springs, “agua caliente”, for which our Tribe is named.

The Agua Caliente Indian Reservation was officially established by the U.S. government.  In 1876, to induce rail development in the West in the early 1860’s, the federal government awarded odd-numbered square mile sections of land to the Southern Pacific Railroad.  Even numbered sections, totaling 32,000 acres, were reserved for the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians.  That accounts for the checkerboard pattern of our reservation, which includes a small portion of the city of Rancho Mirage, along with the city of Palm Springs, Cathedral City, and unincorporated Riverside County.

By the 1930’s, Hollywood had discovered the wonders of the water, and Palm Springs and the surrounding desert communities began to take on the face it has today.  The Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians is a major part of that face, and we have become an economic engine and a spiritual, cultural, and philanthropic force in the community.  We are building a cultural museum in Palm Springs that is affiliated with the Smithsonian Institute.  We have contributed over 
$18 million to local charities and community programs over the past decade.  We have entered into voluntary agreements with our cities and the county to deal with the local growth issues.  We are good neighbors, and that extends to our gaming interests.

In the year 2000, 67 percent of the California electorate and the State Legislature approved the 1999 Gaming Compact between over 
60 California tribal governments and the State of California.  Those compacts have worked well for the State, the local communities, the local counties, and the local tribes and their members.

As the direct result of our compact, the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians has developed, constructed, and now operates, two casinos—one in the city of Palm Springs (the Spa Resort Casino), one in unincorporated land near Rancho Mirage (the Agua Caliente Casino), and a hotel, which together employ over 2,400 residents of Riverside County.
There are approximately 1,000 slot machines in each of our casinos.  Our casinos and hotel have been an economic stimulus to the County of Riverside and the local communities.  We are in the process of building a hotel adjacent to the Agua Caliente Casino and when that project is concluded, we will take down the Spa Hotel and build a new hotel in its place as part of the revitalization of our reservation and the City of Palm Springs.
We pride ourselves in the close working relationship we have with local governments.  The revenue sharing provisions of the 1999 Compact have resulted in our Tribe contributing more than $30 million to non-gaming tribes and to the local cities and Riverside County for local mitigation.  This has occurred through the voluntary government to government consultations and meetings.  Our plan is to continue the funding levels for local governments to this new compact amendment.

In this new compact amendment, we are authorized to have 2,000 slot machines in each of our two casinos and have the options of opening a third casino on existing tribal lands.  We currently have no plans at this time to build a third casino.  If we choose to do so down the road, we would do so only with the support of the local community.

The State is guaranteed to receive $23.4 million a year for the duration of the compact, totaling over $560 million for our current number of slot machines.  For anything above the 2,000 machines, the State will receive 15 percent of net win.  We currently pay $11.9 million to the Special Distribution Fund.  As the Administration proposed, we will cease making those payments to that fund.

We have agreed to pay $2 million annually to that Revenue Sharing Trust Fund for non-gaming tribes.  We currently pay $550,000 annually.

We have a strong environmental cooperation record.  And in accordance with the compact, we will prepare a Tribal EIR and negotiate intergovernmental agreements for new projects with the county of Riverside and any impacted city to address off-reservation impacts.  Should there be an impasse, we have agreed to a JAMS-style arbitration process.
We have established and will keep under this compact strong patron protection practices including, workmen’s’ compensation coverage equal to that required under California law, and patron dispute processes with binding arbitration provisions.
We will also continue to honor the rights of our employees.  Unions have a right to organize under the labor provisions of our 1999 Compact.  The language in the compact was drafted by former Senate President pro Tem John Burton.  Under the compact, workers continue to have the options of organizing under Senator Burton’s Tribal Labor Relations Ordinance (TLRO).  The TLRO maintains a guarantee for freedom of speech and secret balloting for workers who may chose to unionize with a simple majority vote.  The truth is, our employees have not yet expressed an interest in unionizing.  If they want to unionize, they have the right to a secret ballot election to express their views.  
Unions are unlikely to match the comprehensive benefits in place for our employees.  The Tribe already includes procedures for resolving employee complaints before a TLRO panel.  This has been very effective.  The TLRO panel has decided two disputes and in both cases, the decisions were in favor of the employees.

Let me speak specifically about our treatment of employees:  Our hourly workers are paid an average of $11.45 per hour, not including tips.  With tips, the average pay runs $16.40.  We pay over $85 million in wages and benefits annually.  Direct benefits paid on behalf of our employees total $4.02 per hour per employee.  Health insurance payments total $3.73 of that total per hour.

We offer medical, dental, and vision care, tuition reimbursement, life insurance, 11 paid holidays annually, 2 - 3 weeks of vacation, sick time leave, long-term disability, bereavement pay, workmen’s compensation, jury witness duty pay, military leave of absence pay, a 401K plan, and many more voluntary products.  It is the most extensive, comprehensive benefits package of any large employer in the Coachella Valley.  We pay $15 million for health insurance, currently covering 
87 percent of the healthcare costs for our team members.  This gives them a comprehensive PPO coverage with $10 co-pay for doctor’s visits and 90 - 100 percent coverage for minor and major medical treatment.  Team members with children pay $32.50 a week for an unlimited number of qualified dependent children.

Mr. Chairman and Members, I think I have touched upon all the key issues related to this compact.  I would be pleased to answer any questions at this time.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Mr. Milanovich.  And I do have questions, and I assume you brought folks as well to help answer some of those if you can’t.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Definitely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  First, let me just start off, generally you’ve answered some of the, if you will, general information questions on the Tribe.  One thing you didn’t mention, or maybe I didn’t catch, the land use contract with the City of Palm Springs—how does that interact with Indian trust lands?

MR. MILANOVICH:  Prior to 1977, the cities, counties, state, had jurisdiction over tribal lands—be it allotted or tribally held land.  It was in 1977 that the Federal Supreme Court ruled on a case brought by the California Administration to overturn a decision of the Ninth Circuit that ruled that the Santa Rosa Tribe Rancheria, above Sacramento, had jurisdiction over their own lands.  The Federal Supreme Court refused to hear the opinion and that more or less led the way to tribal jurisdiction over their own tribal lands in 1977.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that a different type of relationship than most tribes in terms of….

MR. MILANOVICH:  I believe that we’re the only tribe with such a relationship, yes.  We entered into a compact with the city of Palm Springs 30 days after the order was issued by the Under Secretary Joseph saying that tribes had jurisdiction over the land.  The city council at the time stated that they are placing a moratorium on development of trust lands within their city limits.  Within 30 days we had this land use contract which the city agreed to process the development plans, keep the money for the planning process.  We would save the appeal authority over any decision of the city council.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Anything you want to add, Tom?
TOM DAVIS:  Tom Davis.  I’m the chief planning development officer for the Tribe.  Mr. Chairman, I just want to add that the Chairman mentioned that his checkerboard reservation, we have four land use agreements with four different jurisdictions—Palm Springs, Cathedral City, Rancho Mirage, and Riverside County; the same basic functions.  The local jurisdiction on a lot of trust land, not tribal trust land, but a lot of trust land, basically it forces the local land use jurisdictions on that land as an agent for the Tribe.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  In terms of the Amended Compact, this is a 2030—correct?  
MR. MILANOVICH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ: Under the ’99 Compacts, when would the ’99 Compacts have run out?  In other words, when would the clock stop under your current compact?

MR. MILANOVICH:  Including the 18 months of discussion, 2022.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So this is an 8-year extension?

MR. MILANOVICH:  More or less, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the 2030 number, is that sufficient or would you have wanted a longer contract?  

MR. MILANOVICH:  We would have preferred it an indefinite period of time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Who came up with the 2030 number?

MR. MILANOVICH:  The Governor and the administrators.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So in other words you would have gone to….

MR. MILANOVICH:  Indefinitely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So given that requirement….we’re going to ask the Governor’s office quite a few questions….but in terms of the 2030 number, are you going to be successful with that number?  I mean, ultimately, at the end of the day, there’s a partnership that we’re starting here with you.  I mean, we’re depending on revenue, so is that number enough to, in essence, ramp up?  I mean, I’ve heard a lot of numbers.  You know, Ms. Garcia mentioned it.  I’ve read numerous press reports of billions of dollars coming into the State.  But is that all added up, that $20 billion mean in 2030, or would it have been $5 billion in 2070?  I mean, ultimately, is that number….you have a ramp up plan, I assume, and that number ends at some point in time.
MR. MILANOVICH:  Mr. Chairman, like I said, we would have preferred having an unlimited term on the first compact.  That’s what we argued with Governor Davis as well, but they felt it was necessary not to interfere with any future administrations.  That they would prefer to keep maintaining it close to the time that it would be expired anyway.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So here 2030 means Mr. Schwarzenegger’s kids might be governor one day and would then get a chance to hear this again, correct?

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA: It also means another member would be here taking heat in 2030.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  In 2030.  Okay.  Let’s go through the amendments, if we could.  The Authorized Facility.  We’re going to go through these I - XIII in this sequential order because I think this is the best way to go through them.  

The 1999 Compact allowed for two casinos to be built.  You mentioned that you have two in operation currently.
MR. MILANOVICH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And are you the only tribe in this state that has two casinos operating at this time?

MR. MILANOVICH:  I believe we are, although I believe one of our neighboring tribal governments has a smaller facility operating next to their main facility.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you mentioned the third casino, and I think this is the nuance in the compact.  Just a threshold question, will that third casino be built on your current land in trust?  As you envision it, is that something that will be built on land in trust?  As you know, it’s been a big issue with some of us on the committee that things being built on land in trust, and the third casino from your vantage point…

MR. MILANOVICH:  It will be placed on our reservation, yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you don’t have any plans to purchase new lands?

MR. MILANOVICH:  Well, we do, sure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But land in trust?

MR. MILANOVICH:  Right.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are they contiguous?

MR. MILANOVICH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  

MR. MILANOVICH:  It falls within the guidelines of IGRA, definitely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That was my next question.  Thank you.  And in terms of the overall Amended Compact, a provision which requires the Tribe to demonstrate local community support, I think you’ve mentioned that, before that third casino was built, is that correct?

MR. MILANOVICH:  Again, we went back and forth with the Governor’s negotiators on this point, because this is something that we have done all along since 1959 when we first began the process of working together with the city.  It was our first tribal council, all woman tribal council, which went back to Washington and lobbied Congress and got it extended—got the long-term leasing.  Since that point on, we have worked together closely with the local communities.  We do this anyway.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But this compact is a bit different I think because it says that local support, kind of the Governor’s test, and we saw this through some of the other compacts, that the city or county have a resolution.  That’s one way to meet local support.  There would be a public advisory vote is another way.  And the third is a telephone poll.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so your thoughts on how you might achieve that if you, indeed, are going to be heading towards a third….let me preface to you by saying that I really would discourage you from doing a telephone poll because I don’t necessarily think….the Governor might think that’s a good way to gauge public opinion, but if you don’t have a phone, if you don’t speak the English language, if you are in certain areas where telephone polls aren’t necessarily reflective, I think Senator Romero and I went through that over and over and over again on earlier compacts.  Given that you have a resolution or a public advisory vote, do you have any thought on how you would achieve….
MR. MILANOVICH:  It’s one of the four.  We don’t have to do all four.  We can do one of the four.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, one of the four, which one are you looking at?

MR. MILANOVICH:  Mr. Simons?

BERNIE SIMONS:  The Tribe’s history, through Tom Davis, they would attempt first to negotiate with either an applicable city or the County of Riverside.  If they felt that for some reason, some political reason, some election year issue, or other reason, they would have the two other options to go on.  The guidelines for a truly scientific poll are in the exhibit attached to the amendment, to the compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So the guidelines for what?

MR. SIMONS:  For the telephonic survey.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And those would be the same types of guidelines that members of this committee thought were somewhat lacking in terms of telephone polls, whether it was a tribe in Senator Romero’s hometown, or this one.  And so again, the question is, it sounds as though you’re heading in the direction of using a telephone poll?

MR. SIMONS:  No.  We’re heading in the direction of having 
Mr. Davis work with the local city, and/or county, or both.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Oh, the resolution.

MR. SIMONS:  Correct.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Just a little local history, although it’s not part of the compact or required by them.  The Agua Calientes have a long history of working with the cities in a non-gaming related issue of last year, or two years ago, dealing with just in entertainment zoning, again, not dealing with the casino, not talking about anything to do with gaming.  They ultimately had a vote of the people, which didn’t even bind them.  It would not have stopped them from doing anything that they wanted to do, and the citizens of Palm Springs supported it.  But they went to the voters.  They talked to the community.  I mean, they have a long history of making sure that they don’t just brashly go ahead and do whatever they want.  They are true partners with the community.  So they have a history of doing this.  I don’t believe that there will be any problem whatsoever gauging the local support or getting that local support.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The reason we asked, obviously, is your revenue success is apparently with the Governor, and the Administration that negotiated it as being successful for the State.  So we want to know if you’re going to be successful, what you’re basing that success on—2,000 slots, 2,000 slots, and then an additional 1,000, if that isn’t approved, or if there isn’t a mechanism that would gain you that, if you will, public support, then this is all for not, correct?  I mean, this whole discussion is….the revenues won’t be achieved.
MR. SIMONS:  Not correct, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re just going to give us the money even though you don’t build the casino?  Because that would make me think it’s incorrect.  So tell me how we make up for the 1,000 slots then if you’re not successful.

MR. SIMONS:  The 1,000 slots, you’re correct.  That’s the third casino.  The 4,000 slots is where I believe you’re not correct in that….

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re going to get to that in a minute.  

MR. SIMONS:  But that’s separate.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s what I’m talking about.  I’m talking about the ability for the additional casino, that is different in this compact, to be built there’s a requirement.  And I’ve got to tell you right now, I don’t know the process for amending these compacts, I don’t know how the Governor put through this whole….if your compact has a telephone poll, I would highly discourage the Governor for basing public policy on telephone polls.  I mean, I’m not sure, at the end of the day, what it achieves.  I’m not sure what any public policy vote on here is based on telephone polls.  So, I know that the Governor may have suggested that.  That’s my question for the Administration.  But I would hope that we would not head in this particular direction.  And I know Senator Romero and myself have a lot of questions for telephone-based public policy, and I’m not sure you want to go there.  But remember, we’re going to be approving your compact, and once that’s out, that, in essence, gives you, if you will, a reason to utilize that, and a lot of us may not be here.

MR. MILANOVICH:  I will be, sir.  No term limits.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  But let me ask a question just on that point—since at least I feel very, very strongly about this.  And I’m not speaking for Senator Romero, but I do know we’ve had quite a bit of discussion on this.  What is the process, if, indeed, we didn’t feel that good about this part of the compact being in….by setting a precedent, would you have to go back to the Governor?  Is this an amendment process?  How would the amendment process work?  Would it go in Ms. Garcia’s bill?  Do we simply mark it out?  How do you view that process in terms of that telephone poll?
MR. SIMONS:  The Governor is the authorized negotiator of the compact.  Therefore, if the compact were not ratified for any reason, we’d have to renegotiate with the Governor and his staff.  Your crossing it out would not allow the compact to be affected because the compact is based upon all the terms set forth therein.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So in other words, if we don’t like the telephone poll, then the clock is going to start all over for you folks in terms of going to the Governor’s office and coming back to this committee?

MR. SIMONS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are you prepared for that?

MR. SIMONS:  Are we prepared for it?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

MR. SIMONS:  The Chairman is prepared for anything.  Would we like that?  No.  Does that impact the State of California as well as the Tribe?  Yes. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It would impact us because we’re getting money this year?

MR. SIMONS:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How much money are we getting this year?

MR. SIMONS:  This year you’ll get no money because it won’t become effective until 2007, is my understanding.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.

MR. SIMONS:  In 2007….
SENATOR FLOREZ:  But it doesn’t affect us this year.

MR. SIMONS:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, then if we ask the Governor to make a change, what’s the effect this year?

MR. SIMONS:  This year there would be no effect, except the Tribe, then, would not go forward with certain of its plans until it knew it had a ratified compact.

SENATOR FRAN SOTO:  May I ask a question?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Senator Soto.

SENATOR SOTO:  If we’ve waited this long, and I’ll be very blunt, but how come we’re doing it now?  And we have to make the decision today?  Do we have to vote on this today?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The bill is not up today, Senator Soto.  But do we have to make a decision before the Legislature adjourns—is that your question?

SENATOR SOTO:  No.  Do we have to make a decision today?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, we do not.

SENATOR SOTO:  We do not?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We do not.

SENATOR SOTO:  Mr. Chairman, maybe we’d have a little bit more of a chance to review it and talk a little bit more to the Tribe about it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Exactly.

SENATOR SOTO:  And maybe during the break, when we have a little bit more time, we have another hearing.  It’s just a suggestion.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, and I think that was the question.  Senator Soto, you’re suggesting that we not approve the compact this session and have discussions over the break?  That’s a question to you folks not to me.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Well, Mr. Chairman, if I may address some of the issues before we move on that issue.  First of all, I think that this is the only compact that actually provided some options to have some local input from the community, so while it’s an option that’s been offered as part of the compact, it’s not the only option.  And as already demonstrated by Agua Caliente, they already include the local input in the decision making process.  It’s an option that was included as part of the compact, which again, does not exist in any of the compacts, but it’s not the intent of the Tribe to use that method.
The second thing is, there was a question as to the revenue that this would generate, it would generate guaranteed to the State of California.  We did nothing more than just operate from the current numbers that we have today—generate $23.4 million to the State of California.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  This year?

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  2007, when it actually goes into place.  If they added no more machines, it would generate over 
$560 million to the State of California.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We get the out year calculation.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  And the third issue in terms of the local input, the compact also provides for no more than two casinos in any one city or jurisdiction.  So, currently there is one already in Rancho Mirage and one in Palm Springs.  The only other city that’s there today is Cathedral City and the unincorporated area of Riverside County, of which one of those areas might become a city eventually.  And the path between Rancho Mirage and Palm Springs is connected through Cathedral City.  So, in terms of, is there one on the back burner to start?  Not yet.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s an issue of precedent.  You’re the first compact to go through this committee.  And I’m not speaking for the members, but maybe the Governor’s office is listening.  I know there are a few members here.  But I would just advise the Governor’s office not to send us anymore compacts with telephone polls that are based on public policy, because we’re going to go through this discussion.  And unfortunately you’re the first compact up, and I’m not sure what the process is for negotiation.  We don’t want to negotiate.  We’re ratifying saying yes or no, but this is on somebody’s computer.  I’m just wondering what it takes to put a couple of strikeout lines and make sure that your bill reflects that so that we are basing it on city and county resolutions, public advisory votes, whatever.  And the Chairman is very clear that you’re not going to be utilizing this.  But I think it sets a horrible precedent, quite frankly, to have telephone polls for compacts as a measure of support in communities.  That’s just my view, and I’m not going to say that’s the whole view of the whole committee.

And I guess what’s interesting also, the ’99 Compact made no mention of any local support at all to build those facilities.  And so in fairness, you’ve gone an extra step in this because the ’99 Compacts were devoid of local support.  You’ve now gone and agreed to four tests, and so, those are good.  I mean, those are positives.  But, maybe this isn’t big enough for us to do that.  But for compacts that are pending, and things that will be coming through this, let me just simply say, I hope the Governor’s office is listening, that we’re appreciative of 
Mr. Milanovich saying that we probably wouldn’t go there.  And I would just say, maybe it’s not a big hitch.  But maybe if the Governor’s office is listening, maybe that isn’t something that we should have 15 minutes of discussion on.  We should go forward and move forward.
ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Thank you.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Mr. Chairman?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Again, may I reiterate:  I don’t think it is a big issue, because I don’t see us going in that direction at all.  We work very closely with our local communities, and we intend to do so.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And we appreciate that, Mr. Milanovich.

SENATOR JEFF DENHAM:  Mr. Chair, if I could as a quick question.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Is there a concern that this compact is moving forward too quickly?  Is that what I’m gathering?  That this compact is moving forward too quickly, is that what is being brought up by Members?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Soto asked the question whether or not we shouldn’t have discussions on this over the break, if I can paraphrase it correctly.

SENATOR SOTO:  (Inaudible—off mic)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.

SENATOR SOTO:  (Inaudible—off mic)

SENATOR DENHAM:  I’m very relaxed.  I guess I have, after four years now, got somewhat used to the August process here where the majority party jams a lot of bills through and gutting amends at the very last minute that we read in very short time.  Here we’ve got a compact that we don’t change; that we’re going to vote up or down; that the Governor has negotiated.  So, we’ve got two weeks, which I wish I had two weeks on every bill that is going to come through in August.  From my standpoint, I’ve got plenty of time to read it over and over and over again.

SENATOR BATTIN:  I have to concur with Senator Denham, that the Governor is the sole authority to negotiate the compact.  The Legislature has the authority to ratify the compact, but we don’t get to change it.  If you want to vote it down based on a telephone poll, which I think that would be very specious to do, that would be our only remedy.  You can’t say okay, we’re going to pass this compact with this amendment on there.  

Knowing the history of Agua Caliente, having represented them for 12 years, and living in the desert for 20 plus years, I mean, when Chairman Milanovich says that this is not….Okay, this is in there but we don’t really foresee us using this, because that’s not what they do.  As I said a few minutes ago, on a planning to plan an entertainment zone on some of their land that they have, which is nothing to do with gaming whatsoever, and it was a non-binding vote.  I mean, the city could say one thing and it couldn’t affect them, because it’s their sovereign land.  They still took it to the voters, because they want that community partnership.  So I would expect what would happen was which ever city that they so chose to build a third facility, if they wanted to do that they would come back with overwhelming approval from the city council.  I mean, I know the relationships.  I just know what’s going to happen.
In the future, if you want to talk to the Administration about not having that….and I was in this conversation when we were talking about the compact in Barstow about their situation, and I agree.  That’s for the future, and I would strongly recommend that.  But I would really resist slowing this down or holding this compact up based on that, because that’s just not what they’re going to do.  They’re going to go to the cities like they have always done.  They’re going and getting the support.  And you’re going to find, and I’m sure if we have testimony from….I believe we might have testimony from some of the local cities.  They’re going to come here and tell you they’re proud to have them and they want them, and this is a great day.  So I would be real hesitant.  I would resist completely.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Battin, let me be clear.  I was using the example of….and I’m glad now….and I hope the Governor’s office is listening….we have bipartisan support now….to say, don’t send us anymore compacts with telephone polls in it, if I could read Mr. Battin right.  But this particular compact is before us and I’m simply asking a question as an example—if we were to amend what is the process….the process is very clear to me….that we would start the clock over.  And I agree with you.  I think this a minor issue as we start to look at all of the amendments to do that.  
But unfortunately, you’re the first compact up and had you been the next compact next week, I am sure this section would not be in it, in terms of telephone polls.  And I agree with Senator Battin.  I think that’s why we do things on the record.  We have a running record of this.  Future legislators can go back to it; look at it; examine it; know what statements were made; and that’s fine for me—absolutely fine.  I just wanted to ask the question.

Let me ask just a couple more before we go onto Section II, and that would be the revenue contributions.

In terms of the plan on building the third casino, is that out in the future, near future?  You know, we’re looking at revenues and we’re making projections.  And what can you tell me in terms of your thought process on that third casino?  It doesn’t have to mean a year, but I mean is it imminent?  

MR. MILANOVICH:  It’s probably a minimum of seven years.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Let’s go on to Section II, which is the Revenue Contributions.

SENATOR SOTO:  Senator Florez?
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Soto.

SENATOR SOTO:  I missed a little bit about the unions.  Is there something in the compact that the unions do have a right to organize there if they want to?  Or, was it deliberately left out so they….

MR. MILANOVICH:  Yes.  It’s in our present compact, the 
1999 Compact under the TLRO, yes.

SENATOR SOTO:  They have a right to organize?

MR. MILANOVICH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And we are going to get to the labor questions Senator Soto, absolutely, as we get down through the sections.

SENATOR GLORIA ROMERO:  Mr. Chairman?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

SENATOR ROMERO:  Is there a main document that I’m hearing about what’s in the compact; what’s not.  Is there something that the Members….I see this, the first amendment to the Tribe?  Is this what we’re working from?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

SENATOR ROMERO:  Okay.  In terms of the line of questioning, is…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We all have the same documents, Senator Romero.  I only have some questions that my staff had worked on for going through the compacts specifically.  

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Mr. Chairman, before you move onto the revenue question, addressing the third site…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  The current two sites that are in place have 1,000 machines each, so they can increase their machines to 2,000 at each site.  So when we’re looking at revenue, you don’t need to build another site in order to see the increase of revenue to the State of California.  You can see that revenue increase today if they have the marketing and the ability to increase those two existing sites to 2,000 slot machines at the existing sites.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you’re saying that nothing in your opening statement, as you added up those numbers, included the third site?

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  I’m saying, the question that I continued to hear was, when do we plan to open the third site?  And the Chairman has been clear—it’s been seven years down the road, if any, is in the future.  But based on the two sites today, we can, in essence, double the revenue to the State of California because we will have the ability to add more machines to existing sites.

MR. SIMONS:  And we intend to do that as soon as we can.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Got you.  Okay.  Fair enough.  Let’s move onto Section II.  And Members, we are going through the compact via sections in order for us to not jump around.

Section II deals with revenue contribution.  And under the Amended Compact, the Tribe, as you mentioned, is entitled to the original 2,000 slot machines.  That’s under the ’99 Compacts.  Plus, an additional 3,000 machines for a total of 5,000, is that correct?

MR. SIMONS:  That’s correct.  But the 5,000 cannot be used except as provided that 2,000 per existing facility and 1,000 for a third.  We can’t take the 1,000 for the third and make it 3,000 for one of the existing facilities.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How many slots do you currently have at your two sites then, given your…

MR. MILANOVICH:  Two thousand total.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Two thousand total.  And in terms of the additional slots then, 2,000 total at the Palm Springs facility, no more than 2,000 for the Rancho Mirage, is that what it is?

MR. MILANOVICH:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And a 1,000 for the third to be built.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you can’t put all 5,000 in one facility, and that was very clear in the compact from your vantage point?

MR. SIMONS:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And there, then, necessitates there’s a cap—correct?

MR. SIMONS:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And who wanted the cap?  You wanted it or the Administration wanted it?

MR. SIMONS:  We would have preferred market driven.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, market driven.  And the cap is advantageous to the Tribe?

MR. SIMONS:  I don’t know if it’s advantageous.  It’s something that we accepted.  When it came right down to it, do we wish to have this compact or not, and that was one of the conditions of approval.  That there was this artificial limit being set so we accepted it knowing full well that perhaps in the future we could renegotiate another compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The reason I ask that is, you know, I’ve mentioned it a couple of times, if we’re going to approve this compact, I guess what we’re saying is, we’re partners at the end of the day.

MR. SIMONS:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Because we are going to be receiving revenues that we’re hopefully going to be counting on, and we want you to be successful.  And with a cap, I’m just wondering if there is a cap per casino or per 2,000, 2,000, 1,000, and maybe in 2022, you’re so successful and that isn’t sufficient anymore and people are standing in line.  They say, you know, I’m not going there anymore because I refuse to stand in line.  And because we have, in essence, approved the cap, we have made you less successful, because maybe somebody goes to another facility, and therefore your revenues don’t meet expectations because people just think the place is too crowded.  And in general what we were counting on for those 2,000 slots doesn’t necessarily happen.

Market driven makes a little more sense to me, quite frankly, because then you can judge.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Well, you have to understand that Morongo is 20 miles to the west of us, Cabizon is 20 miles to the east of us, Spotlight is 21 miles, then you have Augustine, then Torres-Martinez is coming online soon, in the very near future.  That will be seven.  Potentially, how many more will that include?  That’s a limit on the market driven in and of itself—the competition.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Mr. Chairman, I think it also proves the point, we already have an existing compact.  And the reason we’re here today, is to amend one because of the changes in the market condition.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But you’ve agreed to a cap.  And I’m just wondering, are we going to be here in 2022 amending this because the cap was an artificial cap not based on market forces, not based on competition, just because the fact we wanted to say it’s 2,000?
ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Market conditions change with the governors too.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, I’ll ask the Governor’s office that.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  It’s downstairs.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  When do you expect to install the additional 2,000 slots in your current two sites?

MR. MILANOVICH:  We don’t expect to open our hotel until January of ’07.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  ’07.

MR. MILANOVICH:  ’07.

MR. SIMONS:  January ’08.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Oh, pardon me.  January ’08.  They moved it up a month.  They never tell me anything.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So the 2,000 slots in terms of the expansion, just tell me how that works.  The slots are sitting in some warehouse waiting for a compact to be ratified, or how do we ramp up…
MR. MILANOVICH:  That would be foolish of us to store slot machines in some warehouse somewhere.  Because as the equipment changes, the internal workings of a slot machine change so much.  I mean, we’re bringing in new machines everyday just because the old ones are passé or nobody ever plays them, so you have to get the best and the newest when you have the ability.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Precisely, I guess, where I’m getting at, and that is, given that the changing nature of the machines themselves, does that then have an impact on, if you will, the projected revenue streams, given that you may not be ramped up and ready to go?  You consider it time?  Is it just in time type of delivery so that as soon as you’re open these machines are ready to go?  Is there a lag?  Because if there’s a lag, that means a lag in revenues to the State of California.

MR. MILANOVICH:  We hope to get as many machines up and operating as soon as we can.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Are our projections that you agreed on with the Governor based on a hope, or is this really going to happen?  I guess that’s the question.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Mr. Simons.

MR. SIMONS:  The answer is, there is a meeting today of management personnel trying to come up with a plan if the compact is ratified, to put it in effect.  They will come up with a plan and have a recommendation to the Tribal Council so that on effective date, and before the hotel construction is completed, they can have additional machines on the floor.  

The Governor did not ask for projections.  The Governor relies upon the business acumen of the Tribal Council to gauge the marketplace and looks forward to their success because that’s also beneficial to the State.  You asked me for a timetable, there is no timetable to say 1,000 will be added by this date, another 500 by this date.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I understand that.  It’s worrisome then, because the Governor puts out a press release saying this is what the revenue number is.  And so, if the Governor hasn’t asked you for that plan, if you’re waiting to come up with that plan, that plan is ready for the Tribal Council to vote on, and the Governor is depending on the business acumen—is your word—then how are we to rely on the revenue projections by the Department of Finance and others and the people who look at this?  And the question from our Members always is, are we really getting the revenue that was promised by the Governor?  That’s the question.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that you visit the current facilities on a Friday night and you’ll see clearly why the demand is there.  And I think that the Tribe will put….when Chairman Milanovich said that they will get those machines in as quickly as they possibly can, he’s saying that because the biggest single complaint that I get about the slot machines at the casinos in my district are there are not enough of them; that people have to wait.  They wait half-an-hour; they wait 45 minutes to get on a machine.  Every single one of them is full.  And they don’t understand.  The ironic thing is, they blame the Tribe for it because they don’t think that they’re holding them back and they know that they just don’t have….they can’t anymore.  So when those machines get in there, or they have the ability to get in there, I am very confident that we will see a very fast expansion.  And so those revenue projections, I think, are real in terms of hitting those 4,000.  I think, they’ll get there quick.  Now, the extra 1,000, you know, I have no idea if and when the Tribe is going to decide when to open up another facility.  I think they just wanted to reserve the option to do that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Mr. Chairman, can I again clarify that this current Amended Compact has revenue certain which is 
$23.4 million annually that is coming in quarterly payments to the State of California.  So if nothing else, if they don’t roll out one more machine to the floor based on the 2,000 machines that they have today, over the lifetime of the compact that’s in place, they would be paying the State of California $560 million, and revenue certain that we could bank on this $23.4 million if they did nothing else over the next 20 years.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Good point.  Let’s go to that if we could, Ms. Garcia, the $23 million.  The $23 million within the compact that you’ve mentioned, that represents about 9 percent of the Tribe’s net win for the calendar year of 2005—is that correct?

MR. SIMONS:  That is accurate.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you have a ’99 Compact that, in essence, stated that dollars were going to go to the Special Distribution Fund, correct?  And right now, at least that’s where the State’s money goes today.

MR. SIMONS:  That is correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in the new compact it goes to the General Fund, so there’s a distinction there.

MR. SIMONS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And how much right now is going to that fund?

MR. SIMONS:  Approximately $12.2 million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So this is a doubling.  What you’re going to be giving the State is you’ve gone from $12- to the Special Distribution Fund to $23 plus certain to the General Fund?

MR. SIMONS:  That’s correct.  And if we don’t add anymore machines, it would be counter productive because we’ve doubled the payments to the State.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So that’s a doubling of projected, Ms. Garcia.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  And also a quadrupling the contribution to the non-revenue generating tribes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  What percent of the net win does that represent in terms of the amount paid, if you will, under the 
’99 Compact?


MR. SIMONS:  The $23.4 million?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, the current.  What you’re paying now.  You’re paying $12…..


MR. SIMONS:  Right now, the $12.2 million is approximately 
4.9 percent of net win.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. SIMONS:  And of course none of that goes to the General Fund.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  And why is the Tribe paying 
4.9 percent?


MR. SIMONS:  That’s the formula under the 1999 Compact at a time that the State had a budget surplus.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And under this particular compact you’re at about 10 percent.


MR. SIMONS:  Under the blended rate, assuming we had it, it would be 12.5 percent, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And so that comes up to about $11,700 for each slot machine.


MR. SIMONS:  I haven’t done that computation, but I assume you have and that it’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The reason I’m asking that is, as Ms. Garcia mentioned, that’s for the first 2,000 slots.

MR. SIMONS:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So we can count on $11,700 per slot for the first 2,000.  I mean, that’s real numbers that the State can say the more successful you are in terms of getting those up and running, we can actually understand on a yearly basis what that is, and I guess that’s really my point.  And so in other words, it’s a fixed rather than an annual percentage?


MR. SIMONS:  That is correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is there an advantage for the State either way?  Did we sign up for a bad deal in that?  The reason I ask you, if you’re successful beyond $23.5 million for the State, then we’ve locked in, and so, maybe that percentage isn’t 10 percent.  Maybe at the end of the day it’s a lot less.  


MR. SIMONS:  I’m not an expert in gaming, Mr. Chairman.  My understanding is, one of the problems you have when you add machines is, your net win per day may go down.  This way the State of California does not take a risk of the net win going down, it is guaranteed a fixed amount each year from those 2,000 devices.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Then why did we on the next 2,000 devices then pick a percentage?  So on one hand, the first 2,000 we do $23.5 and the next 2,000 we say, but we’re going to agree on a percentage basis—take 15 percent.  I mean, why wouldn’t we just do a percentage all the way across the board if that’s the case, as you just mentioned?


MR. SIMONS:  My understanding is the Administration wanted to have a guaranteed sum on the existing devices if the Tribe added no additional machines so that the budget office could know that this amount of money is coming in.  So, I leave it to the Administration to explain their thought process.  We were agreeable to it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Did you put that structure before the Administration or did the Administration put that structure in for you?

MR. SIMONS:  The Administration suggested that structure to us.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  In the Amended Compact, also, you changed the definition of net win, is that correct?  Why and what’s the reason for that?


MR. SIMONS:  Under the current rules and regulations of the California Gambling Control Commission the new definition matches what the California Gambling Control Commission is now doing in its audit of net win.  So there is no practical change.  There’s a wordage change in the 1999 Compact to the amendment to reflect the actual activity of the California Gambling Control Commission.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And can we talk about the devices for a moment now—the 2,000 and 2,000.  The Amended Compact includes slot machines and video poker, is that correct.  Okay.  And that’s different than the ’99 Compacts or not?


MR. SIMONS:  No, it’s not.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s not.  So are we capturing more devices, or do you have a thought about the mix of those types of devices—Class-2, Class-3, these types of things?


MR. SIMONS:  The Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians has never had a Class-2 gaming device in any of its facilities.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But the Amended Compacts talk about 
Class-2, is that correct?


MR. SIMONS:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  They don’t?


MR. SIMONS:  They do not.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the Amended Compact, the way that you look at that particular mix, it’s all Class-3?


MR. SIMONS:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, I think is also something I want to talk about a bit.  Now, under that Amended Compact you pay $2 million to that fund.


MR. SIMONS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And how much do you currently pay into the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund?  Well, first of all, tell us what the Revenue Trust Fund is—the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund.  What it’s used for?  What it is?  You mentioned you paid, under the new compact, $2 million.  And then I want to ask you, of course, what you were paying before.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  No, currently, $550,000, agreeing to increase it to $2 million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So go ahead and take me through that.  

MR. SIMONS:  The Revenue Sharing Trust Fund is a fund established by the Tribal Governments to help those tribes that are not engaged in gaming, and those tribes that are engaged in gaming but do not have more than 350 gaming devices in their facility.  Right now, it is funded by the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund and any deficit is funded by the Special Distribution Trust Fund.  Because of that nature, the Tribe has voluntarily asked that its contribution, which was under the 
1999 Compact $550,000, that it was willing to increase it voluntarily to 

$2 million.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And so under the new compacts, 

$2 million?


MR. SIMONS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I guess under the ’99 Compact you were paying a per device sum?


MR. SIMONS:  That is correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And it was about $4,300, roughly, per device in terms of your particular…


MR. SIMONS:  The range would go up there.  And the way the computation came on 847 licenses, was $550,000.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I guess, why would we leave that calculation?  So in other words, you’re going to add an additional 2,000 slots.  That would tell me that, in essence, you were paying $4.6 million into the Revenue Trust Fund.  And so, the $2 million doesn’t sound as appealing as the $4.6.  And I just kind of want to understand how that got negotiated, and why a lesser number?


MR. SIMONS:  Don’t forget, the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, Mr. Chairman, was based upon licenses.  And those licenses were purchased by the Tribal Government.  And the price of the licenses was also paid into the fund.  There are no licenses under the amendment to the compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And then at $2 million per year going back to the calculation per slot, then we’re talking about $400 per machine roughly, and that would be per year for up to $5,000.

MR. SIMONS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And is there, from your understanding, any concern with that within the broader Indian community in terms of that new structure that you’ve been made aware of?  Or, Mr. Milanovich?


MR. MILANOVICH:  Yes.  We have been approached by certain non-gaming tribes, truly non-gaming tribes in our area, that have expressed a concern that with our increased contribution to the Revenue Sharing Fund the dissolution of the Special Distribution Fund means that there will be not sufficient funds available for a backfill of the Revenue Sharing Fund.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  How do you feel about that particular backfill?


MR. MILANOVICH:  I think there are times when we took issue with the Gambling Control Commission, how they’re determining who should be responsible to be paying dollars into this Revenue Sharing Fund.  They excluded certain tribes based on interpretations of the compact.  We didn’t agree, but it didn’t matter.  We didn’t agree.  So I think that there should be something done, of course, to ensure that that fund of $1.1 or $1.2 million continues to the best extent possible.


ASSEMBLYMBER GARCIA:  Mr. Chairman, if I can also offer, in our discussions on this issue, we, the legislative members in our discussions, believe that there has to be another vehicle, just like we did after the 1999 Compacts with the Special Distribution legislation that Senator Battin carried to address how we deal with some of those shortfalls and the funds that end up in the General Fund to pay for enforcement, backfill, and all of the other areas that need to be discussed.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Yes, but it should be a separate vehicle that we run as a bill that has the input of all the members during our regular legislative cycles so that we’re sure to address not just the issues raised today, but other issues.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I guess the question is, given that you already mentioned the $4.6 million figure, if we were going back to at $400 per, and you mentioned license….the bottom line is, do you think you’re paying enough into it?  And do you think that, in essence, sharing good fortune with those non-gaming tribes, does this compact meet that test from your vantage point?  It’s more of a value question more than anything else.  No numbers guy gets to talk on that; Chairman Milanovich gets to answer the question.


MR. MILANOVICH:  Personally, I have some concerns about it, sure.  Is it fair to levy an additional expense on a successful operation because we are successful?  But by the same token, or is it more of a responsibility, overall, for everyone to take a handle of it and say this is what should be done?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  


MR. MILANOVICH:  You know, this concept about perhaps having a carve-out of the General Fund to insure that those funds are available for those tribes, should be seriously considered.  

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Mr. Chairman, again, I know the dollar guys may say something about this, but let me just go to this point:  Currently the contribution is $11.9 million that they’re doing today.  They’ve agreed to go $23-, guaranteed, so that already doubles it.  It makes up for that $2 million shortfall that we’re talking about.  But when we add on the additional 3,000 machines, that adds an additional $58.5 million.  So I think that over and above meets that $2 million threshold.  But again, I think it’s important that we come back with something comprehensive, separate, apart from this, just like we did with the Special Distribution Fund.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So let’s do that, because I think that’s needed.  And I don’t know necessarily as an amendment to your compact, but I think definitely to the code that in the event of things not going well, in the event that things don’t happen in the way that we project, that that Special Distribution Fund is, at least, if you will, a safety net, and maybe we can continue those discussions.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  And we’ve actually committed to offering that legislation in a legislative cycle—Senator Battin and I.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. MILANOVICH:  Mr. Chairman, also understand, when we put together Prop. 5, it was the tribes themselves that came up with the idea of revenue sharing with those tribes that did not have the ability, or were in such areas that did not have an opportunity for economic development, to include them.  So it was the tribes that first thought about it.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in that spirit we’re pushing you because you have two casinos; building one more; 5,000 slots; it’s big; and the question simply is, why not do more?  And of course, you would appreciate that because you started that conversation.  So we’re just asking as the committee, I’m chairman, can you do more?  And I think Ms. Garcia has maybe answered that in terms of the safety net, and I appreciate working with her on it.


MR. MILANOVICH:  And I’m sure we can support that idea too.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. SIMONS:  Just two points:  One, the Tribe has interpreted the 1999 Compact and only one tribal government has done so in a way that it has paid more into the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund than any other tribe based upon its interpretation, and did authorize the California Gambling Control Commission to disperse those funds to the non-gaming tribes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The last portion of the revenue discussion is on, obviously, local government mitigation.  And maybe you can give us a snapshot of what’s currently being paid to local governments under this amended contract.  What do you think about as compared to ’99 and this?  How does that work?

MR. SIMONS:  I’m going to defer to Tom Davis on that since this is his game.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  Okay, Tom.

MR. DAVIS:  I’m sorry.  Are you asking about the difference between the Special Distribution Fund on the ’99 Compact versus this amendment?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. SIMONS:  On the Special Distribution Fund?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Local government mitigation.


MR. SIMONS:  Local government mitigation is not covered by the 1999 Compact.  The Tribe has entered into agreements with the local governments as a part of its practice that Mr. Davis has negotiated with local governments, and is currently in the process of negotiating with the City of Rancho Mirage.  The Tribe’s commitment to fulfill those obligations is separate and apart from the amendment to the compact.  That’s a separate obligation that the Tribe has; the Tribe intends to fulfill.  Those are separate local agreements.


MR. DAVIS:  Mr. Chairman, may I add too, that that’s based on our own project related environmental review process, and the mitigation that stems from the project impact the local community and we, like any other local agency….each project has a schedule of mitigation measures for the community—fire, police, water, sewage, storm drain—all the normal things, and those are separate mitigation obligations outside the compact.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Section III, Authorization and Exclusivity, and I think we’re going to spend some time on this.  And I think we, at least, want to better understand, if you could, the concept of exclusivity provisions in the Amended Compact.  Mr. Chairman, correct me if I’m wrong, because it obviously mentioned Prop A and Prop 5, but when we passed this, the electorate passed this, did we ever, within those initiatives, talk about exclusivity, carving out, putting, if you will, were any of those mentioned in the initiative at the get go?


MR. MILANOVICH:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So these are State created.


MR. MILANOVICH:  No, these are federally created.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Why don’t you take me through this from your vantage point?

MR. SIMONS:  The opinions from the Department of Interior from day one on revenue sharing for the State was that the tribes had to be given something for revenue sharing, otherwise it was a tax prohibited by IGRA.  The only thing that the State can give is exclusivity.  The Department of Interior said that is the quid pro quo for us to okay a compact that has revenue sharing in it.  So the 1999 Compacts have statewide exclusivity.  The amendment to the compact is a step back.  It has core geographic exclusivity.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So in other words, the ’99 Compact said if you built anywhere in this state then, in essence, gaming a Class-3 facility, that would have affected its exclusivity anywhere.  And so in other words, you have a core…

MR. MILANOVICH:  Right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And your core is what?  Defined in the compact—what are those areas?


MR. SIMONS:  San Bernardino County, Riverside County, San Diego County and Los Angeles County.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that is the reason where Class-3 and is not permitted?


MR. SIMONS:  That if someone else should operate Class-3 in those regions, then the Tribe would be deemed to have….that there would be a failure of consideration because there would be no exclusivity in exchange for the revenue sharing.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Boy, that is a real lawyer way to say it.  And so, just real simple for a guy from Bakersfield so I can understand it.


MR. SIMONS:  But your math is good, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Well, just so I can understand it, because there is a lot of confusion in the halls, you know, about exclusivity and what it means, and I think for me it’s a key point.  So from your vantage point, this core geographic region that you’ve now put in this particular compact says that in this region if there is a Class-3 facility or constitutional amendment then what happens?  What happens in this compact if that happens?


MR. SIMONS:  This compact, unlike the 1999 Compact where if there was a loss of exclusivity within the State, then a tribe would pay nothing to the State but the cost of regulation.  Now it provides, in the Amended Compact, that the Tribe would pay nothing on the 2,000 devices that it currently operates, but it would continue to pay if it elected to use any additional devices 12.5 percent of the net revenue on those additional devices.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  If it so chooses, though.


MR. SIMONS:  It can just cut back 2,000.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Not going to do that, right?

MR. SIMONS:  But remember, the Tribe will have already committed itself to financial institutions for expansion facilities and it will have the expanded facilities, but that’s a right it does have.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And given that’s going to federally produced and now reflected in the compact, I’m just wondering, is this a poison pill for the State?  And let me tell you why.  


If indeed a racetrack or a card club or someone else is successful, you know, from a constitutional point of view, gets the ability to do Class-3 outside of this Legislature….let’s say they go to the people and they get to do that, does that mean that everything that we’ve agreed on with you folks mean we won’t get a cent other than the 12 percent you’ve mentioned?  In other words, outside of our jurisdiction completely is the fact that you won’t have to pay the State anything.

MR. SIMONS:  We are currently talking to the Administration based upon input that we received this morning from the Department of Interior, that I received this morning from the Department of Interior, that it had a concern with a provision of the compact. That we are working on some language now dealing with potential amendments by a constitutional amendment that would allow the horse racing industry to have certain Class-3 machines.  We are trying to finalize some language on that as we are here today.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that language is a “I got to start the clock all over again.  We started that earlier”, is that a discussion within your compact or is that a State policy outside of this compact, outside of Ms. Garcia’s language.

MR. SIMONS:  This will be a part of this compact that will be an amendment to it, to be brought as part of any bill, if we agree on the language.  Right now the Department of Interior had a problem with what was in the amendment to the compact—the last sentence dealing with a constitutional amendment, and it has a problem under federal law approving a compact where there’s no consideration granted by the State.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And so you are working on an amendment to this, as this proceeds on?


MR. SIMONS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Well, I’m glad we’re not taking a vote on it today, because that’s kind of important.  And that means then….so you’re expecting some sort of amendment language the committee will understand and can digest and can go forward?


MR. SIMONS:  Hopefully today.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why don’t you talk to them about that telephone poll too, while you’re making changes?  Since we’re making changes, why don’t you suggest that? 


So I can understand it, you’ve done a great job on exclusivity, and I appreciate that.  And the Chairman did a great job just in telling us, in essence, why it is here.  Because I think a lot of people wonder is the State giving monopolies?  Are we creating zones?  And I think the 
’99 Compact said statewide if you did this, you have now carved it down to core areas.  And I think that, from our vantage point, at least makes it more manageable to understand the risk.  But you didn’t answer my question.  So if indeed, if other folks are successful, in your mind does it mean you can forego giving the State of California any of these dollars that we’re so anxiously waiting for?

MR. SIMONS:  If the Tribe elected to only operate 2,000 devices, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Do you think the Tribe would ever make a decision to only operate 2,000, or would you rather just not give the State its money?


MR. SIMONS:  My understanding is the Tribal Council acts in the best interest of the Tribal Council and its members.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So I think that question probably says that if indeed that arrangement or that sort of possibility happened, that the State of California would lose significant revenues under the terms and conditions of this compact, anyway you look at it.  And who knows if that’s going to happen or not, but again, our job is to talk about risks.  Our job on this side of the government is to work out a deal so we understand our risk, and we understand, and we go into it fully with the knowledge that things could happen, and I think that’s really important for us to do.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Mr. Chairman, just addressing that risk based on current law today, the only one that can negotiate that compact is the Governor.  So placing that poison pill in is a reminder to any other governors that come along is that we have a contract that we need to honor, and you’re the only guy that can do this, short of the voters putting something on the ballot changing that right or that responsibility then we would still be dependent …

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Oh, I got it.  But I think then the Governor, you know, not just speaking for the Governor, but I think then we need to look at those other industries that may attempt to, in essence, inadvertently hurt the State if, indeed, it violated our agreement.  We need to make sure those other industries, in a sense, don’t move in that direction.  There are probably two ways to do that:  We can try to work out some sort of mitigation with those industries, or we can just, in essence, cross our fingers.  There’s no other way around it.  And I think that’s something that probably has to be discussed, not in your compact, but outside from the State’s side in terms of the General Fund.  I just want to put that out there to the members that we have to mitigate on the State side some sort of arrangement that would not necessitate some sort of poison pill being in this particular bill.  So I just want to state that for the record.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Constitutional amendment like we did with Prop 5 or 1A would work.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I think we’re going on to the next section.  I think you’ve answered pretty much most of the questions I have in terms of exclusivity.


Well, let me ask one more question on exclusivity.  So, a federally recognized tribe is the exception—is that correct?


MR. SIMONS:  That is 100 percent correct, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And do you read that as a federally recognized tribe, a state recognized tribe, a tribe?  I mean, it’s very clear in the language that you were talking about a federally recognized tribe.  Just give me your thoughts on that.


MR. SIMONS:  You are 100 percent correct, Mr. Chairman.  It’s a federally recognized tribe.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But you didn’t give me your thoughts on it. 


MR. SIMONS:  My thought, is that IGRA governs federally recognized tribes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So it’s IGRA driven, and therefore we’re sticking to that particular standard from your vantage point, is that correct?


MR. SIMONS:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  We’re going to Section IV and V.  I don’t have any questions regarding Section IV with regard to testing of gaming devices.  And with Section V, regarding the building codes, I have no questions.  I don’t know if Members have questions.  But maybe you can give us your impressions of it—standard, regular, part of the ’99 Compact, continuation?


MR. SIMONS:  It’s a continuation of the policies that the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians has followed in all of their projects and economic development, and that Mr. Davis has taken the lead to ensure that they always follow it.  So it is nothing different than what the Tribe has done.  It is a modification in part.  The amendments do modify and make clearer certain issues addressed by the 1999 Compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Section VI, Patron Disputes.  I did notice a provision for binding arbitration, is that correct?  And that reflects language that was in other compacts.


MR. SIMONS:  That is correct, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I’m assuming patron disputes are handled how—appropriately?


MR. SIMONS:  Right now the Tribe has had no problems at all with patron disputes.  In fact, the $5 million limitation in the 1999 Compact is exceeded by the Tribal Government.  The Tribal Government carries over $100 million in insurance coverage.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And it avoids binding arbitration and…


MR. SIMONS:  Right now biding arbitration is a mechanism that’s added to the 1999 Compacts through the amendment.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go on to Section VII, Public and Workplace Health, Safety and Liability.  Public liability insurance is doubled in this from $5 million to $10 million?


MR. SIMONS:  Yes, but once again, the Tribal Government does carry over $100 million between its primary and umbrella policies.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  You mentioned, I think, prominently about workers’ compensation, so in Section VIII is that pretty self explanatory?

MR. SIMONS:  It is.  It’s to make sure, or it clarifies from the Administration’s point of view, that what is being done today will continue to be comparable with the new workers compensation laws of the State of California.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Section IX, the Mitigation of Off-Reservation Impacts.  Under these provisions, you are supposed to, in essence, provide an environmental impact report (EIR)—your understanding.  And it seems to be more elaborate than what was in the 1999 Compacts.  What’s the reason for that?  Why is it more elaborate?  And why did you agree to it?


MR. SIMONS:  What it does is it follows what Mr. Davis does today and what he has been doing in the Tribe’s casino developments.  So it really does earmark and follow what the State was looking for, but also recognizes what the Tribe has been doing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Do you see any problems in terms of mitigating for the third facility built six years from now, seven years from now?


MR. SIMONS:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No?  Okay.  And you’re prepared to negotiate with local governments on that?


MR. SIMONS:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The Tribe expecting to expand in those other facilities, no problems there?  It is just an expansion, correct?


MR. SIMONS:  The expansion that is ongoing actually has commenced at the Agua Caliente Casino outside of Rancho Mirage.  The Chairman has already indicated the Tribe is looking forward to expanding downtown in Palm Springs, as well, in the future.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Also in the section there is a provision for binding arbitration and the Tribe has 45 days?


MR. SIMONS:  Forty-five days for Mr. Davis to complete an intergovernmental agreement.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  With local and county governments, that’s correct?


MR. SIMONS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that’s after the environmental impact is submitted?


MR. SIMONS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  


MR. SIMONS:  That doesn’t mean that he will engage in conversations with them prior to that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Do you folks like binding arbitration?


MR. SIMONS:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The Governor suggest it?


MR. SIMONS:  More than suggest it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’m just wondering how that got in.


MR. SIMONS:  It would be like asking the State of California, would the State of California agree to binding arbitration.  I believe the answer would be no.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you’re saying that the Governor is leading the State in the wrong direction?  I’m just kidding.  Does the Tribe have its own police force?


MR. SIMONS:  At this point in time, the Tribe does have its own security personnel but does not have, what I think you’re referring to as, a police force.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, police force, I’m sorry.  And that mitigation in terms of impact of services within the compact?  How does that work?


MR. SIMONS:  Mr. Davis works out agreements with the County of Riverside which provides for those services the way I understand it, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. DAVIS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, we have, in fact, an agreed upon funding agreement with the County of Riverside on our current facility that funds public safety services.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Gambling addiction, obviously very prominently discussed here in the Legislature.  In the Amended Compact, how is that treated?


MR. SIMONS:  It is not.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So what’s your thoughts on it?


MR. SIMONS:  Right now that is funded by the Special Distribution Trust Fund.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And we’re not doing that anymore.


MR. SIMONS:  Well, you’re going to be doing it for those that don’t elect to have an Amended Compact or a new compact, but the answer to the question is, my assumption is, this is going to be then something the Administration is going to be dealing with through the General Fund.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s on our dime then, in other words, that you’ve given us.  But it’s for us to figure out how to spend that in a better way, or if not more so for a gaming addiction.


MR. SIMONS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  However, the Tribal Government will continue to voluntarily deal with that issue separately as it does right now through a voluntary exclusion policy that it has instituted, that it monitors, and that it enforces.  Also, there are warnings that are present in the facilities.  There are brochures.  And the Tribal Government, as part of a citizen of the communities, would voluntarily do things that are not enforced upon them under the compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Members, I know this is probably, this last set of questions have to do with the labor provisions and I know I want to go through those very carefully.  It’s not mentioned as an amendment to the compact, but the 1999 Labor provisions, are they in full effect; are they deluded; are they more so?  I mean, at the end of the day what can you tell us about the labor provisions in these compacts as compared to the 1999 Compact?

MR. MILANOVICH:  Mr. Chairman, when we entered into the 
1999 Compacts, at the last moment, right at the last hour, Senator John Burton, Senate pro Tem, came up with this concept, this Tribal Labor Relations Ordinance, that he felt was necessary for approval, or his ratification, or his approval process, to move forward with the compact of 1999.  We were hesitant about moving forward with it, but in the end we agreed to those terms and conditions.  What that does, it establishes a separate organization which will review labor practices within our organization.  It establishes that any organized labor organization wishing to come on and organize our team members, they can do so under certain guidelines.  Namely, they register with our Tribal Gaming Commission and agree to undergo a background check.  From what I understand, only one organization has attempted to do so and that’s CWA (Communication Workers of America).  They came to the council and asked if they could attempt to organize our team members.  We said fine.  There is a process involved here.  They started that process but then they were told by representatives of HERE that they could go any further because HERE had jurisdiction based on some jurisdictional dispute with another labor organization.  So CWA backed away.  No other labor organization has attempted to follow the guidelines established by the TLRO.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You mentioned Senator Burton kind of walking in the room—I imagine him storming in the room, but as he came in the room, even as he provided that guidance, I mean, at that point in time as you were negotiating the 1999 Compacts, did you find that reasonable, unreasonable, burdensome?


MR. MILANOVICH:  We thought it was very unreasonable.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why?


MR. MILANOVICH:  Because we felt that we offered sufficient compensation, sufficient wages for our team members, a workplace which is safe, secure.  We offer, as I read in my opening statement, a package which is second to none in our industry, and I’m sure, across the country.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did your employees receive healthcare benefits?


MR. MILANOVICH:  Pardon me?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did they receive healthcare benefits?


MR. MILANOVICH:  Yes.  It’s established under a PPO.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What percentage of your employees receive health benefits?


MR. DAVIS:  One hundred percent.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And do you have a sense on the average wage that folks make in your facilities?


MR. SIMONS:  Yes, I believe that was part of the Chairman’s opening statement.


MR. MILANOVICH:  That was $11.45 per hour not including tips; with tips it runs approximately $16.40.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And, Mr. Chairman, in terms of your responsibilities with regard to labor, do you fundamentally believe they’ve been met?


MR. MILANOVICH:  I think we exceed the responsibilities.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the current status of the casino employees, are they, at this point of time, represented or not by organized labor?


MR. MILANOVICH:  No, they’re not represented by anyone other than themselves.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any questions from Members before we adjourn the Tribe.


SENATOR SOTO:  (Inaudible-off mic)


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Soto, any follow up?  Senator Romero?  Yes.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Mr. Chairman, pardon me.  Also, I didn’t mention that direct benefits paid on behalf of tribal employees are $4.02 per hour per employee; health insurance payments total $3.73 of that per hour additionally.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Mr. Chairman, before you ask a question, if I may.  Agua Caliente is one of our largest employers, is the largest employer in the Coachella Valley, and the payroll in that area is about $85 million in wages and benefits.  Their plan is actually much more generous than the plan that we have for ourselves as legislators and for our employees, which is a sad commentary.  Single members pay about $15 per week for a PPO plan, and family members pay $32.50 per week.  I received in the mail this week my new contribution with the _____, and I think our premiums have gone up to about $1,100, of which we pay a contribution of about $450 and $500 for ourselves.  Also, looking at some of the larger employers in our district, school districts and other large employers that have more than a 1,000 employees, they don’t even match by half what Agua Caliente does in our region.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you are including our employees of the State, not members, right?


ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Members, ourselves, we pay a portion of our healthcare premium, which is, I want to say, about $375, $400 dollars—our portion of it.  And as a single mom, it’s killing me, believe me.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Senator Romero.


SENATOR ROMERO:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Chairman Milanovich, you indicated that it was unreasonable to accept that into the compact, but it was accepted.  Can you tell us why?


MR. MILANOVICH:   Because it’s something that we knew that we were doing anyway.  We would have done it anyway without being forced, being put under that yoke of, again, someone thinking that they knew better than what we do.  That we didn’t have the sense of responsibility to ensure a workplace for our team members was sufficient; that their healthcare was very important to us; that their families were important to us.  That’s why.  No one likes to be told that somebody is much brighter or much smarter or has a bigger whip than they.  And in order to get something accomplished, you have to do it my way because I know better than you, or I don’t trust you for you taking care of what I know you’re not going to be taking care of.  We know that we take care of our team members quite well.  We are concerned about their welfare, their benefits, and we ensure that they will continue to receive the proper care and the proper benefits package from us.

SENATOR ROMERO:  And you indicated that CWA had contacted you regarding an interest in doing organizing.  Subsequent to that, did you receive contact from HERE that they would be interested in doing organizing?


MR. MILANOVICH:  No.


SENATOR ROMERO:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, I’m going to ask you to close in a moment.  I just want to make sure I talk to the attorneys for a moment so I can understand the process.


SENATOR BATTIN:  Mr. Chairman, if I can jump ahead and go on the topic that we were just talking about.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, of course, Senator Battin.


SENATOR BATTIN:  In the ’99 Compacts there was an agreement, because you know there was 50 plus, 64, is that right, compacts and they were all the same.  And there was an agreement that was kind of a global deal that the Governor reached with Senator Burton and the tribes agreed, which was, okay, we will….and please understand the tribal view here.  The tribes have a very unique thing, it’s a tribal sovereignty, which is in the constitution of the United States and they guard it jealously.  And I really do believe if you’ve laid down a choice to the Chairman and said you can either give up your sovereignty or give up gaming, they would without hesitation give up gaming.  Because the sovereignty is who they are and what they have.  So it was an agreement where the Tribe said listen, we will give up our right for self determination which is given to us in the constitution and we will agree, as part of our compact for this Tribal Labor Relations Ordinance, which allows organizations….in the Viejas Tribe they made an agreement with CWA, and other tribes did other things, but it allowed organized labor to come in, where they didn’t have that before, nor any requirement.  

So, to answer your question in my remembrance of it, being there at the time, that’s what it was.  I mean, it was kind of a political tradeoff—okay, we’ll put this labor agreement in.  We’ll do this.  And then the tribes have been very good about honoring that, and they have it.
So, I understand the Chairman’s point of view.  I just wanted to answer your question in terms of why was it in there in the first place.  It wasn’t because it was a political consideration to make it all jell with the multiple amount of compacts.  And I think the tribes gave up a lot.  I mean, they were a very big deal for them at the time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator Battin.  Let me ask a question of process because obviously we….to take you through, I think Senator Battin could probably add to this, the Rules Committee gave a waiver that allows us to take the bill up when we need to vote on it, meaning the GO Committee.  And that, then, after a vote of this committee, will head to the Senate Floor for full ratification.  In this hearing we’ve established that there may be an issue that you’re going to amend.  And I would just like to understand how you see that proceeding, so that we as a committee can appropriately judge our schedule.  Because I sure would hate to pass this thing and you come back and say we’ve got an amendment.  So how does that process work from your vantage point?


ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  We have an amendment already going through the Appropriations Committee with adding co-authors to this bill.  If, in fact, we need to make any amendments we can make amendments through the Appropriations Committee and then have it on the Floor if ________ some conflict.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So I can understand it, you see this as a minor amendment change that is part of your bill or a separate bill?  That’s my question.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Minor amendment change that would be part of this bill.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Of this bill.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  But I don’t think it amends the integrity of the compact itself.


SENATOR BATTIN:  Are you just talking about adding co-authors?  You have another amendment as well?


ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  No.  There’s a minor amendment issue that was raised.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m confused, I’m sorry.  You need to take me through this again.  So we are making minor amendment changes to this compact and yet….let me just tell you how I expected this to happen.  We were going to hear this compact and information that we may, as soon as tomorrow or Monday, vote on this and we were going to get this to the Senate Floor if it makes it through the committee.  Given that, that was my schedule.  How does my schedule fit with your amendment?  That is my question.


MR. SIMONS:  We will comply with your schedule, Mr. Chairman, and hopefully have that amendment finalized within the next hour or two.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And how will you finalize that amendment?  When you say we, who is we?


MR. SIMONS:  The Governor’s staff and myself.  There is language right now, and the author of that is finalizing it and getting approvals.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I think you heard some of the reticence on, and Senator Battin said we’d sure hate to slow this down for a telephone poll, but since you’re doing amendments and given 
Mr. Chairman said he would not be conducting a telephone poll, that is also a slight minor amendment—do you see that as being possible as you move this through, given that you’re making amendments anyway?  As you discuss this, that’s why I asked, who is we?  And you’re going to be talking to the Administration.  I’m just wondering, is that a possibility?


MR. SIMONS:  We will definitely raise it at your request, Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  I mean, you’re negotiating, we don’t.  I mean, you can only do what you guys agree on.  And then secondly, the last point I would have is as a question, not as an amendment, and I do want to talk to Ms. Garcia about this at some point, as well, about the poison pill I mentioned earlier and mitigating for that on the State side.  If we, on the State side, can figure out a way to mitigate against any sort of disastrous consequences of somebody being successful on a Class-3 and ultimately the State losing that, do you have a problem at the end of the day what the State does with its side of the revenue?  I mean, you’re paying…

MR. SIMONS:  None whatsoever.  We would prefer to maintain the exclusivity.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Okay.  And we would be partners with you in that.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Mr. Chairman, I’m a baby in this, so I would be happy to take your lead and work with you on that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you, Ms. Garcia.  Mr. Chairman, you may close, and I appreciate the time and I appreciate the comments and I really appreciate Mr. Brokaw being so silent today.  We really appreciate that.  So why don’t you go ahead and give us your close and we’re going to have the Administration come up next.


MR. MILANOVICH:  Well, I really don’t have a formal close other than to thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee, for hearing us out.  And we would appreciate a quick turnaround on this legislation, this ratification process.  Thank you very much.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you for answering our questions.  We appreciate that.


Okay.  If we could follow on the agenda, let’s have the members of the Governor’s negotiating team and the Department of Finance.  We have Amy Hicks, Finance Budget Analyst, Department of Finance; and Stephanie Shimazu, Deputy Legal Affairs Secretary, Member of the Governor’s Negotiating Team.  And the others could identify themselves for the record.


JACEE THOMPSON:  Jacee Thompson, Department of Finance.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


AMY HICKS:  Amy Hicks, Department of Finance.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


BILL CURTIS:  Bill Curtis, Chief Counsel, Department of Personnel Administration.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Alright.  Let’s go through the questions.  First of all, let me say, if we could, the principal negotiator of this particular compact was not yourself, is that correct?


MS. SHIMAZU:  No.  Andrea Hoag, with the Legal Affairs Secretary is the principal negotiator.  I’m one of her deputies, so I assist her, as does another attorney in her office, and we get assistance from the Attorney General’s office.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And given the practice of this committee, I think for those members who have sat through some of the longer committee meetings, we have been stymied at some points in time with members that could not tell us about the negotiation and then we have been over inundated with Mr. Kolkey telling us too much about the negotiations.  So, you know, in terms of your participation in this, is it safe to say that, although you did not principally negotiate this, you were in the room and privy to all conversations in terms of all aspects of this compact?


MS. SHIMAZU:  I wouldn’t say all conversations, but I certainly know what’s going on.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You generally know what’s going on.  You’ll be able to answer my questions.


MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.


MS. SHIMAZU:    Hopefully.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Well, let’s go ahead and let’s go through some of the questions I have.  I’d like to go through the construct of the compact, if I could, first.  And let’s start off with the provision, you know, that causes me some problems in terms of construction of the third casino, and that is, obtaining local community support through, if you will, a telephone poll.  And I guess the question I have is, why is this important to the Administration, and ultimately, why is it part of this compact?


MS. SHIMAZU:  Well, it was important because, under the 
’99 Compact there are no provisions for local community support.  But since we’re adding a third possible facility and we don’t know where that might be, we’re concerned that the local community supported it.  So we were trying to provide options through negotiations with the Tribe.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Denham, do you want to go ahead and make a comment?


SENATOR DENHAM:  So is it your understanding that all other compacts, both ones that have been negotiated but not ratified and future compacts would also be telephone polls, or are there a variety of different options that are out there?


MS. SHIMAZU:  This compact is a little bit different too because this is the first one we’ve done where it actually added a new facility.  The ’99 Compact provided that each tribe could operate two.  Here we’re adding a third one, so because that was something new, we wanted to see what the local community had to say about it before it was constructed.


SENATOR DENHAM:  It’s my understanding that North Fork would also be a brand new facility, and that facility would have some type of community outreach.  It could be telephone polling, but I’ve also heard of just a vote of the supervisors, for example would be a community outreach enough.


MS. SHIMAZU:  I don’t have any information about the North Fork Compact, but…


SENATOR DENHAM:  Do you have any information on any other compacts where telephone polling may or may not be used, or whether some other commitment would be made?

MS. SHIMAZU:  You know, but correct me if I’m wrong; I believe Big Lagoon had an option of a telephone poll.  And that’s, I mean, a little bit different because that’s when we’re talking about a Section XX Concurrence, and the Governor has had a policy in place where you look at certain things; it can’t be an urbanized area; you need local and government support, so, that kind of followed a different route.  So here we’re talking just about not a Section XX, about a tribe operating a gaming facility on its own lands, which is a little bit different.  


SENATOR DENHAM:  It’s a little bit different but I’m also concerned, as the Chair is, on what our community outreach is going to be.  How are we going to seek that community input when it has something to do with a change in the community?  And if telephone polling is the way to go, I’ve been wanting to research that a little further.


MS. SHIMAZU:  Understood.  And just to point out, and I’m sure everyone knows this, but there are different options in here where they can get the local community support, so a resolution from the city council, or the board of sups, the advisory vote and then obviously the telephone poll.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And the advisory vote would be a vote of the supervisors or a vote of the people?


MS. SHIMAZU:  Vote of the people, either in the city where the third gaming facility would be, or the county.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Special election or regular election?


MS. SHIMAZU:  That I don’t know.  I can get back to you.  I’m not prepared to answer, I apologize.


SENATOR DENHAM:  And all of the specifics on that.  And so it would also be your understanding then that a compact negotiation with a tribe that has land in trust would be different, concerning the community outreach, that would be different than a tribe that does not have land in trust?


MS. SHIMAZU:  Yes.  But the Section XX is the tribe doesn’t currently have the right to game on that particular parcel.  It might have the right to game on a different parcel.  But this tribe, Agua, has….where the third gaming facility will be, will be where they are eligible to game.  But because it was a little bit different and we’re adding a third facility, we wanted to make sure that the local community supported it—a kind of a compromise there.


SENATOR DENHAM:  Okay.  So as far as this compact is concerned, this is the only option for gaining that community input, telephone polling, or are there others in here that I haven’t seen?


MS. SHIMAZU:  In order for them to game at the third site?  


SENATOR DENHAM:  Yes.


MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.  That would be one of the three options, basically.  So they could get the resolution from the city council, board of sups, or get the approval via the local advisory vote, or, get the approval if, after they conducted the phone survey, the people in the area thought it was a good thing, or they were supportive of it.  So there are three options.  The Tribe can choose which one they want to use to get the local community support.

SENATOR DENHAM:  And the difference between the three different options….I would assume that if you gave three options, the options would be there for who is going to have the greatest impact.  If you’re close to the city, you’d probably want a vote of the city council.  If you’re further out, you’d probably want a vote of the sups, and you’d probably want telephone polling to get an understanding from all—is that…


MS. SHIMAZU:  Well, and maybe I didn’t explain it correctly.  But if they want to game in an actual city, in an incorporated city, they want to go the resolution route, it would be from the city council.  If it was in an unincorporated part of the county, they would go to Riverside County for that resolution.  Or, if they want to do something else, they can do the local advisory vote, depending on where it would be—if it was with the city or the county.  The same with the telephone poll—depending on where it would be, would determine who you are seeking the support from.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And they get to pick?


MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You guys fixated on this telephone poll, why is that?


MS. SHIMAZU:  I don’t know that we’re fixated on it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  That’s all I need to know.  That’s fine.  You’re not fixated on it.  That’s good.  

Let’s talk about the revenue contributions, if we could.  And we talked about numbers flying around, and I think as I mentioned earlier, Senator Speier, for example, and I had a conversation just on the Floor…Yesterday.
SENATOR DENHAM:  If I could go back.  I know we’re getting ready to switch topics here, but on this whole gaining community support, I know Senator Florez and I through other hearings, we continue to seek to understand how each of these different compacts, how we’re going to gain that community support.  And it’s been very different from compact to compact, and I know our locals are very concerned about it as well, so if you could define that for us I think that we both would be appreciative.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Sure.

SENATOR DENHAM:  And not just concerning this compact, but…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Future, because there are other compacts coming.  So that would be just a word as you come up.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Okay.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I think it was mentioned earlier, lots of revenue numbers being thrown around.  It seems as though the only revenue number that we can count on is the $23.5 million, is that correct?  Is that really, at the end of the day, the only thing we can count on in terms of hard numbers?

MS. HICKS:  It’s true.  The Tribe does not add another machine and just maintains the 2,000—$23.4 million would be the amount coming to the State.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So that’s the base?
MS. HICKS:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the upside is what, from your vantage point?  The Department of Finance, any of you can answer.  I mean, how do we get to the higher number?  The Governor put out a number in his press release—$1.8 billion, so that’s a lot higher than counting on 
$23.5 million, so how did you, the Administration, come up with that number?
MS. HICKS:  The $1.8 billion is based on if the Tribe were ever to basically get up to the 5,000 level, so it is.  The best case scenario—if 5,000, that’s what we could expect.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when did you estimate they would get up to that 5,000 level?

MS. HICKS:  I’m sorry?  When?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You say it’s based on getting the 5,000 slots.  I mean, your numbers start somewhere—right?  Does that start with 5,000 slots the day this thing is approved?

MS. HICKS:  Oh, I see.  I think when I did my calculations actually, like over 24 years, if you started from the day, let’s say in early 2007 when, assuming it’s been ratified, it’s been approved by Interior…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Five thousand slots in 2007?

MS. HICKS:  Yes, let’s say 2007 for 24 years.  It would be—I think it was like over $1.95 million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. HICKS:  So you kind of do take into account that there is going to be obviously some ramping up.  And we can’t say for sure when the Tribe will actually start putting in new machines, although we know that they’re at 2,000 now; they can use more machines.  And we anticipate that they will start putting them in.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, it really isn’t $1.8 billion.  Because Chairman Milanovich has said he’s not going to even open his facility to get the 5,000 until seven years from now at the earliest.

MS. HICKS:  I heard that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, just so we can safely say, so that high number, that maximum number, we know the bar is $23.5 per year/$11,000 per slot, but the high number is, we can never reach that given he’s not even going to open his facility until 2014?

MS. HICKS:  I don’t want to say no.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Unless there are some slots that I don’t know about somewhere.  I mean, how do you reach that number?

MS. HICKS:  Right.  And it also would depend, really….and again, it was an estimate, because it does depend on what the net win is for the Tribe on those additional slots too.  So we did base it on their current net win.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’m sorry, but this is where the Legislature, during budget time, really asks hard questions from the Administration when your estimations don’t add up to the benefit.  The Governor said that tribes need to pay the State of California something for these particular compacts.  And the number he’s throwing out is $1.8 billion and yet I don’t see any way for us to get to $1.8 billion, and so we can’t really count on $1.8 billion given this particular compact if you ramp up the estimated starts on day one with 5,000 slots, that’s all I’m asking.
MS. HICKS:  Right.  And I don’t want to say that the $1.8 billion is impossible, because it is also dependent on the net win of the…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The 15 percent, you mean?

MS. HICKS:  Correct.  Well, 15 percent of the net win, so it would also depend on what the Tribe’s net win was for those additional machines.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did you guys, did the Administration and the Department of Finance, I hope, run spread sheets on this or some sort of revenue projection?  

MS. HICKS:  We figured out based on…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Don’t tell me you did it on a piece of paper.  I mean, this is the Department of Finance for the State of California and I mean, did you run a revenue sheet on this; a projection?

MS. HICKS:  The compact negotiations are actually confidential and the Department of Finance isn’t involved in those revenue projections until the compact is released.  And so, we…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So what is your estimation of the real revenues now that it is released?

MS. HICKS:  We are still in agreement that the $1.8 billion can be realized over the term of the compact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Can you send me that spread sheet, because I’d sure like to see how you get there?  And what kind of projections; and what kind of numbers that would actually allow us to get to that number without the 1,000 slots not even being in operation until seven years from now.  And you really believe that we can get there.

MS. HICKS:  I think based on the net win calculation it’s possible.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The net win calculation on the 15 percent?

MS. HICKS:  Correct.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Mr. Chairman?
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

SENATOR BATTIN:  I don’t know if we’re ever going to find realization on that because it’s an estimate.  But for the State to figure out what to do with the money, how about this, how about we don’t spend it until we have it?  And instead of projecting and spending it in advance, we wait until it comes into our budget and then we can say well, that year we got this much so that’s how much we can spend.  That would be a way to not have to over spend. 

I do appreciate your line of thought, because there was a previous compact that was told that we were going to be $300 million and it came in at $16 million.  So, I do appreciate that, but I do believe, as said before, that the Agua Caliente, both of their facilities now have room for expansion of those machines.  

So, I think they will move up relatively quickly to 4,000, and then depending on how the market develops, and the Coachella Valley is literally on fire in terms of its growth and people coming in as tourists, I think that they will meet that market demand.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I think Senator Battin is correct.  I mean, at the end of the day, what we’re voting on in this committee is, is this a good deal?  And I don’t think we’re voting on it is it a good deal based on anything other than what the Governor has told us we’re going to make off this deal.  So we’re doing our due diligence and we’re asking projection questions.  And I’ve got to tell you that it’s a little scary that the Department of Finance didn’t run projections on this until the compact was released, which was barely last week, but yet the Governor’s press release preceded the Department of Finance giving him that projection.  Because I’m sure the Governor didn’t run his press release with an estimated—right?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Well, I mean, it is an estimate because we don’t know exactly what’s going to happen with the 3,000 machines—how much money they’re going to bring in.  And, it was based on what we know their current net win is now.  But you’re right—it could change.  It could go up.  It could go down.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I appreciate that.  In terms of, if you will, the general thinking on the fixed annual—I think you heard me ask the Tribe this, but on one aspect of the compact we’re saying we want $23.4 million no matter what the base—correct—$11,000 per slot.  

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  On the other part of the compact in terms of the additional 2,000 slots, we’re saying we want a percentage—
15 percent.  The question I have is, why didn’t we just ask for a fixed amount over the entire life of….if we really care about real cash flow, then we could have said we want $50 million for 4,000 slots.  But instead, we said $23.4 for 2,000 slots and 15 percent on the additional 2,000 slots.  I mean, what were the negotiations?  Why didn’t we just simply fix a number if we’re so worried about meeting projections or counting on dollars?  Just your thought process.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.  We look at the existing machines a little bit differently too, because currently the Tribe is authorized to operate those 2,000 machines and they pay into the SDF.  So, here we want to negotiate something….we made it a fixed number, just like Chairman Milanovich said, so that we could both know, the State would know what they’re getting, the Tribe would know what they’re paying, so it adds some certainty.  With respect to the additional, it’s kind of, okay, these are new machines and, Tribe, when you do well, the State will do well, and it will kind of fluctuate.  So 15 percent, really great/not so great, but we kind of…
SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s the not so great that we worry about because that would tell us whether it’s a better deal.  So, why not the Governor saying $70 million to count on no matter what?  Why the percentage, I guess, is the question?  Do you think there’s that much upside in this for the State on the additional 2,000 slots?

MS. SHIMAZU:  If there’s an upside to it?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, I mean, that’s why we’re getting a percentage—right?  If not, we’d just ask for a fixed number.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.  And it is.  It’s because we’re not sure what the net win will be.  And I don’t want to speak for the Tribe, but it would be hard for them since they don’t know also, for us to just kind of come up a number that’s not based on anything.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But we did for the $23 million.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Yes, but we knew what the net win was for those 2,000.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Slots.  Okay, fair enough.  And are we getting all the revenue possible from this Tribe in terms of negotiating with it?  They have tables.  They have card tables—correct.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But yet we didn’t ask for any payment based on those tables.  Why wouldn’t we include card tables?  Why just slots?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.  Well, the ’99 Compact deals just with slot machines.  And I’m trying to think if in other compacts we have done…

SENATOR BATTIN:  We currently get a B for a table, or is there a limitation on per table?

MS. SHIMAZU:  No, it’s just on slot machines for the ’99, and in this compact too, it would just be based on slots.  That was a negotiated point.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, there’s no payments required on any table games?  That’s my question.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And why is that, again?

MS. SHIMAZU:  I mean, it’s not provided for in the compact.  We follow the 1999…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  ________ compact, that’s why I’m asking you.

SENATOR BATTIN:  There’s not a restriction on the tables, is there?

MS. SHIMAZU:  That’s true.  Thank you, Senator Battin.

SENATOR BATTIN:  There’s a restriction in the constitution on the games that they can play.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.  And they can operate those.

SENATOR BATTIN:  But there is not a restriction on how many tables they can have.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.  The 1999 Compact has a cap on the number of licenses that are available, so you’re right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does somebody oversee those tables from the State of California?  I mean, to make sure everything is operating legally.

MS. SHIMAZU:  I want to say the Division of Gambling Control, but I would…

SENATOR BATTIN:  And the Tribal Gaming Commissions through the National Indian Gaming Commission as well.  Actually, there’s three levels of regulation that they are under.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. SHIMAZU:  NIGC does…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So again, a card club, we ask them to pay so much per table in order to look at the enforcement, but if you have a card table here that has no revenue stream in the State of California, then there’s no charge for that?  Who’s paying for….I mean, at the end of the day, someone’s paying for the enforcement.
MS. SHIMAZU:  Well, the money that goes into the SDF currently pays for the regulation.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are we doing the SDF anymore?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Not with this.  It will cease.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  So then?

MS. SHIMAZU:  What we’ve done with other compacts though, is we took out that portion that other tribes have also come out of the SDF and now I believe that money comes out of the General Fund.  So it doesn’t come out of the SDF, so that the tribes that pay into it are not paying for the regulationed tribes that are not paying into it.

SENATOR BATTIN:  SB 288 did that in language.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you know a little bit about that bill?

SENATOR BATTIN:  I do.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I guess the question again, you’ve answered it.  You just didn’t fill in it was necessary to do card games.  You just gave them a pass to capture revenue; you just did slots, right?  

MS. SHIMAZU:  I would say it was a negotiated point.  Obviously, it’s all in negotiation.  There are things, and maybe the State would like in the best of all possible worlds, but we do negotiate in good faith with the tribes.

SENATOR BATTIN:  They don’t need a compact to do the table.  They have the constitution of the State of California for that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I guess the question I have is based also on the fact that you’ve got an exclusivity issue, and we’re just talking about card tables, and that’s Riverside, Los Angeles, San Bernardino, and San Diego Counties, correct?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And this language precludes any person or entity from then engaging in any gaming activity if it involved an amendment to the constitution, correct?

MS. SHIMAZU:  I’m sorry, could you repeat the question?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  In other words, if the exclusivity language you have in it, at this point in time, regarding card tables, we’re talking card tables for a moment, you’re not taxing them?  Putting anything on that?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Okay.  I got you.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does this then preclude anyone else or card club that is currently paying for this—they’re paying for regulation, correct?

MS. SHIMAZU:  The card clubs?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, within vicinity.  

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But yet you have card tables that aren’t necessarily being charged in your compact, correct?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.  The card tables are not charged.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who pays for the regulation, that’s my….we’re going around and around on this, but there’s no charge for regulation?
MS. SHIMAZU:  Well, I think the money that’s in the SDF pays for the regulation, correct.  (off mic talking to someone)  I should probably defer to the Finance then.  I apologize.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Finance, just jump in.

MS. HICKS:  I’m sorry.  I believe that we only have the ability to regulate Class-3 gaming in California, and so, that’s Las Vegas style gambling.  And so, I don’t think we have any authority to regulate those other types of gaming.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Class-2 types.

MS. HICKS:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And under the Amended Compact, the Tribe is required to pay a flat $2 million?

MS. HICKS:  I’m sorry, for the?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Into the trust fund.

MS. HICKS:  Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, correct, $2 million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And again, why not a percentage of the revenue on that?  We get a flat payment, and I think I mentioned earlier that some estimations might say might be $4.6 million.  It was a lot less, so somewhere this is medium ground.  Why wouldn’t we do a percentage?  Why a set payment of $2 million?

MS. HICKS:  I think it’s important for the RSTF that we know how much money is going in there.  We want to insure that the non-compact tribes continue to receive that $1.1 million.  So having that, kind of, like with the $23.4 we can all plan and we know it’s there.  Making sure we know…
SENATOR FLOREZ:  You know it’s a set amount, but I guess the question I have from the Administration’s perspective in negotiating this is that is there a commitment to the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund that should have been higher?  I mean, this is 5,000 slots, this is not…

MS. SHIMAZU:  Sure.  That was something we negotiated with the Tribe, but it is approximately four times as much that the Tribe is currently paying into the RSTF.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Alright.  I got it.  But I think you heard me mention earlier in the hearing, $11,000 plus a machine we’re counting on with the $23 million, right?  That’s what it comes out to--$11,000 per machine to get us $23.4, per machine, that you have authorized?  Under this calculation, the Tribe is paying $400 per machine into the Revenue Trust Fund, and I’m just kind of wondering, they’re only paying $400 per machine and yet our revenue in that is $11,000 per machine.  Does that seem equitable, I guess, is my question?

MS. SHIMAZU:  And I’m sorry, because I wasn’t thinking that way.  When during the negotiations we were thinking about we want to increase the payments to the RSTF and make sure that we know how much that it is so we can plan.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so, you don’t see this as some sort of a retreat to non-gaming tribes in the number that you have set—$2 million for a 5,000 slot facility?

MS. SHIMAZU:  No.  We were concentrating on the fact that the Tribe would be paying significantly more to the RSTF.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Because it goes from $500,000 to…

MS. SHIMAZU:  I think it was something like $552,000 to 
$2 million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the Special Distribution Fund, the revenues generated by the Amended Compact then no longer being placed in the Special Distribution Fund?

MS. SHMAZU:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that goes to the General Fund?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The Governor have any plans for the General Fund money at this point in time?

MS. SHIMAZU:  No.  That money would just go into the General Fund.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And we don’t want to spend it, as Senator Battin said, I just want to know if the Governor has, from your vantage point….when it goes to the General Fund is there a…

SENATOR BATTIN:  It would be great if they used it to offset local impacts to tribal gaming.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, your thought.

MS. SHIMAZU:  No, not that I know of.  It would be something that the Legislature can determine where that money is best spent.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the public policy benefit, rather than going to the Special Distribution Fund but going just generally to the General Fund, I mean, there was obviously a big shift.  It used to go into the Special Distribution Fund and now it goes to the General Fund.  I mean, why the change?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Well, it’s going to the General Fund to give some flexibility to the State to determine what they want to do with the additional revenue.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And right now the Special Distribution Fund pays for gaming regulation, local government impact, shortfalls in the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, so all of these General Fund dollars now we’re getting, are we going to cover all that and other items?

MS. SHIMAZU:  The regulation, like we’ve done with other compacts, we would expect that to come out of the General Fund.  With respect to mitigation, the Amended Compact provides for the TEIR process and the requirement that the Tribe enter into binding our governmental agreements so that they basically do a document to be able to identify all the things that need to be mitigated, and then they are able to negotiate with the county or impact the city to actually pay for any mitigation that needs to be done, any additional services the Tribe may need.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask you about the exclusivity.  Now we used to have exclusivity with the whole state
MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then we have now gone down to core areas, and why the fundamental push for that?  The core areas, I mean, why Riverside, San Bernardino County, why not keep it as we had it in the ’99 Compacts to a statewide policy or standard?  What was the shift there?

MS. SHIMAZU:  It was a shift that we had been….actually, with the other compacts that we have amended too, it has been the same.  There’s been a zone of exclusivity that has been in the compact and we continued that here.  The fact, when you asked, like, the four counties that was something that we negotiated with the Tribe.  And I think that as Mr. Simons pointed out, that we are working on some language because of some concerns from the Department of Interior.  Do you want to tell you what that is?
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.

MS. SHIMAZU:  It was some concerns with actually the last sentence in 3.2, so we’re thinking of amending that language.  But it would provide that if a constitutional amendment were done that allowed Class-3 gaming at the horse tracks, that that would not be a breach of exclusivity.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right now I think, and Terry might have had problems, we believe that, yes, exclusivity could have been breached with the current language in the language before you but I think they had some concerns.  So we thought, okay, let’s not just say….before it was any repeal of 1A, or an amendment to 1A, it would not be a breach.  And then they thought, well, where could there be a breach?
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And do you think there might be a better way to achieve that other than the language you’ve mentioned in terms of the poison pill I’ve mentioned that brings us to that point of exclusivity?  I mean, is that the only solution that the Administration has considered, is what you’ve just mentioned?

MS. SHIMAZU:  I don’t know.  It is what we’re considering now.  We need to have exclusivity in the compacts.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I understand that.  And exclusivity in the compacts says that other than an Indian tribe with a federally approved Class-3 gaming compact, and so, you’re using what standard for that?  So, in other words, is it federally; is it state; is it, if you will, anyone with Class-3?  You just mentioned horse racing, for example.  I mean, is that why we’re making this amendment, in order to keep that zone?
MS. SHIMAZU:  Well, it would be….so any fairly recognized tribe that had a Class-3 gaming compact with the State; that would not be a breach of exclusivity if they operate a gaming facility in any of these four counties.  In addition, what we’re thinking of doing is also saying that if a horse track has Class-3 gaming within that zone of exclusivity, that that would also not constitute breach of exclusivity.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The environmental protection…

SENATOR BATTIN:  I’m sorry, say that again.

MS. SHIMAZU:  We’re thinking of adding language then, that provides the basically exempt.  So if they’re a horse track…
SENATOR BATTIN:  What four counties are you talking about?

MS. SHIMAZU:  And I’m sorry, this would also require a constitutional amendment.

SENATOR BATTIN:  I got that.

MS. SHIMAZU:  It was Riverside, Los Angeles, San Bernardino, and San Diego.  So that basically this compact would remain intact, and the funding mechanisms, the revenue, would continue if that were to happen.  If the people wanted to extend Class-3 gaming to horse track racing, that that would not be a breach of exclusivity for this Tribe under this Amended Compact.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Are you actually going to say racetracks, horse tracks, or are you just talking that as an example?  Are you thinking, like, card clubs as well?

MS. SHIMAZU:  We were thinking about language with the horse tracks….with the racetracks, I’m sorry.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Why?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Well, I think that there has been a concern about horse track racing that the industry, as a whole, that we also are concerned about and it was a way to maybe, you know, people were worried that this was going to prevent others from doing these kinds of gaming.  So, it was just for this Tribe, it wouldn’t be a breach of exclusivity, and I’m probably not explaining this well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  There is probably a much better solution in terms of what the State can do on its side to mitigate than, in essence, creating continual wars between tracks and card clubs and others as they fight in this battle for slots, and I hope the Administration will be open to that.  Because I think from our vantage point here in the building, that doesn’t necessarily bring about any good policy other than, in essence, watching this thing transpire from, if you will, a zone that somehow protects these folks.  So I hope that we can have some discussions on that issue looking at the amendment.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Oh, absolutely.  And this would not say….we’re not saying that the tracks can run Class-3 gaming, it would just be if the people decided; there was a constitutional amendment; that was allowed; this wouldn’t be a breach of exclusivity.  So we’re working on that language with the Tribe.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  On the environmental aspects, protections, anything in the environmental portion of the compact you would like to expand or highlight on?  I think you’ve heard most of the discussion.

MS. SHIMAZU:  For the environmental provisions, it is similar to the provisions that we’ve had in prior amended compacts.  I mean, I think it’s an important point.  We wanted those intergovernmental agreements between the Tribe and the locals, and that was something that we were able to negotiate with the Tribe.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s talk about the labor components.  Again, the ’99 Compacts were the model, is that correct, for the labor?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.  The Amended Compact does not repeal or amend what is currently in the ’99 Compact.  And the Tribe did adopt the model TLRO from the ’99 Compact, so that is currently in place now, and so we didn’t change that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And so, from the Administration’s point of view the labor aspects are just ’99 Compact extensions?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I guess my last question deals with mitigation, and I don’t know if other members have questions.  I think Senator Battin somewhat referred to it; you mentioned it as well—horse racing in terms of trying to figure out ultimately, which I think, again, is this poison pill we have in this, and I think you’re trying to resolve, which is, if indeed a facility was successful, horse racing is a good example; it could be others; it could be card clubs; it might be others; that allowed them to do Class-3, then the tribes get to make a decision ultimately whether they downsize or don’t pay the State anything because of the particular provisions of exclusivity.  The question I have from the Administration’s point of view is, do you see mitigation as an important part of these negotiations, as well, to other industries?  I think I’ve asked at every single hearing, horse racing, others, industries that are also creating jobs in California.  Senator Vincent has been very strong on that point during all of our hearings.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that part-in-parcel of what you’re…

MS. SHIMAZU:  Well, the way we address mitigation though is, going back to the document that needs to be done, so they look at certain things and then determine whether or not there’s going to be an impact from the gaming.  And I personally don’t know if there have been studies or anything done to indicate that tribal gaming actually has an impact on the tracks or other industries, and so, there would have to be a nexus, but we have not approached that with the tribes.  And it would be….I kind of don’t want to get to subsidizing another private industry too, with the money the tribes make, so that is kind of a tricky point there.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  So in other words, on the tribal side you didn’t put in your compact that they have to mitigate for any other industries.
MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But on the State side of our general revenue flow, that is the discussion that obviously the Legislature and the Governor should enter into in terms of whether or not we have, in essence, forced some sort of mitigation on our side given that we’ve agreed to this compact.  Is that what we’re trying to solve?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Certainly.  We would look forward having that conversation with you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Excellent.  Members, do you have any questions.  Yes, Senator Vincent.

SENATOR EDWARD VINCENT:  You know, you’ve mentioned horse racing, and I….but anyway….I want you to know this I look back, and when you talked about horse racing and you said that _________ about it.  I can go back to Pocahontas and John Smith back in 1620 at Plymouth Rock, and saw what happened to the Indians, and how they moved, and what they did.  And to make a long story short, when they ended up in California, when they left and tried to go to Mexico and the president brought them back and put them on reservations, San Carlos Reservation, which was dump, well, little did I know when I came here from back East, that I would have an opportunity to do what I was able to do before Indians had machines.  Tony Cardenas and I made some tremendous speeches on the Assembly Floor to give the Indians machines, because I think they earned it and deserved it.  
My situation, I think we’ve got an interest here in California that we’re the tops—tops.  We used to be in the 90’s with the horse racing industry—we were tops.  We had the best horses.  We had the best trainers.  We had the best tracks.  If you talk about the Triple Crown, we look at the Kentucky Derby, and then we look at the Preakness, then we look at the Del Mar Stakes.  We could do out do them with Del Mar, Hollywood Park, and Santa Anita, and those three parks are here in California—we’ll out do them.  
I’ve tried to talk to the Indians, and I’ll do it again, about if they don’t want anybody to have machines, and I can understand that too.  But there are 11 states that have machines at tracks.  And what that does, it subsidizes the purses.  It keeps the jockeys there.  It keeps the crowds there, because the purses are bigger.  
But in California, we used to be on the top.  We’re going down.  And we’re asleep in the horse racing industry, and we’re going to wake up dead because the tracks are leaving.  Why would you run your horse in California for $100 and you can run him in one of these other states….for instance, I graduated from the University of Iowa, there was a track called Prairie Meadows.  They were going out of business.  They put slots on their track.  Mountaineer Track in West Virginia, born and raised 30 miles from there—Mountaineer, going out of business.  They put slots there.  Well, those tracks are dumps compared to what we’ve got in California.  
When I first went to the Kentucky Derby, my first time going there, I knew Shoemaker, Jockey Shoemaker, and I met Shoemaker and some other people down there and they would tell me about California.  But when I went to Kentucky Derby, I’ve heard about it and I thought Churchill Downs was beautiful.  Churchill Downs is a dump compared to our tracks—a dump.  We’ve got the best tracks in the world here.  But you know what?  We’re going to lose it and lose a lot of other things.  So I would hope that the Indians would listen more.  If they wanted to get involved in it, I think they should.  But if they don’t, that’s the end of horse racing as we know it in the State of California, because the purses are smaller, the fields are smaller, and the trainers and the owners are leaving and I hope you think about that.  Thanks
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator Vincent.  Any other comments for members of the Administration?
MS. HICKS:  If I could just add, I think that there was some discussion earlier about the annual revenue to the General Fund.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

MS. HICKS:  And you were asking about revenue in this year, and I think there was some confusion between calendar and fiscal year.  In this fiscal year we would gain $11.7 million.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so we’re getting half of the $23….

MS. HICKS:  Half of the $23.4, correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then you owe us the spread sheet, correct?

MS. HICKS:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Because we want to figure out how we get to $1.8 billion without the club starting seven years from now—the 1,000 slots.  And you’re going to show us the projection on the 
15 percent?
MS. HICKS:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Any other questions, Members?

MS. SHIMAZU:  If I could just…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Of course.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Also, I know with the $11.7, but that would only take effect once the compact is effective, so we’d have to go through ratification and have to be approved by Interior before the $23.4 million kicked in.  So, for this year, it would be when it became effective.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  Yes, Senator Romero.

SENATOR ROMERO:  Thank you.  Let me just ask, the compact expires when?

MS. SHIMAZU:  December 31, 2030.

SENATOR ROMERO:  So in the year 2023.
MS. SHIMAZU:  2030.

SENATOR ROMERO:  When does the compact expire?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Oh, I’m sorry.  Not the Amended Compact, but just the compact?  The term is 2020, but there is provision that allows the Tribe and the State to start negotiating.  If the negotiation isn’t completed, it extends it into 2022.

SENATOR ROMERO:  Okay, so in 2020 or 2022.  Why amend it now?  Why bring forth the amendments to the compact now?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Well, the Tribe requested to negotiate with us, and we have the obligation to negotiate in good faith, and we did.  
UNIDENTIFIED:  (Dialog on dais, inaudible….off mic)

MS. SHIMAZU:  I’m sorry, Senator, did I answer your question?

SENATOR ROMERO:  (Inaudible….off mic)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any other questions, Members?  Okay.  Thank you.  Yes, Senator Battin.

SENATOR BATTIN:  I don’t, however, if you could stick around, that would be great, because I would like to see the language of the amendment that is being drafted right now.  And I may or may not have questions for you as to why it says what it does or the genesis behind it.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Fair enough.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, that would assume that we’re going to be here a lot longer than….thank you very much.  

The next panel, if we could:  Dana Hobart, City Councilmember, City of Rancho Mirage; Don Bradley, City Manager, Cathedral City.

DANA HOBART:  Senator Battin, how are you?

SENATOR BATTIN:  I’m fine.  And how are you, Mr. Hobart?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Go ahead.

MR. HOBART:  Thank you.  My name is Dana Hobart.  I’m mayor pro tem of the City of Rancho Mirage.  And I’m essentially the designated spokesperson for the city involving this matter.  
I would like to say that the analysis of the compact, the proposed first amendment that I’m going to give you is based on a rather hurried analysis because nobody in the city has had an opportunity to review it and to make comments.  Our city attorney has been on vacation.  Our council does not meet during the month of August, although we do have a meeting scheduled on the 31st of August.  So if I make any mistakes with respect to my analysis, please understand that the last thing I would do, would be to intentionally make a mistake, figuring that somebody here is going to spot it and think I’m trying to pull the wool over your eyes.  I wouldn’t do that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But one thing we want to be clear about is you don’t want us to slow down this process until your council gets together, is that correct?

MR. HOBART:  I do think you should slow down this process, and I’m going to explain to you why.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Go ahead.

MR. HOBART:  Rancho Mirage believes that the new compact should be briefly delayed.  It needs modification to protect cities which can be and are often negatively impacted by casino development.  In our view, a fast track is not an appropriate process for a pact agreement with the Tribe that will extend the Tribe’s gaming activities for another 
10 years beyond what they have under the current pact.

Rancho Mirage is not here to attack or to challenge the concept of Indian gaming, but rather to ask for minimal amendments that allow ours and similarly situated cities to modestly protect themselves over the coming 25 years.  Rancho Mirage is currently bargaining with the Agua Caliente Tribe concerning environmental impacts on the city regarding its current expansion program.  As you have heard, they are in the process of building a significant hotel—400 rooms or so, 173 feet tall.  In negotiating in that situation, I’d like you to consider the situation that will become a matter of concern whenever the third casino is determined to be established.  I’ve heard the Chairman indicate that it was about seven years out—possibly sooner; possibly later.  It was an estimate.  And what you have to do is, you have to think in terms of what that can cause at that time.  
While we are in the process of negotiating with the Tribe concerning the current expansion that it’s undergoing, from which I’m going to give you some of the experience that I’ve gained as being a part of that, but you have to think of it in terms of the third casino down the road.  Because the issues that will be brought forth at that time are going to be similar, if not identical, to the issues that Rancho Mirage faces in connection with the current process of expansion that the Tribe is undergoing.

We have, the City of Rancho Mirage, currently has in its negotiation posture with the Tribe, no tools with which to contest differences of opinion.  We have no power under the original compact to compel a dispute that we might have over the effect of a mitigation measure or reasonable compensation to go to a third party arbitrator.  Actually, the bottom line is, we have no authority at all.  We can’t even compel the Tribe to negotiate with us.  And if this compact is ratified on a slow track or fast track, a city that’s similarly situated with Rancho Mirage will have the problems that we have.  Not a matter of negotiations on a level field, but rather one side with all of the authority and the impacted city with absolutely zero authority.  I don’t mean a little bit of authority, it’s not hyperbole when I say we have no authority at all to compel anything in the negotiation process. 
Let me give you a little bit of background about Rancho Mirage:  We’re a 16,000 resident community.  We are essentially a retirement community.  Our proximity to the current Agua Caliente Casino is next door, and I mean, literally next door.  But we are not a city within which the casino exists.  I use those words because those are magic words that are in the current compact that’s being proposed.  So when I talk about a within city, I’ll be talking about, we are a city that is merely adjacent.  We don’t have so much as a roadway separating us.  We are side by side.  Yet, we, under the compact, under the terms of this compact, would have no authority at all if this compact is ratified, no matter what the impact, and no matter what the required mitigation measures might be.  We are, in this case, the only city that borders the project.

The Tribe, as you know and as you’ve heard, advertises…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me interrupt you for a moment.  Senator Battin, you had a question.

MR. HOBART:  Sure.

SENATOR BATTIN:  He’s a constituent of mine.  I didn’t want to interrupt him.

MR. HOBART:  You may, I invite that.  As a lawyer, Senator Battin, the judges don’t let get as far as you all have allowed me.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Mr. Hobart, I have just a couple of questions.  You know I’m very familiar with the site, as well as you.  Right now, if the Tribe wanted to build the….if there wasn’t a casino involved at all and within one of their sections of land if they wanted to build that same hotel, would you have any way of stopping them if they so chose to do it?

MR. HOBART:  We would have no way at all.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Right.  Even if it’s not even involved with gaming.  If they just said, This is where we’re going to put up a hotel, because this is our sovereign land we’re going to do this.  This is the rights we’re given in the U.S. Constitution.

MR. HOBART:  We wouldn’t have any right to stop them.  But it’s not just a hotel, it’s a gambling empire and that’s a major difference impact wise.

SENATOR BATTIN:  I understand that.  It’s both because they’re building a hotel next to ACC.  The other part is, if the City of Palm Springs was going to do something that you didn’t like and you are abut them right next door, share a common border, you wouldn’t have any ability to stop that either.
MR. HOBART:  Well, you’re comparing apples to oranges, Senator Battin.

SENATOR ROMERO:  Senator Battin, why don’t we let him finish his presentation and then we can open up.  Why don’t we let him finish his presentation and then you’ve got a series of questions.  I think we’ve done that for the most part with other witnesses.  Why don’t we just let him present?  He’s come a long way.  Let’s hear what he has to say.  Sir, please proceed.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Okay.

MR. HOBART:  As I was indicating, and as Senator Battin and I both know, the Agua Caliente advertisers, such as this LA Times ad, “Agua Caliente Casino in Rancho Mirage features….”  You heard Assemblywoman Garcia say that the casino, to use her words, is in Rancho Mirage.  Well, it’s almost in.  And it makes a major difference that almost compared to what everybody says and thinks.  It’s because in the terms of the compact the definition of an impacted city is specifically the state, the county, and any city within which the casino is located.  Now if the casino is in that category, that is considered an impacted city—an impacted entity.  But if it’s only next door in the current definition….which I’m hoping that you’ll be persuaded to bring about change on….in the current definition we have no rights.  But if we were included in the term of an impacted city, we would have rights.  And that’s what I’m saying—thinking again in terms not of the project that’s in place now going on in Rancho Mirage, but we’re talking about a project down the road, five years, seven years out, when some other city is going to be similarly situated as a possibility.  Not positively, only as a possibility.  If, for example, the Tribe built that third casino on some portion of land abutting Cathedral City, or abutting Palm Springs but not within Palm Springs, those cities would have absolutely zero rights under this compact.  Why?  Because it’s not a casino that’s going to be within the city.  It takes only a minor tweaking of the language to broaden that to include a city that is similarly situated to Rancho Mirage.
In the terms of the first amendment, we are an interested person.  And an interested person is defined as follows:  A person or entity having “a nexus to the project.”  Well, a nexus to the project is a pretty vague term.  Nexus, what does that mean?  To take the simplest interpretation….and by the way, if you do as I did and you Google the word “nexus” in the find, you’ll get about 300,000 entries and you’ll see that it can be a pretty vague word in certain contexts….but the Webster’s Dictionary defines it as a connection, tie, or link.  Now, a city is an interested person if there’s a connection, tie or link.  Thermal way down in the far end of the Coachella Valley would be an example.  They could say they had a connection.  Their people come up there and gamble at the casino.  The city of Los Angeles could conceivably make the same claim.  But the point I make is, that the level of involvement for a city that is so attached to a casino, is literally a disrespect to that city.  We shouldn’t be an interested person; we should be an impacted person.
Think of this, Rancho Mirage has, for the life of the casino that’s there now, had its fire department available to the Tribe; its ambulance service available to the Tribe; it’s police.  We’ve paid, the city of Rancho Mirage has paid in the past, it will be changing, the county has negotiated a new agreement with them, but up until now, it’s been our ambulances going down there; our fire engines, if any were called down there.  And they go down because they go down in connection with a personal bodily injury type of situations.  Our police have been there.  We’re not a distant participant—we’re a close neighbor and we like being a neighbor.  We want to be a neighbor.  We want to be of help to the Tribe.  We just would like to have a situation where if we became the city that’s impacted with a third casino, that we not be disadvantaged as we have been in connection with the current expansion project.  We shouldn’t be placed in that position, nor should any other city be placed in that position.
Under the existing compact, as you know, only the State has the authority to enforce the compact.  Under the proposed first amendment, the Governor’s office has rightly seen, and the Tribe has rightly agreed to, expanding the people who have some authority for enforcement.  It’s going to be the State; it’s going to be the county; and it’s going to be any city within which the casino exists.  They will have the rights to arbitrate differences in disputes concerning mitigation and compensation issues, and that’s what we ask.  
Under the existing compact, “the Tribe has the duty to make a good faith effort to mitigate all significant adverse off-reservation environmental impacts” (a quote from the compact).  And that’s true even if they’re submitted by Rancho Mirage.  The Tribe has a duty to make a good faith effort to mitigate those impacts.  

But in the current contract for a city that is not an impacted city, that is an adjacent city like we are, they don’t have that duty to attempt in good faith to mitigate the negative impacts of the casino.  The only thing that they have to do is explore mitigation measures.  That’s it.  They don’t have to do anything other than say, Well, we explored it, and we rejected it.  There’s nothing else that the city can do beyond that point in this compact.  
If we were defined as an impacted city, just expanding the definition very slightly, we would then be able to have some rights for mitigating the negative impacts the casinos produce.  And they do produce, and I don’t want to get into them; I don’t want to be harping on anything negative about the Tribe.  They’re good people.  They run an honest business.  All I’m wanting is that the city of Rancho Mirage have parity; have equal footing so that we can negotiate for ourselves.
We are not only under the gun because of the suddenness within which this has all become on the horizon; we’re unable to be fully prepared, as you can see by my presentation.  But I did see something in the newspaper two days ago that the governors of 50 states had written a letter to President Bush, signed by 50 governors, and I’m assuming California was one of them, complaining that the federal government has just imposed some new rules to take over the national guard, to federalize it more than it is.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let’s get to the compact.  What’s the connection there?

MR. HOBART:  Without having been talked about, without having been brought into it.  The city has never been brought into it by either side.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, you’re here today.  That’s what we’re doing.  You are being brought into it.

MR. HOBART:  I’m trying to show you why we’re unprepared, and I’m trying to explain the situation, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How much more prepared do you want to be?


MR. HOBART:  I don’t want to be any more prepared than I am because I know that there’s a big move to get this done in 24-hours, or 48-hours, for reasons that I  have no understanding.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It isn’t going to happen in 24 hours.


MR. HOBART:  I can’t imagine why this has to be fast tracked.  I don’t see any detriment to the state or any detriment to the Tribe if the process is slowed down just a little bit so that the cities can get their two bits worth in of advice to the negotiators of the State.


SENATOR BATTIN:  Mr. Chairman.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m going to have you finish your testimony and then we’re going to move onto the next person.  Are you…


MR. HOBART:  Am I ready to continue?  Yes.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now, we’re not going to take questions.  You’re going to finish your testimony and we’re going to keep going.


MR. HOBART:  When I hear my State Senator raise his hand I shut up.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, at this time I’d like you to finish your testimony, so keep going through it.


MR. HOBART:  Thank you.  Okay.  Once the Tribe has filed a notice of intention to make an expansion or to build a new casino, either one, the cities are given an opportunity to submit their position papers regarding the impacts of the proposed expansion.  We’re given, I think it’s 45 days, to make our position known.  Once we have done that, we go through the completion of the draft….I’ll skip that part, Mr. Chairman because I can see that you’d like me to move on.

We’ll get down to the final.  They issue the final TEIR (tribal environmental impact report).  Now we have the final in front of us.  The city sees that everything they have suggested has been found to be unworthy, but the city believes it is worthy.  And I can tell you, that is the situation today in Rancho Mirage in connection with our negotiations in the current situation, so this isn’t a hypothetical.  I’m telling you, this is what’s happening, and we’re probably the only city that can give it to you exactly that straight, because we are there.  So we see this.  What can we do at that point?  And the answer is, absolutely nothing.

So let me tell you what I think should be done by this committee as a recommendation, and I’m cognizant of Senator Florez comments earlier about making….do you have to accept it black or white the way it is?  In the past, and I’ve been a long time student of Sacramento, in the past, and particularly in connection with the original compact when Gray Davis was governor, the State Senate wasn’t going to ratify something until they got a couple of things.  You may have touched upon at least one of them in your comments.  Or, no, Senator Battin, I think, may have touched on it.  But you don’t have to accept.  If you think that there is merit to the position that Rancho Mirage is advancing, you can push for that amendment and say, Look, that makes sense to us.  We don’t want to ratify it without you guys making a change to allow a city like Rancho Mirage to have some authority.


Now, what I have done is I’ve tried to prepare a draft paragraph and I will give you the sections, but I think that that draft paragraph should be inserted as an amendment, because it’s only a handful of sections and they’re all in Section X.  The words that I would suggest, but they’re not magic words by any means, is to setup a definition of an “adjacent city” so that we have two cities:  One, the city in which the casino resides, and that, becomes an impacted city.  And we have another one, an adjacent city.  And the definition of an adjacent city would be as follows:  An adjacent city is defined as a city which is immediately adjacent to a city’s sphere of influence, or to a tribal casino, or to any of the casinos ancillary features such as, parking lots, hotel grounds, or an entertainment facility, access roads, shopping centers readily accessible to casino patrons, utility or waste and disposal systems, and the like.  That way if that gets added to this bill in sections….I said I was going to give you the sections, I’ll do it right now:  It should be added to the first sentence of Section 10.8.2(a); it should be added to the first sentence of Section 10.8.3(a)…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It probably would be easier if you handed us that piece of paper.  It really would be.


MR. HOBART:  And I will. There’s only two more.  Let me just finish the record on it so you’ll have it.  But I’ll be glad to give you this piece of paper.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that paper will be faster than the transcript, which will be about three weeks from now.


MR. HOBART:  Okay.  Right.  Hopefully that will be before the ratification occurs.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, we’re adjourning in two weeks.


MR. HOBART:  The first sentence of 10.8.4, and the first sentence of Section 10.8.8, which would assure them that it would become an adjacent city.  So I will give that.  I’ll tear off my little conclusionary comment, and I’ll give that.  I won’t bore you with…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I think the tearing would have been longer than your concluding statement, so why don’t you give your conclusion now.


MR. HOBART:  What it does, Senator Florez, it reminds me of my grandmother’s old adage, not bad for the group to remember, is that “haste makes waste.”


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you.


MR. HOBART:  Anyway, let me say, because the pact will be in existence until 2030, the future is murky at best.  Having necessary tools, even if ultimately they go unused, that protects the cities of the Coachella Valley against the negative impacts that a casino can create could be of great value to Rancho Mirage, to Cathedral City, and to Palm Springs.  I’ll end it with that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Senator Battin, you have questions.


SENATOR BATTIN:  You know, maybe let’s let the panel finish with Mr. Bradley, and then I’ll ask questions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Mr. Bradley, thank you for joining us.  


DON BRADLEY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members of the committee.  I’ll try to keep my comments brief.  I’m from the City of Cathedral City.  I am the city manager.  We have really not had an opportunity to review the compact, but I was asked by your staff if we wanted to be here, and we certainly do.


I think what I will do is try to address our relationship with the Tribe.  We’ve had an excellent relationship with the Agua Caliente Tribe.  Cathedral City is a city that is about 53,000 people, located between the cities of Rancho Mirage and Palm Springs.  There are casinos in Palm Springs and one in Rancho Mirage.  We’re kind of a crossroads city and have impacts from the casino, but really don’t have the benefits of it, so we’ve had to work with the Tribe on a relationship basis in which we’ve tried to nurture and develop with them so that we can have some of the benefits of what they have enjoyed.


In developing that relationship, we have had council members from the Tribe that live in the City of Cathedral City, certainly members of the Tribe that live within the City of Cathedral City.  We are more of a working class community that is in need of tremendous help in different ways.  We are trying all the time to look for how to make something out of nothing in terms of the resources we have available.  The Tribe has been an excellent partner with us in trying to work with us.  


In developing this partnership we have periodic joint council meetings with the tribal council and our city council.  We have a land use agreement that you referred to earlier in the City of Palm Springs, but we also have a similar land use agreement in the City of Cathedral City.  It’s of note to notice that there never has been a dispute in any determination of the City of Cathedral City has made in any tribal lands that have been involved, mostly allotees, I might add, as opposed to tribal trust land.  


We have found the Tribe to be rather proactive in working with us; trying to look for the proverbial win/win situations.  And in fact, even members of the Tribe have helped us with working with allotees where we are currently developing a soccer park, 17-acre soccer park that was in the ownership of an allotee, that with the help of a member of the tribal council and Agua Caliente Band, we were able to purchase that land.  

We have found them to find that our community is their community, and they have tried to work with us reminding us that they were there first, and we have tried to work with them to try to develop the relationship where we respect that.


We have found them to be always cognizant of civic interest; very generous in their approach to working with Cathedral City.  And I thought I would tick off just a couple of things they have done for us by way of the fact that we are not, again, a directly impacted city, but we have had the benefit of them giving to our police department, for example, a little over half-a-million dollars over several years and that has included some that is mostly outright grants as opposed to others that have been in the Special Distribution Fund that we’ve gotten a piece of, not as much as we would have like to, but we certainly have enjoyed getting some benefits from that.  But it’s been mostly their grants that we’ve been able to get from them that we’ve very much enjoyed.  That has dealt with such things as DARE, a gang related activity and suppression program, character counts, traffic enforcement programs, off highway vehicle programs, Citizens on Patrol, police explorers and so on.  There’s been several different things where they’ve tried to assist us with it.  And in the police world, they’ve also provided some vehicles for traffic enforcement and actually, for personnel, as well.  And our fire department, they have actually given us close to a million dollars in various ways.  There’s been a disaster medical assistance cache that we have for large scale emergencies that they keep stocked and is provided at a local facility.  They have provided self-contained breathing apparatus, funding for an ambulance fully equipped and outfitted, funding for a hazardous materials van, including a computer and software, new turnouts for our fire suppression personnel, and partial funding for a 100-foot ladder truck, which is currently on order and will be of assistance to them and to us with their new hotel that they’re actually building just outside of Rancho Mirage.  I mentioned those because we are not directly impacted by the fact that we don’t have a casino in our town, but they have been very generous in trying to look at how they can work with the City of Cathedral City.


With respect to the first amendment that you’re looking at, we have read some newspaper statements about how they will continue to negotiate with any impacted city in which their gaming facility is located.  We expect that that will also include cities like ourselves, where we’re right next door or in the crossroads path of that.  And so we’re looking forward to that.  
We would certainly prefer to be mentioned in the compact in some way to say that either by name, City of Cathedral City, or by the fact that we would be considered an impacted city similar to what the councilmember here mentioned for being an adjacent city, or the fact that we would have some benefit from an intergovernmental agreement that we could rely on.


So basically I’m here to reinforce the fact that we have had a good relationship with them.  We can’t speak to the compact directly, but we do not expect that there wouldn’t be any benefit to the City of Cathedral City that would be withheld. 


I’d be happy to answer any questions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you.  Questions for the panel?  Senator Battin.


SENATOR BATTIN:  Mr. Hobart, let me go back to where we were when we left off.  And I appreciate, and for the rest of the committee, I want you to understand the way the Coachella Valley is situated; it’s just literally nine cities in a row.  They just run right into each other.  There is no….suddenly you’re in Cathedral City; suddenly you’re in Rancho Mirage.  So we get a lot of these adjacency issues all the time.  And I understand your concern, but this is what I was trying to drive at:  The Agua Calientes could build their hotel in Rancho Mirage any way they wanted if it was not associated to a gaming facility whatsoever, right?


MR. HOBART:  When you say, in Rancho Mirage…


SENATOR BATTIN:  Well, on their land.  I guess it’s a matter of semantics.


MR. HOBART:  Well, yeah.


SENATOR BATTIN:  Your city might be on their land, and their…


MR. HOBART:  I doubt that.


SENATOR BATTIN:  But they could build it within this section of land, which is their reservation, the way they wanted to.  You can’t even collect TOT tax from them.


MR. HOBART:  Quite right.


SENATOR BATTIN:  They voluntarily do pass on….they collect it and pass it on because they are a sovereign government.  So what concerns me, and I appreciate your frustration, but what concerns me is that I don’t know if you’d be willing to cede the authority of the City of Rancho Mirage to Cathedral City if they were developing an auto mall or a hotel right on the city line and you would say, No, no, we don’t want you to do that.  We want you to do it this way.  The City of Cathedral City would say, Well, it’s not your right.  You don’t get to do that because it’s in our land.  It’s within our border and we have the authority over this.  And I think that I understand the frustration that you have, and I see that with the county.  Because what you’re talking about is where the casino is at ACC in Rancho Mirage or next to Rancho Mirage, is in the county.  
And I have some irony here you might appreciate.  I have a letter from Roy Wilson, who is the supervisor in that district, and he has a different opinion than what you’ve expressed.  He writes the committee:  “I’m writing to express my strong support for the first amendment to the Tribal State Gaming Compact between the Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians and the State of California.  Riverside County has a long successful relationship with cooperation and a mutual respect for the Tribe.  The two governments have worked closely on land use, economic development, casino impact mitigation, and other mutual concerns.  The county and the Tribe acknowledge economic benefits of tribal gaming as well as impacts on the communities surrounding the reservations.”  And it goes on and on. 

The point, I guess, I wanted to make, was that’s the County of Riverside’s area of authority and they seem to be good with it.  Now I know they’re next door to you, but they’re in the county.  And I know that you might have an issue with another city, but I don’t know if you would be willing to allow Cathedral City to say, We want you to do this and that, and if it was a development on your side of the line not theirs.  And more of a statement, I guess, than anything else.


MR. HOBART:  I’m disheartened to hear that.  I was hoping that it was a question.  


SENATOR BATTIN:  Well…


MR. HOBART:  Because I sure have some answers.  


SENATOR BATTIN:  Well, okay.  I’d be interested in your thoughts on it, certainly.


MR. HOBART:  Well, to begin with, initially, on the first part of your statement, if the city of Cathedral City wanted to build a hotel right next to us, or put an auto mall, or whatever they wanted to do, they’d have every right to.  The difference between that situation and the Tribe is, is that under California law a tribe entering into a gambling operation is in a whole different category.  It’s a horse of a different color.  There is a law, there is this compact, the existing compact, that says a tribe that wishes to develop a gambling casino or expand a current one, has to, must, shall make a good faith effort, to mitigate the offsite negative impacts.
SENATOR BATTIN:  That’s correct.

MR. HOBART:  Now, nobody else has that obligation.  Home Depot, moving next door in Don’s bailiwick, we wished we had it over here but we can’t stop them.


SENATOR BATTIN:  No, but they do have, because you’re the authority over that.  So you could, as the authority on the Home Depot, you could say, we want you to do this, we want you to do that, and if you don’t do what we want, we’re not going to allow you to build your development in our city, and so, it’s up to them to choose.  The difference is, the State of California and the Tribe have a similar agreement.  They said Okay, we’ll make this change, or we will mitigate, and in the ’99 Compact we will pay into the SDF and the money will go out to local governments, and then it’s revision it’s we’ll try to do the impact.  
But my concern is that you’re stepping on Riverside County.  What if the county board of supervisors had a completely different view of what they wanted the Tribe to do than the City of Rancho Mirage?  Who does the Tribe then have to mitigate?  If you said We want the interchange over here and they said No, we want the interchange over there, and they’d agreed to do an interchange, then who wins?  It’s in Riverside County.


MR. HOBART:  The County wins in that situation.  But take the same situation you said, you said that the Tribe’s a sovereign nation.  They don’t want to give up anything to Rancho Mirage.  They don’t want to pay us money.  Yet, because of the State Compact Law, they had to give it to either Rancho Mirage or the county even though they’re in the county, as you say, but they’re a sovereign nation within the county.  They would be a sovereign nation even within the city.  There are just certain obligations that are imposed by law, and the county gets them, the State gets them, but we don’t.  For example, road impacts:  We’re going to have to construct new roads; widen other roads.  And we say that the Tribe should be paying X-dollars for that.  The Tribe says, “No, we should only be paying Y-dollars for that.  And how do we ever get agreement?  The Tribe isn’t compelled to negotiate with us under the old agreement or the new agreement.  So, we either say, Okay, do whatever you want to do; give us whatever—peanuts you’ll give us and we’ll go home.  That’s what we’re faced with before, and now under the new one.


SENATOR BATTIN:  But if you had a city that built a ballpark next door to you and had all that traffic, you would have the same situation.  Or would you say, Wait no; because we’re a city, you have to give us this money to build these roads?  No, they’d say, I’m sorry.  You know what?  We respect your right, neighbor.  We’ll try to be good neighbors and here’s our opinion of what we should give you.  We understand there are impacts.

MR. HOBART:  The difference is the compact.  That’s the difference.  The compact, the existing compact says that the Tribe must attempt mitigate in good faith all of the significant impacts on off-reservation areas.  There’s simply no California law that imposes that duty on another city vis-à-vis or different city.  The whole thing is in the language of this compact (period).  That’s what makes the difference.


SENATOR BATTIN:  And you don’t believe that the current compact as it stands today is…


MR. HOBART:  Not for an adjacent city.  It doesn’t do it…


SENATOR BATTIN:  It doesn’t do that in the ’99 Compact?


MR. HOBART:  No.  The ’99 Compact doesn’t even include the county.


SENATOR BATTIN:  Alright.  So what you’re saying is, you want to go from zero to…


MR. HOBART:  Three instead of two.  That’s all.  We just want to get in there in case that third casino ever gets built on adjacent land to Rancho Mirage.  We want to have the right to negotiate with them like we’re doing now, only but to have the power of arbitration behind us.  That’s all we’re asking for.  And if they don’t come to Rancho Mirage, but rather next door, or adjacent to Cathedral City, or Palm Springs, let them have that authority.  Wherever that third casino goes, let the city that’s going to be adjacent to it have some authority to negotiate it.  Because right now the Tribe can say, as they’re saying to Rancho Mirage, we’ve been negotiating for almost a year.  Our demand was something like $700,000 and their offer, let me just say, that between the two, we’re still hundreds of thousands of dollars apart.  And what can we do about it?  Nothing.  We either take what they say, This is what we’re going to give you, or we say, give us nothing.  We don’t want to take it.


SENATOR ROMERO:  Any other questions from committee members?  Let me just ask this question:  The substance of the issue that’s, again it’s another issue, but part of what I hear you saying then is that what you’re looking at perhaps is some additional time in order to take a look at the compact.  

You mentioned your city council has not yet met.  When is your next scheduled city council?  

MR. HOBART:  We have it scheduled for our August 31st city council meeting.  
SENATOR ROMERO:  And that something, though, that may be problematic for the Legislature.  The Legislature does adjourn for the session, not just the year, but the session, on August 31st.

Okay, no other questions.  Thank you so much to this panel.  Let’s go ahead and move forward.  We’ve got our next panel here.  Jack Gribbon, California Political Director from Unite HERE; Fred Jones, Legislative Advocate, California Coalition Against Gambling Expansion; Angie Wei, Legislative Advocate, California Labor Federation; Rod Blonien, Legislative Advocate, Los Alamitos and Bay Meadow Racetracks in Commerce Club Casino and Hollywood Park Casino.

Could we check with Mr. Florez?  I would like to ask him to return to the committee room.

I think that given that this is probably one of the most controversial parts of the compact….Okay, thank you, Mr. Florez.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, Mr. Gribbon, you can start.

JACK GRIBBON:  Mr. Chairman and Members, thank you for having us.  We appreciate the opportunity to do a number of things here.  First, I’m here with some workers from Agua Caliente, from Morongo, and Cache Creek Casinos who have very brief things to tell you.  Subsequently, I am also here with Rabbi Richard J. Shapiro, who has spoken in depth of the number Agua Caliente workers and wants to talk to you about that.  And then finally, I would like to clear up some misstatements and some big time misunderstandings with respect to the TLRO, the process, etc.

So what I’d like to do is start right now with Denise DeGraf, who is an employee at the Agua Caliente Casino.  And Denise has already been told that she can relax and breathe and it’s not going to be a big deal here, okay.
DENISE DEGRAF:  Hi everyone.  Good evening.  I’m Denise DeGraf and I am a maintenance engineer at Agua Caliente Casino.  And I’m proud to be part of the original team of the Agua Caliente.  I helped open the Agua Caliente Casino in April 2001.  And I want to tell you about what happened to me in there.

First, I want to tell you that if an employee upsets the management there at Agua Caliente in any way, or if you speak up about anything, or if you’re different in any way at Agua Caliente, they make your life a living hell.  I know this to be true because what they’ve done to me is they’ve discriminated against me, first, because of my health problems, and, second, because I’m an openly gay woman.

I began working at Agua Caliente Casino and I developed a chronic asthma problem due to incredibly poor air quality of this smoking casino.  And then as my asthma got worse, my managers used my poor health against me.  And then, I was kept from getting promotions and raises because I had too many absences.  And they would hassle me when my asthma acted up at work.  Finally I had to go on disability, and eventually I was able to get well enough to transfer to another position.  I became a maintenance engineer.

What makes me so angry about this, the reason I was absent was a job related health injury that was not my fault.  It was the casino’s fault.  When I became an engineer I was assigned to change filters on the roof of the casino.  I saw that the air filtration system firsthand.  I was up there changing filters for about a year.  I’ve had lots of experience.  I learned that we were using the wrong filters and they were often way dirty past the time; they were supposed to be changed more often.  And the smoke eaters on the roof were damaged.  They were out of order and we weren’t allowed to fix them because they didn’t want to spend the money.  They were very expensive and they didn’t want to fix them.  This is the Agua Caliente Casino that has a lot of money and they didn’t want to spend the money to fix them.  So I told my managers that the filters were bad and that this was going on and they just said, Use the bad filters anyway.  Just keep on working.  Shut up and put up with everything.  And so that’s what made everybody so sick.  

In addition to being discriminated against because of my job related health condition, one of my lead supervisors, who is this really big tall guy, I had to work with him everyday.  He would make antigay statements about me to other co-workers.  He just didn’t like me.  He talked about starting an anti-lesbian hate group and one day I found screws in my drink and I almost drank my drink.  I stopped and I said, “What is this?”  And I went to one of my other supervisors and I said, “Will you please do something?  Run tape on this,” because we have cameras in our room, and he did and there it was—it was the guy that hated me so much.  He put screws in my drink, and they didn’t even do anything to him.  He was still working there.  They said they did something to him, but they still let him work there.  I mean, this guy was still there.  In a normal job, they would have fired him and let him go.  But he was still there.  So this guy, I couldn’t believe it.  I could have choked to death.  So this is insane.

So today I’m coming forward despite tremendous fear of losing my job because I saw Milanovich here, and I’ve never in testimony like this before.  You know, it’s scary.  I’ve been discriminated against because of my health condition I developed on the job and because I’m a gay woman.  And they’re not allowed….there’s no laws to protect us at work because of tribal land, and the labor laws that are supposed to protect us are not working.  They’re just not working.  And if you’re open about what you think or who you are, you’ll get treated just like I was, and I just need your help.

MR. GRIBBON:  I also wanted to ask Rafael Espitia to speak.  Rafael worked at the Morongo Casino.  I realize we’re talking about the Agua Caliente Compact, but just as Senator Florez, Mr. Chairman, you’ve been talking about impacts.  As you’re going forward, Rafael has a brief story as well.

RAFAEL ESPITIA:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee, my name is Rafael Espitia.  I work in the Casino Morongo for eight years.  I was a truck driver and suddenly my manager decided to pull me out—pick up the trash in the parking lot and empty the trash cans around the whole building in the casino.  On the weekends are the busiest days in the casino.  The trash is really heavy.  And I have to pull the trash….the whole trashcan for the container all the way up to my shoulder; put on the ground; get the bag; throw in the truck; and the truck, I have to take it to the trash compactor.  And like I said, on the weekends the trash is really heavy, especially when it’s raining.  There’s a lot of water going inside the bags and it’s super heavy.  And one day I lifted one of the trashcans and I feel a horrible pain in my shoulder, and I’m feeling it right now as I’m talking to you.  And I go to HR and told her, “You know, I hurt my shoulder.”  They told me to go see a doctor.  I go see a doctor and the doctor took x-rays of my arm and told me, “You know what; you’re going to need surgery.  You busted your rotator cuff.  And you’re not going to do your job.  Go back to the work and tell them you’re going on light duty.  I’ll give you a note and go back to HR and take the note and tell them you have a doctor’s note.”  And, they told me, “Go home.  We’re going to call you.”  Yes, two days later they called me and said “Come in and pick up your final check because you are fired.”  I said, “What?”  “Yes, you are fired.”  And I thought I could hire a lawyer and do something, not a single lawyer will take a case against the tribes.
And you know; I had to be on state disability for one year.  After one year they said no more.  And the Tribe denied my workers’ comp.  They cut my insurance, and even sent me the doctor’s bill that they wanted me to pay—the doctor they sent me to see.  And of course I didn’t pay.  I didn’t have any money; I’m not working.  I don’t have any money.  And later they sent me to the collections for $196—a casino that makes millions of dollars a day and they sent it to collections for $196.

Like I say, we don’t have protection in there.  We don’t have workman’s comp.  We don’t have nothing there.  

And this compact right now, if these guys get it, it’s going to be worse for the workers.  Both casinos, Agua Caliente and Morongo, they use you.  When they’re done with you, they throw you, like when you get an orange and you squeeze the juice, you’re done, throw it in the trash.  

And like I say, I have my daughter who lives in my house and my two grandkids on welfare.  I had to file for bankruptcy.  And, you know, after all this happen, that’s why I came here and I ask you to vote no on this compact.  If these casinos get it, the only thing they’re going to do is keep growing and growing, and they never listen to the workers, and they’re going to hurt thousands and thousands of workers.

Thank you for listening to me and giving me the chance to testify.

MR. GRIBBON:  Mr. Chairman and Members, it’s actually very encouraging to hear that there are tweaks going on with respect to this Agua Caliente Compact, because there’s a different story in Indian country.  A different story regarding what the outcomes have been for workers as a result of some of the material aspects of the labor rights language in the 2004 compacts, that we worked so hard and the workers worked so hard in partnership with the Schwarzenegger Administration to get ratified.  

And Eva Boyko has a particular story that I think really underscores what a tweak in this compact can do for the workers at Agua and other compacts that we realize are coming down the pike here.  A tweak that was something that worked for workers at Cache Creek.  So Eva, if you want to tell your story that would be very helpful.

EVA BOYKO:  My name is Eva Boyko.  I work at Cache Creek Indian Bingo and Casino and I’ve been there since 1998.  I’m a single mother.  I have five adopted children.  All my children come from alcoholic and drug addicted families.  I, too, in the beginning, didn’t have any health insurance and all my children and I were on Medicaid and Health Families, and it was really hard.  I have one son that I adopted when he was a little over two, he spent the first two years of his life in a closet and didn’t get what he needed nutritionally.  And he had to have specialists.  When I was on Medi-Cal, no one would take us.  No one would take my son.  But now, because my Tribe was willing to negotiate with the union, My Tribe was willing to give us health insurance so that I could get an endocrinologist for my son.  They actually will take us.  I can get the specialists my children need.   Now, because of that, my son is able to be mainstreamed.  He doesn’t have to have special education.  My son is able to function normally and to be in a regular school.  And that’s a blessing; that’s an opportunity that every worker should have.
I’m lucky that I work for a tribe that openly and willingly negotiated with the union to give me a better life so that I could send one of my kids to college, and I hope to be able to send the others.  And I think that that is an opportunity that isn’t just a privilege, I think it’s something that every worker should be able to have—health insurance, and a chance for benefits and retirement.  And I’m lucky that I work for a tribe that’s willing to negotiate with our union to give me those things.  And I think that that’s something that these people should have also.

And that’s just what I wanted to tell you.

MR. GRIBBON:  To talk more specifically about the problems are regarding the TLRO from 1999, Rabbi Richard Shapiro is here to talk about his interviews with workers from the Agua Caliente Casino.  I think it’s unfortunate that Senator Battin needed to leave, because it would be very helpful for him to hear this from an independent party, but in any event, Rabbi.

RABBI RICHARD SHAPIRO:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee, I’m Rabbi Richard Shapiro.  I currently live in the city of Rancho Mirage and I’m a rabbi of a congregation in Palm Desert, two of the communities most directly affected by the proposed amendments to the compact signed this week with the Agua Caliente Tribe.  I’m here today representing the Coachella Valley Chapter of Clergy and Laity United for Economic Justice known by it’s acronym of CLUE, asking that the State Senate reject this compact as currently written, or failing that, postpone a vote on it until such time as the local communities affected by it have an opportunity to voice their concerns with the members of the Senate and the State Assembly.  
CLUE stands for fair treatment of the working poor.  As people of conscience and religious commitment, we respond to the demands of the Judeo-Christian biblical tradition that workers own their labor, be paid a living wage, and be treated with the dignity that their humanity requires.  Guided by the scriptural injunction “Justice, justice shall you pursue,” we are deeply concerned with the situation of the workers at the Agua Caliente Casino and the Spa Resort Hotel and Casino.

The clergy and lay leaders who constitute the membership of CLUE are sensitive to and mindful of the history and right to sovereignty of Native American tribes in the Coachella Valley.  We applaud the successes of the Agua Caliente in seeking economic security for their people through operating the casinos and the hotel.  At the same time, we would hope that the leaders of the Agua Caliente Tribe would not seek that success and security at the expense of the dignity, well-being, and security of its employees.  
It has always been and it remains our hope that the Tribe would take the moral high road and set the example for fairness and justice to workers.  Indeed, we see the Tribe as a natural ally in the struggle for workers’ rights, because they themselves have suffered from discrimination, poverty and oppression.  Unfortunately, Chairman Milanovich’s comments notwithstanding, these hopes have been consistently frustrated by the conduct of the tribal leadership.
Three years ago, the Coachella Valley Commission on Workplace Fairness, a commission on which Senator Romero and Speaker Nunez served, issued a comprehensive report detailing the Tribe’s abuses of the inherent rights of its employees.  Over the course of the past two years I’ve had the opportunity to meet with dozens of casino and hotel workers and hear firsthand of the abuses which were routinely occur in the course of their employment.  However, the most egregious conduct of the Tribe’s casino management has been its consistent use of intimidation to dissuade employees from organizing.  And I have witnessed that intimidation firsthand.  To accomplish this end, the Tribe utilizes surveillance, interrogation, threats of loss of benefits, making false or misleading statements about the union, and the actual firing of workers for union activity or for speaking up about abuses at work.

To organize without having one’s job security threatened by the employer is a basic right.  CLUE, in support of the workers’ right to organize, has repeatedly requested that the Agua Caliente Tribe sign a code of conduct committing its leadership to take a neutral, non-intimidating position with regard to workers’ organizing activities.  The Tribe continues to rebuff and refuse our call for neutrality.  As a matter of fact, the tribal leadership has repeatedly attacked the members of CLUE for even daring to bring this entire matter to the public’s attention.
The leadership of the Agua Caliente Tribe claim that workers have a means to address complaints and to organize under the Tribal Labor Relations Ordinance, a claim belied by the facts.  In addition, these workers are not covered by the Equal Employment Opportunity Act, the Department of Fair Employment and Housing, the Family Medical Leave Act, Americans with Disabilities Act, nor any other legal protections afforded all other American workers.  This despite the ruling of a federal district court in the state of Connecticut declaring that the National Labor Relations Board has jurisdiction on Indian lands.  The Tribe continues to appeal that ruling.  The situation is simply intolerable that American citizens and legal immigrants to this nation are denied the equal protection of the labor laws of this nation and this state.
These workers are among the most vulnerable members of California’s workforce.  The Tribe’s claim that by approving this compact the State will be creating more jobs ignores the reality that the true human cost to the State of California and to the local communities in which the casinos are located and adjacent to, including increased needs for medical care, public assistance, subsidized housing, and much more, far outweighs the benefits generated by these additional jobs.

We urge the Senate to consider these issues when deciding whether or not to approve this compact.  Once again, let me reiterate that the commitment of CLUE to justice includes empathy with Native Americans for the injustices they have endured and we therefore continue to support tribal sovereignty and commend their significant efforts to raise their people from poverty to abundance, from degradation to dignity and support the approval of this compact when amended to include appropriate safeguards for labor.  
At the same time, we call upon the Agua Caliente Tribe and its leaders to remember their own past suffering, to search their history and their hearts to find compassion for their employees, and not to build their own successes on the backs of others.  We call upon the Agua Caliente Tribe and its leaders to understand that the workers right to organize without intimidation is the path to dignity and equality.  We call upon the Agua Caliente Tribe and its leaders to respond to the religious and moral imperative of being openhanded and openhearted with the blessings of their wealth so that their workers may rise above grinding poverty, protect their families’ health and become truly contributing members of the Coachella Valley communities in which they live and work.

Thank you.

MR. GRIBBON:  I want to sum this up here with correcting some misstatements that were made earlier.  

Number one, with respect to whether or not the union or the workers at Agua Caliente have requested the right to organize from the leadership of the Agua Caliente Tribe, actually on its face shows the outrageous unbalanced relationship between workers ability to organize and the Tribe’s ability to frustrate that.

The 1999 TLRO was not written by John Burton.  Senator John Burton at the time, Senate pro Tem John Burton at the time, did everything he could within the boundaries of a 72-hour negotiation over a compact that left many issues on the table; issues regarding funding streams to the State; issues regarding meaningful regulatory oversight by DOJ; issues regarding off-reservation impact mitigation; issues regarding local government agreements; issues regarding a number of issues that were left on the table in 1999 were repaired in 2004, or at least improved, including the worker issues, because the TLRO clearly was not good enough.  In fact, statements from the former Davis Administration was that under the 1999 TLRO, the Agua Caliente Tribe had taken labor relations back to the 1920s era in their casino, and that they had asked for improvements during a negotiation that was interrupted by all of the things that we know have happened since that time.
So when other issues have been improved, and in particular in 2004, the issue of workers’ rights has been improved, and as a result of that 5,000 workers in this state have organized.  They’ve negotiated directly with their employers for living wages.  They’ve negotiated directly with their employers for full family healthcare for an affordable rate for their families.  They’ve taken the burden of healthcare off of the backs of the taxpayers in California who have been subsidizing these casinos in California with taxpayer funded healthcare programs for the poor.  
The richest tribes in California are in front of you; they’re at the bargaining table; they’re coming at you with enormous expansions to their opportunities to gain.  This will probably be the largest expansion of gambling in American history.  While you’re looking at tweaks for exclusivity, while you’re looking at tweaks for robo calls for approvals for local governments, while you’re looking for tweaks for a number of issues, we ask you, please, the most important tweak you can possibly make is that the tens of thousands of workers currently, and God only knows going forward in this industry, that they have the right, that they have the power, that they have the ability to actually get to a conclusion of a collective bargaining agreement with their employers and take care of their families in dignity, live their lives in dignity, and cover their children with full family healthcare.  And if you can’t do that in the short period of time left in this session, we ask you, put it off.  Put it off until there is time to bring all of the stakeholders to the table and ensure that going forward, the most vulnerable people in our state, who are the engine behind currently a $7 billion industry, have the ability to live their lives in decency and get a living wage and cover their families with basic healthcare.  That’s what we ask of you.

Thank you very much.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Very well put.  Any questions, Members?

Let’s have Fred Jones, Angie Wei.
Okay.  Let’s go ahead and begin.  We’ll start with Fred Jones. 

FRED JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members of the Senate GO Committee.  I appreciate the opportunity this late hour to present a point that’s been only tangentially covered and that’s the issue of expansion of gambling.  The main request I would have of this committee is to not put this important compact on the fast track.  I did the numbers earlier, hearing the numbers with the Agua representatives.  Evidently their net winnings every year—net winnings—are $250 million, just there abouts—a quarter of a billion dollars every year.  That’s under their existing ’99 Compact.  So the question I have, a rhetorical question for the committee is, who will be hurt by delaying creating a new compact?  And this is a new compact that has evidently quite a bit of unresolved concerns.  I’ll just list them and not go into any detail.

Evidently this is a moving target compact because there are amendments that are going to be discussed.  They’re evidently, Senator Vincent, going to deal with horse racing and slot machines, not minor technical.  These are major amendments that could be coming down….I don’t know, maybe they’ve already come down.  I haven’t seen them.  I will caution you that there are unintended consequences possible.  
In the 1999 Compact, Section 15.4 in which 64 tribes in California signed, they say that if after the effective date of this compact the State enters into a compact with any other tribe that contains more favorable provisions with respect to any provision of this compact, the State shall, at the Tribe’s request, enter into the preferred compact with the Tribe as a superseding substitute for this compact.  In other words, that’s legalese.  Sixty-four tribes, now 63, will be able to demand the exact same terms of this Agua Caliente Tribe.  And what are those terms?

Three casinos per tribe, one of which, according to Agua Caliente’s chairman, may be land they have yet to purchase.  Who knows where that may be?  Who knows what cities and communities that may impact?  Five thousand slot machines total for those three casinos.  That’s 63 other tribes with the potential of three casinos each and 5,000 slot machines each.  

The mayor pro tem of Rancho Mirage articulated the local input and control concerns.  Very little bit of comment about the problem or pathological gambling.  The Chairman of the Tribe said that they have a voluntary tribal program.  What happens when they voluntarily decide to remove that program?  There’s no guarantee that there will requirements.

And let me remind this august body that just two months ago the Attorney General put out a report called “Gambling in the Golden State.”  It estimates we have 1.5 million problem or pathological gamblers in California, costing every taxpayer $998 million every year for those costs.

And where are the local and state mitigations?  Evidently money is going to be going into the General Fund, and we all know what happens to General Fund revenues in Sacramento.  Will they go to direct impacts of this expanded gambling?  I doubt it.
We’ve already discussed the phone survey—that’s pretty phony.  That’s not a good way of discussing or determining local desire.

And then there’s no mentions of card tables or Class 2 slot machines.  

Let me just summarize by saying, less than two years ago, Proposition 70, which basically asked for very similar provisions as this compact, was defeated by over 75 percent of the vote.  So I think it’s clear according to Californians, at least, they don’t want more slots in California.  

Thank you.

SENATOR ROMERO:  Okay.  Angie Wei.

ANGIE WEI:  Madam Chair and Members, Angie Wei on behalf of the California Labor Federation.  We want to say very clearly on the record, first off, that we support tribal sovereignty.  At the same time, we support self-determination for the employees, the right to respect and dignity on the job.  And this compact, this proposed compact, robs the employees of those rights and dignities on this job.  These are vulnerable workers.  We’ve already heard from the good rabbi that most state and federal laws don’t protect employees on tribal grounds.  Antidiscrimination, health and safety laws, social insurance programs, are not availed to the employees at these sites.
SENATOR ROMERO:  Excuse me.  I am calling for the chair of this committee to return to this committee.  The reason I say that is, because I think for many this issue is probably the one that is really the most difficult to deal with.  And so, I am going to ask us to just hold for a minute and I’m asking Chairman Florez to please return to the GO Committee, to come back from the hallway, and we will recess until he returns.

Senator Florez, I’m just going to ask you if you will stay here, or if you need to leave, let’s just take a recess.  But given that this is probably one of the most troubling parts, I’m going to ask for you to please be here.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m trying.

MS. WEI:  Mr. Chair.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

SENATOR ROMERO:  You may want to start over.

MS. WEI:  Mr. Chair, we strongly support and believe in the notion of tribal sovereignty, and at the same time, we strongly believe and stand for the dignity and rights and protections for workers who want a voice at work.

This compact leaves employees in a very vulnerable position.  We have already heard that most state and federal laws don’t apply to these employees, whether they are antidiscrimination laws, health and safety protections, social insurance programs.  The process to resolve workplace disputes is an internal process with the tribes.  It’s hard enough for workers in vulnerable positions to take their complaints and their grievances to the government, either through the Labor Commissioner’s office or the Department of Fair Employment and Housing.  It’s even harder to take it to the boss and expect that justice be served by your employers when you have these types of grievances.

I heard the honorable chairman say earlier that there have been two disputes adjudicated through this internal grievance process and they both went in favor of the employee.  Two disputes since potentially 1999?  That tells me that workers don’t feel like they have access to fair justice at the work site; that they don’t feel safe, protected from retaliation to be able to take those issues to the internal grievance process of the employer.

In terms of the right to organize a union, a free democratic union at the work site; I heard the Chairman say that that right exists.  And as I looked through this report that the Rabbi cited earlier, it’s striking that from the end of April 2003 to the end of May 2003, over a period of four weeks, the Tribe and their leadership sent five letters to what they call team members.  And I just want to cite some of the language in these letters.

“You will not be forced into joining a union.”

April 30, 2003:  “It is unfortunate that HERE is subjecting us to these tactics, but at least we can now see HERE’s true colors and why we are committed to delivering our message to them.  Not here.”
May 2, 2003:  They use language—the tribal council uses language about HERE deciding to invade our workplace.  HERE has a history of operating in the shadows.  Unfortunately, this is how HERE operates on a regular basis—lies, threats, pressure and even criminal conduct.  
This is the type of language, incendiary language that management has used to intimidate workers from freely, or hopefully freely, organizing themselves into a union.  These workers face the risk of retaliation, reprisal, and intimidation and firing.  And if that were to happen, what is their recourse?  What is their access to justice?  They can’t go to court.  They can’t go to any state labor law enforcement.  They can’t go to the NLRB.  They can go potentially to an internal grievance process through internal channels, but I think that if we’ve only had two of those cases since 1999, it’s a process that does not work.

I want to talk for a second about workers’ comp because I’ve learned about workers’ comp lately.  I’ll just say that our state’s workers’ comp system is not working in favor of injured workers today.  And even that standard that our state’s existing workers’ comp system provides, I’m not convinced that the language that’s in the compact meets that standard.  So three quick examples:

Our existing workers’ comp system sets standards for what types of doctors employers have to avail to the employees; the number of doctors that they can choose from; the types of specialty doctors—specialists; and how geographically available those doctors are.  There seems to be nothing in the language that I’ve seen that guarantees that type of protection for these tribal workers.  Our current system guarantees $10,000 in immediate medical treatment regardless of whether or not your claim is accepted.  As soon as you’re injured, you’re guaranteed $10,000 in immediate medical treatment under existing California Work Comp law.  Not clear to me from this language if that $10,000 immediate medical treatment is available.
We have a decent appeals process in the workers’ comp system where you can take it to an independent workers’ comp appeals board.  This allows for hearings before an independent tribunal—not clear who appoints that tribunal; if those are agreed upon arbitrators.  So the appeals rights of injured workers seem to be curtailed potentially under this compact.

Finally, I’d say that the tribal gaming industry is one of the fastest growing employment sectors in the states, and we appreciate the creation of jobs brought by the tribes.  But we want to create good jobs with decent livings and family based healthcare so that our workers can live and produce in dignity.

The gaming industry has risen; jobs 17 percent between 2003 and 2004—17 percent job growth, employing 42,000 workers.  This is one of the fastest growing employment sectors in this state.  The average annual rate of increase employment has been about two percent per sector—70 percent versus 2 percent.  As one of the fastest growing sectors in the economy, the ratification of these compacts is the only place that the Legislature can intervene to guarantee that we do have the living wages, the family based healthcare and the respect, and the dignity that these workers deserve.
We ask that you not fast track this compact.  We have two weeks left in the legislative session.  All of the stakeholders and the legislators have many different items before us.  The Chair mentioned earlier, if we don’t do this, this year, there is no real impact on the State’s General Fund or the State Public Policy.  

Senator Romero pointed out that the existing compact is good until 2020 with the possibility of extension until 2022—what is the rush?  If we approve this compact, if you approve this compact in the next two weeks or in the next few days, we anticipate that more compacts will be coming in the next two weeks.  We’ve heard up to six additional compacts could be coming down the pike.  Is that the right way to expand this industry, in such a rushed manner?  It would behoove us all as Californians, to take a step back, wait until the beginning of the year, wait until some of the political dust has died down, and take a global picture about how we want to see the gaming industry in California.  

For these reasons, we’d ask you to either tweak this compact so that basic worker protections can be included, or for us all to work collectively towards mutual solutions in the coming year.

Thank you for this opportunity.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  

MICHAEL ROSENFELD:  Mr. Chairman, my name is Michael Rosenfeld.  I’m the president of the Coachella Valley Teachers Association.  I’m here for two reasons, but first I would like to….I’m sorry I can’t leave these with you, but I have here, because they’re intended to be presented to the Palm Springs City Council, it’s a petition asking among other things, primarily, for a living wage and a right to organize for workers in the city of Palm Springs.  And it’s signed by 2,300 citizens of Palm Springs—something probably a little better than a telephone poll.  And it was gathered by a handful of people working six hours a week for eight weeks, just sitting in front of the supermarkets (It got so hot they took a break and their waiting for summer to end and we’ll go back and collect some more of these and then present them when we get 5,000 of them).  We’ll present them to the city council.

I got involved in this basically, I guess, because of the Nell Soto Grant that sent teachers out into the homes of the students.  Where I live, the teachers come in from Indio and Palm Desert and Palm Springs, and they work…

SENATOR SOTO:  They get paid.
MR. ROSENFELD:  Yeah. Well, they get paid to work there.  And they drive home.  But they don’t know how the students live.  And that grant sent our teachers out into the homes, and we were appalled when we saw how our students were living.  A lot of them mostly farm workers.  And now that we have these casinos, a lot of those farm workers have thought Oh great, now that there’s a casino I can go work there.  It’s air conditioning.  And that’s happened.  We’re having a lot of people move out of the farms and into the casinos.  And you know what they’re telling me?  It’s worse.  They’re not making any more money than they did in the fields and now they have respiratory illnesses.  And on top of that, they may have to work graveyard.  And then they’re pregnant.  They don’t give them another place where they can work.  They don’t put them into a place where they’re away from the smoke.  They have to stay there and work or quit—that’s they’re alternative.  And until workers get the right to organize, we’re not going to solve the problems that we have in schools.  Our problem is poverty—that’s our problem in schools.  It’s poverty that’s the cause for low test scores.  It’s poverty that’s the cause for apathy. 
Look, $23 million, a million dollar giveaway from a casino that brings in $250 million a year.  What is that, a million dollar giveaway?  That’s nothing.  That’s nothing.  Forget the $23 million, pay the employees a decent wage so they can live with dignity in the community and let them pay their income taxes and we’ll probably all be a lot better off.

Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Okay, Mr. Blonien.

ROD BLONIEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members.  Rod Blonien, and I would first like to speak on behalf of the Commerce Club, Card Club, and Hollywood Card Club in Los Angeles County.

I thought today that I was going to be here testifying in support of this compact.  Richard Milanovich is a very honorable guy, and I would like to have the card club industry get closer to the Indian gaming industry, and I thought we could be supportive of this compact.  However, we took a close look at the exclusivity language.  The compacts that were ratified in ’04, exclusivity language, related to gaming devices, which meant slot machines or something that acted like a slot machine and looked like a slot machine. 

The language in this compact refers to gaming activities.  In the original compact gaming activities make reference to slot machines, makes reference to lotteries, and makes reference to banking and percentage games.  So any amendment to the constitution to give the card clubs or anyone else some form of banking or some form of percentage gain, would be impacted by this exclusivity clause.  
I had hoped, I had really hoped that we could put together a constitutional amendment that would be supported by card clubs and by tribal casinos.  Tribal casinos currently cannot offer roulette, nor can they offer craps.  
California card clubs would like to have player trust banking.  We would like to have a fund of money that’s irrevocably dedicated to our players so that instead of the money going to the profit of the third-party bankers that we have now, the money would be continually rebroadcast back to the players in terms of bonuses and keeping the money in the game.  We can’t do that with this language in the exclusivity provision.  We are stopped from it.

You know, we had a brutal experience with Prop 68 and had pretty much given up the idea of ever, ever getting slot machines.  What we thought in our mind is let the tribal casinos have the slot machines, we will become card clubs.  We will have poker.  We will have our California version of 21.  We will have other games that can be played with cards, and that would be the demarcation.  But we were hoping that we could modernize our games in advance and have something that’s better for the players like the player trust banking, but this language will not allow that to happen.  
And I hope that the folks in the Governor’s office are listening and that they can make the change to this exclusivity, have it relate to gambling devices, gaming devices, like the ’04 compacts.  Don’t completely close the door on our businesses.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Mr. Chairman, I think that’s what they’ve been working on, but I don’t know what the language is.  So before everyone tees off on that, it might behoove us to find out if they have worked out language, or if they have had a minor amendment or something.  It’s a suggestion to your committee, but it might be, instead of having to go through all of this, about something it’s not, we might find out what it is.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, if the Governor’s office has solved that and that specific issue is solved what Mr. Blonien’s talking about, come up.  If you haven’t solved it, don’t come up.  In other words, don’t waste the flow of the committee’s time listening to witnesses, if you’re going to come up and tell us “we kind of got there,” “we’re getting there,” “we think it might,” it better.  So, if you’re going to come up and solve that, come tell us.  Are you going to come tell us that?

MR. SIMONS:  (inaudible—off mic)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  

MR. ROSENFELD:  Praise the Lord.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’ll be listening very carefully.  

MR. SIMONS:  Mr. Chairman, there will be no amendment.  There will be a simple correction, deleting at page-8, the last clause on the bottom of page-8, and the rest of that sentence on page-9, and there will then be a simple correction that says Until such time that the gaming activities by such person or entity within a tribe’s core geographic market ceases.  So if exclusivity is lost but then is regained, revenue will start again.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Romero.  Okay, let’s go through that real slow.  Let’s start real slow.  So tell us what you are deleting and why are you deleting it—let’s start there.
MR. SIMONS:  We’re deleting the last sentence of 3.2(a).

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, tell us what this sentence does, is what I’m asking.

SENATOR ROMERO:  Or more so, what does it do?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.

MR. SIMONS:  It creates the issue just raised by my colleague to my right that was his concern—it removes that entire issue and removes an ambiguity that apparently has come out of the language.  And then, making that correction also corrects that if exclusivity is lost because someone has been allowed to do Class-3 gaming lawfully within a core geographic area but that company or person fails or ceases to do Class-3 gaming then the revenue to the State begins again.  It doesn’t just automatically end forever.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The poison pill I mentioned.

MR. SIMONS:  Correct.  And that’s the only change.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and tell us how that solves 
Mr. Blonien’s problems—in plain English.

MR. SIMONS:  Well, my understanding is, his issue, if I understood it correct, I don’t want to speak for him, was that the way that language read, he was concerned it had an impact that he thought was improper; that that language that he was concerned about is now gone.  
SENATOR SOTO:  Are you talking about this?

MR. SIMONS:  Yes, I am.  

SENATOR SOTO:  (inaudible…off mic)

MR. SIMONS:  On page-8 the last…

SENATOR SOTO:  (inaudible….off mic)

MR. SIMONS:  The last six words on page-8, and the first 8 lines on page-9, that it’s all deleted.

SENATOR SOTO:  (inaudible…off mic)

MR. SIMONS:  The correction would be to take that out and then insert instead, the language until such time that the gaming activities by such person or entity within the Tribe’s core geographic market ceased.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me go through this.  So simply, an example—if a card club is successful in gaining a Class-3—take me from that point on.  Tell me how that works.  Ron’s got a card club that’s successfully, or card club successfully, then hit that venue, how does this work?

MR. SIMONS:  Then the Tribe would stop paying revenue to the State on the first 2,000 machines and would only pay to the State, if it desired to continue operating more devices, 15 percent of the net win on 2,001 to 5,000.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. SIMONS:  And then, let’s say the card club failed and went out of business and therefore there was no card club operating a Class-3 machine in the geographic area, the Tribe would then resume paying on the first 2,000 and would pay 15 percent on the additional devices.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I don’t know if Mr. Blonien’s issue is resolved, but let me just ask you a question, what does that do at all for the State?  That is exactly where we were at the beginning of this process.  Meaning, if someone is successful, anyone but a federally recognized tribe, and I mentioned from the beginning, if they are successful, let’s say that the world changes and folks go out and they successfully get people to vote for the expansion of Class-3 at racetracks and card clubs, which seems to be an ongoing election issue, if they’re successful then you’re still telling me that you would forego payment to the State.  That’s what you’re saying.
MR. SIMONS:  On the first 2,000 machines, yes, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  On the first 2,000 machines.

MR. SIMONS:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so on a percentage basis, let’s use the Governor’s number, $1.8 billion is coming to the State.  Tell me the impact on that number.

MR. SIMONS:  If you assume that the Tribe has put the 3,000 additional devices into operation, and you assume then that the same net win figures there, then the 15 percent would correlate to a figure of approximately, in excess of $4 million a year, if my arithmetic is being done in my head correctly, that would be coming to the State.  If an exclusivity was taken away, the State would still get 12.5 percent on the 3,000 devices but zero on the first 2,000, and I can’t make that computation in my head on what the dollars would be.

SENATOR VINCENT:  Now this thing is getting totally ridiculous.  You know, you keep talking about Class-3 gambling.  You can’t have Class-3 gambling nowhere in California but on a reservation.  It’s the only place you can have it.  And you know what?  I wish Geronimo was alive.  This is totally ridiculous.  This shift is not about black.  Somebody used the term well this is either black or white.  Well, I’m black, this guy’s white.  Then we talk about red; then we talk about blue; then we talk about brown.  This shifts all down to green—money.  That’s what it’s all about.  This whole thing is about money.  That’s the whole thing.  And you know what, I’ll tell you something.  You go to the hustler in Gardena, there ain’t no slots.  You go the Hollywood Park Casino, you don’t have no slots.  And I’m going to tell you something, if things keep going, and I’ve said this to the Indians also.  I’m serious about this.  You know what the white man did to the Indian’s ass in 1620 and when they kept moving and they kept moving West and they put them on reservations?  You know what’s going to happen?  They’re going to end up screwing them again.  And I’m going to tell you what’s going to happen.  I’ll tell you what’s going to happen.  If they keep doing what they’re doing, they’re going to give slot machines to the hustler.  They’re going to give slot machines to the casino at Hollywood Park.  The white man’s going to do it.  They’re going to vote for it.  I’ve been to Morongo.  I’ve been to Pechanga.  I didn’t see no Indians in there playing dice.  I didn’t see them playing no slot machines.  I haven’t seen any of them doing it.  And when it happens, and when it happens, why would you go all the way to Morongo or Pechanga when you can go to Hollywood Park or you can go to the hustler?  Why would you go down there?  And if you look at who’s playing down there, just take a look who’s playing the slot machines; look who’s playing the gambling Class-3 situations on the reservations; just take a look who’s playing and see where the money is coming from.  That same money could stay in town if things keep going the way they’re going.  I know you understand what I’m saying.  

MR. SIMONS:  I do.

SENATOR VINCENT:  I was born at night, but not last night.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And then tell us from the Governor’s perspective, what does this solve for the Department of Interior?  I think this is what led us to this discussion.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.  I think they were worried that there was not going to really be a breach of exclusivity, and that’s what we have negotiated with the Tribe in turn for, certain things like revenues that they have exclusivity.  So that additional language, that second sentence that was struck, that kind of clouded it, when will there be a breach?  So we’ve removed that.  But then we also added the language that just says that if exclusivity is breached and the entity that comes in doesn’t do well and there’s no one operating within their zone, then the payments can resume.  Because before it would just be once it’s breached, it’s breached.  Here, it’s if the other entity doesn’t do well and decides not to game anymore, then those payments resume.  So the whole….for the 2,000, for the additional 3,000, that would start up again.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  This is a pause clause then?  So this gives the State assurance in what manner that we’re going to recoup revenue?  Are you assuming that if said Class-3 gaming facility comes into….successfully wins an election, successfully begins operating, then you’re assuming that you’ll have a negotiation with that particular gaming facility in order to produce revenue?  The reason I ask that is, because what the Tribe will do is, they’ll say Well, Class-3, said Class-3 is now operating.  We’re now relieved of a portion of payment to the State. 

MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I hope that you in the Governor’s office, have, in essence, for the new Class-3 that’s now been successfully won at the ballot and now is operating within this zone, are negotiating with them to make up for that lost revenue that the Tribe isn’t paying us.  Are you following me?  If not, we have a gap—it’s a drop; it’s a dip.

MS. SHIMAZU:  Correct, I see what you’re saying.  And I guess it would also depend on the constitutional amendment—what it said.  You know, the one for Prop 1A so the Governor can negotiate these compacts.

SENATOR BATTIN:  The difference is that if it was a non-tribal entity, the State would have jurisdiction.  So unless it was preempted by the constitution, which if they run in a campaign, I would imagine that they would be actually probably pretty generous in what they said they were going to give to the people.  If they didn’t, the State would still have regulatory control over them.  Whereas, the differences on the tribal, they have IGRA which…
SENATOR FLOREZ:  I understand.  I’m just asking the assumption there to make this thing work is that if indeed someone else other than a Tribe is successful at Class-3, that you, through Senator Battin’s explanation as a regulator, because this is not a sovereign, then would, in essence, try to create a system where those lost revenues that the Tribe would not be paying at that time, the Tribe is, in essence, waiting for, we’ll go back to where we were, but that entity has to go under, or not be as successful as the Administration felt it was going to be.
MS. SHIMAZU:  And I don’t think the new language addresses kind of the gap in revenue from a new entity, it just deals solely with the exclusivity provision that the DOI had a problem with, so it doesn’t address…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I know.  I understand.  You’re trying to solve a federal issue, but then we’re trying to figure out two things:  One, what we probably want to do is disincentivize these card clubs and race tracks to not go to the ballot so we wouldn’t have to have this issue, correct?  I mean, at the end of the day that’s who is going to break this.  So card club or racetrack is going to be successful and if they’re successful, then we hit this issue where the Tribe says Okay, we’re relieved of all payments to the State except for a portion of what we’ve agreed to, correct?

MS. SHIMAZU:  Mmm hmm.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, I think the answer to me is to incentivize the tracks and the card clubs to not enter that zone of, we’re going after Class-3.  Because then we’re never going to hit that point, and we’re never going to have a dip in revenue.  And this is Tribe’s issue, I want to make sure, this is the Tribe’s to solve that.  It’s the State, on our side of the revenue side that ultimately we want to avoid that poison pill then we have to solve it at a mitigating factor from our end.  Are you following me with that?

SENATOR BATTIN:  Well, I think but for…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But for what?

SENATOR BATTIN:  But for the only people that can change or give the Class-3 games to a non-tribal entity are the people through a constitutional amendment.  So they will ultimately decide what it’s going to be.  And there’s no higher power than that.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m not arguing about the power.  I’m arguing the fact that if they’re successful and they speak and whatever they decide, it basically, if it’s within the zones of influence that our Governor is putting forth in these compacts, in essence, it has relieved you, the Tribe, of a large portion of $1.8 billion, and I calculate half of that, or north of half, will not be paid to the State of California.  So, we’re not getting, in essence, what we think we’re getting because of a successful ballot measure.  And all I’m asking, not the Tribe, I’m asking the State, so let me bifurcate this discussion.  I mean, that is in every sense of the word, you’ve kind of solved the poison pill only in the sense that, well, if they weren’t successful then we go back to paying the State.  But then we have a different revenue if they weren’t successful, we’re missing revenue that we were hopefully working with the Tribe being successful with the Tribe gaining.  The only answer to me on the State’s side is to disincentivize these card clubs and racetracks from going to the ballot, ultimately being successful and thereby bifurcating our agreement with these tribes.  So, on that side of the equation what’s the State’s plan to do that?
MS. SHIMAZU:  To disincentivize the…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What makes these guys not want to do 

Class-3?  Because all you’re telling them now is, Hey, go for Class-3.  Because we’ve made an amendment to this that allows you to do that.

SENATOR BATTIN:  Well, the people of California told them.  They tried.  They said no.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But what happens if they’re successful?  Now, they’ve said no once, they might say no twice, but what happens if they decide, as Senator Vincent said, we’re gaming everywhere now in California.  It’s widely accepted and at the end of the day they win.  If they win then what?  We have a 30 year agreement with this Tribe.  Anyway I look at it, it means the Tribe will not have to pay the State of California, at least half, or north of half, of what was promised for 
30 years.  They then start to operate.  I assume then that you’re going to do an agreement with them to make up the revenue so that this whole thing works holistically, or, you’re going to disincentivize them from not doing Class-3 through some sort of mitigation on the State of California side, which one is it?  It’s got to be one or the other.

MS. SHIMAZU:  I’m having troubling answering, because I don’t think it’s to make the State whole with the $1.8 billion.  It really is if the tracks or the card rooms get a constitutional amendment and they are allowed to game and they actually do engage in gaming in the zone of exclusivity, then right, the Tribe doesn’t have to pay, and that’s kind of the consideration, the give and take that Interior wants to see.  That, this is what they’re bargaining for…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s great for Interior, but we lose revenue.  Remember, this whole thing is sold on revenue.  That’s why we’re here.  I mean we’re here because the State of California….the Governor went out and said I’m going to make these tribes pay, and that’s why we’re here.  And so we’re only asking, and it’s our due diligence, is that if this doesn’t pencil out from a numbers wise perspective, then why are doing this?  What’s this exercise for.  That’s all I’m asking.  I mean, we’re not here to judge, in essence, the value of tribal gaming beyond money, because I think that’s….I mean, those are the ’99 Compacts right?  I mean, that’s why we’re redoing these, because we’re trying to gain some revenue from our side.  I’m only asking it, in your compact that you’re asking us to approve is a very important assumption.  Your assumption is that none of these folks, racetracks and card clubs, will ever be successful at the ballot.  If they are successful at the ballot and they’re in these zones, and I assume they’ll be in a lot of zones, then ultimately the State of California takes it in the shorts because we’re not going to be getting the revenue that these compacts are based on (period), right? 


MS. SHIMAZU:  Right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So what’s built into your compact that would disincentivize these industries from doing that?  That’s my question.


SENATOR BATTIN:  With all due respect, you’re just playing crystal ball here.  But what if….

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So are you!  I mean, we’re assuming that “what if?”  I’m looking out for the best interest of the State with a fallback plan.  You’re saying, that’s never going to happen.


SENATOR BATTIN:  What if the federal government decides to make gambling legal throughout the whole United States?  What if…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Then we’re going to be losing a lot of revenue.


SENATOR BATTIN:  What if they take it away?  I mean, what if Congress changes IGRA?  What if?  What if?  What if?  We could do this all night long.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No.  And our job is to mitigate to make sure that we have a safety net for the State of California, ultimately, that provides for a promise that is made.  That is why we are doing a compact government to government that we are, in essence, made whole.  


I’m an investment banker.  If I’m doing a deal with you and I’m your partner, I want to know at the end of the day everything that can go wrong, and at the end of the day I want to know if I am made whole.  That’s just what we do.  And that’s what we’re doing with you on this compact.  And you’re telling me, I’m not sure.  As an investor I would say, then why do I want to do this deal?  Why?  Except, we’re guarding taxpayer money.


Senator Romero, you had a question.


SENATOR ROMERO:  Yes.  I mean, there are a lot of “what ifs.”  But to me, what this whole thing has illustrated is that, number one, we don’t write bills in committee, and I don’t think that we should be writing a compact in an informational committee meeting.  I’m just going to say that I was a little bit stunned.  This issue was first raised, apparently, tonight.  Apparently the Administration worked at break neck speed to come up with an amendment that now we’re being asked to examine.  This to me is why I do think we’ve got to look at this very….it may be a very good amendment, I don’t know.  I’m not a lawyer.  But I think what I’m a little bit stunned at is just how quickly this was done in an informational hearing.  These are serious issues for the tribes, serious issues for California, it’s serious issues, I think, for every single member here who is being asked to vote upon this.  What I would ask is that rather than negotiating an amendment in the hallway during an informational hearing on this compact, let the lawyers go back, figure it out, sunshine it so we can have a look at it, and then let’s go forward from there.  But, I mean, we’re the Senate.  We’re supposed to not be writing bills in committee, and certainly not in an informational committee meeting.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Romero, I agree with you.  I don’t think we gained any value from you coming back immediately and trying to explain an amendment that we can easily understand tomorrow morning, although it’s made things very confusing and somewhat disruptive.  So, I appreciate the Governor’s office negotiating this.  You’ve heard some of our concerns.  And if it solves it for Interior, that’s wonderful.  But as Senator Romero I think is saying, let’s let you continue to work and let’s have it ready so that when we reconvene to vote on this compact, it’s just like any other vote, Senator Romero, we’ve covered a lot of issues, but this can easily be explained.  That’s what you’ve worked on, and I think it makes people feel better, that it wasn’t done in the two hours or three hours that we were here.  It would probably make us feel better if you had presented this in the morning, because we probably thought you guys sat down and rationally came up with some language, and it seems as though we’re just, in essence, doing this on the fly.  Do you guys agree with that?  Can you go back and continue to talk about it?  Even if it’s the same amendment…

MR. SIMONS:  Of course, Mr. Chairman, we can.  I just want to say, we’re not amending it, we’re just correcting a matter to conform with the compacts that this committee has already approved and that have been ratified.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I got you.  And we’re trying to settle something for Interior, I think was just the most important aspect.


SENATOR BATTIN:  The same exclusivity language.


MR. SIMONS:  It’s exactly the same as in the prior compacts.  What we had, the confusion before and we tried to solve it, it created more confusion, so rather than create confusion, we just went back to the compacts that already exist.


SENATOR BATTIN:  And that we’ve already voted for.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.


SENATOR BATTIN:  Mr. Blonien, does that settle your…


MR. BLONIEN:  If they change the word “gaming activities” to “gaming devices,” that would take care of my situation.  And so it would leave open the possibility that we could work with the tribes to address helping us and giving them something in the future.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s fine.  And let’s go on to 
Mr. Lang.


Senator Soto.


SENATOR SOTO:  Do you want a motion on that?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, we’re fine.  But let me just say as 
Mr. Lang begins, at least from my part, there was no confusion at all in this.  All you said you were going to do is try to satisfy something that Interior needed to have.  And if Interior needs to have that to make this thing holistic, then I don’t think you’re going to have any argument that that’s a better requirement, we don’t want to do any….it’s like if we said No, we think it can be non-land in trust.  I mean, there are just certain requirements that we have to meet.  There was no confusion.


The confusion is, when you come back with an amendment in a short period of time that becomes confusing and trying to solve something you think….and maybe we’ll just accept that as we come back before the committee and say, fine.  But we do appreciate the work that you’re attempting to put forward.


So, let’s go with Mr. Lang.


ROD BLONIEN:  I would like to thank Mr. Simon and Ms. Shimazu for their assistance.  Thank you very much.  


MS. SHIMAZU:  I’m sorry.  If I could just clarify, the one change that Mr. Blonien requested, that would be something, though, that the Tribe and the State would have to….I don’t want to leave the impression that we’re agreeing to it because we would have to talk about it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that’s why we need you to go down tonight and work, rather than come up and try to do this.  As Senator Romero said, let’s not do this right here—absolutely.


Okay, Mr. Lang.


MR. LANG:  Mr. Chairman, Members, Joe Lang representing Hollywood Park Racetrack and Bay Meadows Racetrack here in California.  I wish sometimes I could speak with the passion of Jack Gribbon, or the passion of Senator Vincent, but I know one thing, Senator Vincent has it right.  The 54,000 jobs in the horseracing industry in California are at risk.  They’re at stake.  We’re facing unfair competition from 13 other states in this country who allow their horseracing industry to participate in alternative forms of gaming.  In addition, we’re facing competition here in California with tribal casinos.  


We’re not about opposing those tribal casinos.  We’re not opposed to the activities they engage in, nor are we opposed to their success.  But I do have to point out, the attorney general produced a study two months ago examining the issue of gaming in California.  That study showed that of all the forms of gaming in California, there is only one form of gaming that is in decline—that’s horseracing.  We’re facing competition here, and we’re facing competition from other states.  

What do we do about that, and why is it that the State’s problem?  I think first, it’s 54,000 jobs.  These are jobs at racetracks, at farms, at suppliers around the State.  

On the other hand, Senator Battin, you’re right.  The people spoke on Prop 68.  That’s not our business.  We’re not opposed to tribal compacts allowing for tribes to succeed in the gaming business.  At the same time, the State needs to understand that as you ratify these compacts, both the compacts in ’04 and again now, the one before you, the exclusivity clause, which has been the subject of significant discussion tonight, basically ties the hands of the horseracing industry in terms of what we can, in the future, do to try and help our business survive.  And make no mistake about it; this business is threatened to its very existence.

What can you do to help?  I’ve heard suggestions that exclusivity could be changed which would allow us to go to the ballot again and again, fighting the fight, trying to fight for our existence.  I’ve heard suggestions that potentially the State could provide some mitigation for the impacts that are placed on the horseracing industry, and in addition, not just the impacts, but the specific impact of the exclusivity clause on our ability to determine our own future.  Whatever that ultimate solution is, I appreciate this committee bringing to the attention not just of the committee members, but to the media and the rest of the people in the audience, that there is an industry here which is deeply affected by what you’re considering and needs to, hopefully, be at the table to help ourselves determine our own destiny.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

ROD BLONIEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members.  Rod Blonien, on behalf of Los Alamitos Race Course—the home of quarter horse racing.  There are five states in the United States that are the major quarter horse racing states.  Three of those states currently have purses that are supplemented with slot machines winnings and those are New Mexico, Louisiana, and Oklahoma.  California and Texas are the only two that don’t.  We are continually struggling to keep our band of horses together.  An owner can take a horse to New Mexico and run it for probably $3- or $4,000 per race more than they can get it in California.  It’s very difficult to continue in business when your home grown product is going to another state because the cost of doing business there is less and they can make more money in the purses that are paid there.

We take a look at the purses that are paid at Sunland Park in New Mexico, near El Paso, and it will indicate handle $1,500, slot machine supplement, $4,000.  So the money that’s coming from the slot machines is like three times what ordinarily would be paid from just the handle.  And we can’t stay in business forever with that.  We need to get some….since we can’t have slot machines, and I’ll tell you, nobody in the horseracing world is talking about doing another Prop 68, but we need….if we’re not going to have the opportunity to have it tomorrow and to advance with other forms of gaming, we need to have some help from the money that the State is going be getting, to offset what the competition is doing other places in the country.

Thank you.

DAVE HELMSIN:  Mr. Chairman, Members, Dave Helmsin, and on behalf of the thoroughbred owners of California, I won’t repeat the details you’ve heard here, but we’re in the same position as the other racing interests.  Purses drive horseracing, and non-competitive purses don’t draw you the horses you need for wagering.  The spiral is downward.  We’re collateral damage in these compacts.  We are not opposed to the compacts, but we don’t believe that the conversation on compacts is complete without addressing the factor and the impact that these will have on horseracing in California. 
I appreciate that we’ve been discussed a little bit here.  None of the solutions that have been discussed seem right to us.  We’re particularly concerned about exclusivity and the definition of gaming activities.  We could propose things that aren’t Class-3 games to get out our own product and to modernize it; bring it up to the 21st Century, and under this exclusivity, we’d be precluded from doing that.

It’s impossible for us to believe that we want to see the horseracing industry go away, particularly as a result of these compacts.  So we appreciate your diligence on working through some mitigation, some other form of recognition.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.

LINDA MUIR:  Mr. Chairman and Members, Linda Muir, representing Santa Anita Racetrack in Southern California, Golden Gate Fields in Northern California.  And I think it’s clear that there is a significant and specific impact on racing that is caused by the expansion of tribal gaming.  We are basically in the same business, but we cannot do any of the things that they are doing, and we cannot compete across the country, so we are hammered really in two different ways.

Just a couple of specifics from the attorney general’s report:  In 2004, there were 23 racinos in other states that have given help to their racing industry by authorizing racinos.  Their gross revenue was something like $3 billion.  That was a 30 percent increase over the year before.  New York has authorized racinos; one will have 5,500 machines, another will have 4,500, and they are looking at eight more.  We are just behind the 8-ball in every respect, and we are unique in the way in which tribal gaming affects us, and we are not able to respond.  So help from the State, if the State wants to help the tribes and sign these compacts and gain the revenue that is absolutely appropriate, but there needs to be some help for an industry that’s been in this State and contributing to this State since 1930.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

ANTHONY GONSALVES:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee, Anthony Gonsalves representing Oak Tree Racing Association, the L.A. County Fair, Fairplex, and the Del Mar Thoroughbred Club.  I want to point out that all three of my clients are in the horseracing business because they love it.  They’re not-for-profit.  And they put all their money back into horseracing.  As a matter of fact, Del Mar, one of our partners, has the State of California as our landlord.  
We are very concerned.  We have beautiful facilities to run our meets at, but our horses are leaving the state.  And if something isn’t done, Del Mar may survive longer than some of the other tracks, but when those tracks go down, the horses leave the state and they’re not going to come back.  And Del Mar’s meet so far is down five percent.  And so we are feeling the impact across the board for horseracing.  

I’m pleased that two-thirds of the members of the Assembly and two-thirds of the members of the Senate signed a letter asking for the Governor to consider horseracing when they’re talking about negotiating for tribal compacts.  We need some help from the State if we’re going to keep this industry that has a long history, here in the State of California.


And we want to thank the Chair and the Members of the committee for their kind comments and support of horseracing.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Soto.


SENATOR SOTO:  You know, I have to say something because if horseracing leaves Pomona we will lose…and that’s my hometown and I don’t want to see anything happen to make us lose revenue….we lose enough as it is, we will lose almost, for each race, $250,000, and we only have about, what, 16 days of racing.


MR. GONSALVES:  That’s correct, Senator.


SENATOR SOTO:  And can you imagine a city as poor as Pomona is, to lose what little bit we get, and I’m really concerned about horses leaving, at least in my city, leaving Pomona and maybe even leaving California.  So if there’s anything that we can do to strengthen this situation, let’s try to do it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Vincent.


SENATOR VINCENT:  I just want to say this, so you can understand how this works.  Let’s say you’re in California here and you’ve got a horse; you can run the horse in California for $1,000; you can run him in Iowa for $5,000; you can run him in Florida for $5,000 you can run him in states where they have….that’s why they’re leaving California.  You can’t even bet an exotic bet in races anymore because we’ve got such small fields.  What can you do with a 5-horse field?  You can’t even pay a Trifecta.  You can’t do it.  And consequently, as they reduce their purses, they also reduce the number of horses we have here, they reduce the number of races we have here, and consequently, the attendance is gone.

SENATOR SOTO:  It reduces the revenue.


SENATOR VINCENT:  We do it all the time.  That’s what happens.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  


BOB FOX:  Mr. Chairman, Bob Fox, on behalf of the California Thoroughbred Breeders and the California Thoroughbred Trainers.  And I think the other speakers have covered most of the points.  The one point I want to make is that several of them have talked about the loss of horses; that is, horses going to other states to race.  What’s happening now is we’re losing breeders.  
Farms in California are closing down.  They’re moving to other states where they don’t have to pay the workers’ comp costs, and they don’t have to pay some of the other exorbitant costs as they see it.  And what that’s done is it’s further exacerbated the problem with smaller fields which therefore causes the spiral of less wagering.  So, on behalf of the farmers, the agricultural component of thoroughbred racing, we also ask for your help on this issue.


LOUIE BROWN:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee, Louie Brown on behalf of the California Authority of Racing Fairs and Western Fairs Association.  Members of the committee, we are the reason horseracing was authorized in the State of California.  It was to support the fair network throughout the State of California.  Our revenue that supports your local fairs throughout California comes from horseracing.  When horseracing suffers, fairs suffer.  It brings the horseracing to people that don’t live in L.A. or the Greater Bay Area.  We have horseracing in Ferndale, in Stockton, in Fresno.  Those are all meets that are operated on fairs, and those are all meets that operate without the support of the General Fund; all rely on the success of horseracing. 


And so all we’re asking for in this consideration is, as tribal gaming continues to grow and succeed, and we see no reason why it shouldn’t, that there be some additional consideration for the other rural elements of horseracing that reach out to the rural and urban constituents that give more people an opportunity to see this side of agriculture and that we receive some of the consideration that the State is going to benefit from.  


And with me today, Mr. Chairman, is the president of the Western Fairs Association, which represents all fairs within the State of California, to give you just a little bit more background on the importance of racing to the California fair network.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And we’re doing this, but we’re talking about a compact tonight.


STEVE CHAMBERS:  I understand, but we realized also, 
Mr. Chairman and Members, and thank you for spending a long time on a complicated issue, that one of your goals here tonight is to get some kind of a more global perspective than just the compact itself.  And just to make it a little more confusing, I just want to remind you of what many of you know, especially Senator Denham, who is chair of the Joint Fairs Committee, I was reading the report that just came out from California’s Department of Food and Agriculture, California’s 78 fairs, including 76 fair facilities which generate over 30,000 jobs and have a huge social and cultural and economic impact on the State of California, rely solely, in terms of state support, on revenue generated by horseracing.  So it’s kind of like Mr. Lang started the conversation a few minutes ago with the 54,000 jobs that directly relate to racing, if racing goes away, fair funding goes away.  

The report that Senator Denham’s office received last week from the Department of Food and Agriculture shows that just 10 years ago over $100 million was being generated by horseracing for the State of California of which about $30 million went to fairs.  Now, as of the last year, only $44 million was generated—a tremendous drop in the amount of money coming into the State, and now it’s starting to erode the amount of money that’s available for California’s fairs.  Don’t want to make it more complicated, but we’re interested in your perspective.  California State Fair is open for another hour and 15 minutes, and I hope you all find the time to get out there.

SENATOR ROMERO:  With the loss of this money from fairs, does that first impact counties, local government?

MR. CHAMBERS:  Well, first of all, we’re very pleased.  Since 1993 when we built the partnership with horseracing that legalized not horseracing but betting on horseracing, Fair Network in California has not received any General Fund or local taxpayer support.  One hundred percent of what support we do get comes from horseracing license fees.
Now, admittedly, we generate our own revenue.  People pay to get into the fair.  They eat corndogs; they ride rides; they have fun.  And as Louie mentioned, at quite a few of the fairs they bet on horse races.  But still, that money is especially essential to the more rural fairs.  The L.A. County Fair will go on, but the Amador County Fair and the Madera District Fair, and the Monterey County Fair, and the Humboldt County Fair, will not absent…

SENATOR ROMERO:  (inaudible….off mic)


MR. CHAMBERS:  Very well.  He’s got a couple, and he’s actually got quite a few in his district.  Yeah, the big Fresno Fair which helps us not confuse it with the small Fresno Fair.


Anyway, thank you.  We really appreciate your time.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s the end of the…


SENATOR VINCENT:  I’m sorry.  Just one other thing.  Most people don’t know this:  You know, we’re an agricultural state, 
Mr. Denham—big time.  We’re the biggest agricultural state.  Do you know what a bale of hay costs out here?  It costs about $10.  You know what it costs in Iowa?  Half of that.  And at Prairie Meadows, they got….okay, that’s what they got—$10/$5, there’s the difference.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator Vincent.  That’s why you’re a member of the AG Committee and I’m not.  And I come from a rural district.


There is time for public comment, and what I’d like to do is organize this in the following way if there are not a lot of it.  Those who are in opposition to the compact may come up.  Those who don’t really have an opinion or have some neutral, and then after that let’s have supporters end this and we’ll go from there.


Senator Polanco, thank you for joining us.


And we’re going to try to limit this, if we could.  We’ve had a lot of public testimony on the record, a schedule of witnesses, so let’s try to keep this somewhat brief.


SENATOR RICHARD POLANCO:  Mr. Chairman, and Members, thank you very much for the opportunity to address you.  I’m here today representing the Gabrielino Tribe.  It is the only indigenous tribe in L.A. County.  We are here not to oppose the compact.  We are here to oppose the exclusion language that exists in the compact.  I’d like to ask that we go in the order of presentation first by Jonathan Stein, who is the attorney, followed by the chairwoman of the Gabrielino Tribe, and then by the vice-chair.  And then I would like to just do a summation, if that’s the will of the committee.

JONATHAN STEIN:  Thank you.  I’ll try to be brief but there are a number of points.  First of all, there are some false premises stated early, and from false premises arguments go in directions that are misleading.


It was said that the exclusivity clause used to be something big and statewide and now it’s small and just a core market.  It used to be something very small.  It was statewide, but if you look at the language, the only thing that happened if you violated an exclusivity clause is that they got to stop gaming under their compact.  They’re not going to do that.  Now, there was a modification to that and it said in case the exclusivity clause is changed, if somebody else can conduct gaming, then they will negotiate the following conclusion of negotiations to provide for compensation to the State.  It wouldn’t be a poison pill, as Senator Florez has said, it would be a negotiation, so, from this mild clause came, in 2004, a new concept.  This is the concept that Stephanie said the State negotiated from was an exclusivity clause with core markets.  That concept is currently in litigation.  That concept is currently in litigation.  Why would you model a new compact on a compact that is currently in litigation?  Isn’t the new compact also going to end up in litigation?  

Let me tell you why it would end up in litigation:  Because of the poison pill.  And we’ll get back to exactly how large that is by calculating in very simple terms how L.A. is worth something on the order of 
$161 billion.  Are you guys giving away L.A. County to a Riverside County tribe worth $161 billion in return for $900 million?  Is that fiscally appropriate?


Now, the amendment that they came trumpeting up here saying oh, we have a solution.  Now first of all remember, false premises.  We started by being told we cannot amend this compact.  It’s up or it’s down.  They go away for two hours behind closed doors and come back with an amendment—hmm, very different from what we were told.  Second, what was that amendment?


The amendment said that what they got rid of was, even if you had a constitutional amendment it still would not be effective in Los Angeles and San Diego County.  What they got rid of, which was language agreed to by the Governor’s negotiator, agreed to by the Agua Caliente negotiator, which said, even if you have a constitutional amendment you still cannot have gaming machines in Los Angeles and San Diego County.  No wonder they got rid of it.  The chutzpah should have warned you that this is a problem clause.


Number three:  What is a core market?  A core market is where you are.  In Riverside County and San Bernardino County, which is truly the core market of Agua Caliente and the other Riverside County casinos, that core market, has 3.8 million people—more than half of the states in the union—3.8 million people.  That’s the core market.  They claim, however, L.A. and San Diego is in that core market.  There are cities in L.A., including Malibu and Westlake Village, that are 140 miles from Palm Springs.  How is that a core market—140 miles away?


Now, let’s talk about the L.A. market, and I’ll just give figures not from me, because I don’t know this stuff, how about from Bear Stearns, how about from Lehman Brothers?  How about from JPMorgan Securities which was going to handle the State’s bond issue on the ______ compacts that are now in litigation?  Let me give you their figures.


They say that 5,000 slot machines in L.A. County, which is what this R-Tribe has proposed, we would give, by the way, $165 million to the State, we would, by the way, have 10,000 unionized jobs that we’d be delighted that they organized on the same basis as these highly successful Las Vegas casinos, which are totally unionized top to bottom and have grown consistently for 30 years, yielding revenues that have floated the entire state of Nevada and its infrastructure because of unionized jobs that create a family atmosphere at casinos.  


Now, how big is L.A. County?  It has room for 35,000 slot machines.  Let’s talk about 5,000 alone.  Five thousand slot machines yield a billion a year to start.  Once your marketing program kicks in, it goes to a $1.5 billion.  Once again, this is Lehman Brothers, Bear Stearns, Merrill Lynch, that handles most of the bond issues for Agua Caliente.  These are their figures—a billion dollars to start from 5,000 slot machines.  L.A. County has capacity for 35,000 slot machines, another widely agreed upon figure—35,000 slot machines.  Well if 5,000 yields you a billion, 35,000 yields you seven times that, which is 
$7 billion.  You take that over 23 years and you get $161 billion.  
Now our tribe is willing to give 20 percent of our revenues so let’s use that figure—20 percent of $161 billion means that L.A. County’s worth to the State of California, how much?  $32 billion.  And you guys are being asked to give it away.  You’re honorable senators.  You’re doing the right thing by trying to get this information to the light of day.  You’re being asked to give that $32 billion in potential state revenue away for $900 million.  And you’re being asked to do it in the dark of night.  It’s dark outside if you’ve noticed….behind closed doors, because that’s where they amended some language here, and being told to rush it through when, in fact, Pomona can suffer; horse tracks can suffer; labor can suffer.  What is the big hurry after five years of being told by these very same tribes, we’re going to sit on our rights to the year 2020?  

SENATOR BATTIN:  Mr. Chairman, this is about the Agua Compact.  This is not about the Gabrielinos proposal to buy Hollywood Park.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why don’t we narrow it to the impact.


SENATOR BATTIN:  I mean, you’re not even a federally recognized tribe.  You don’t have a compact.  This is a fantasy here.


MR. STEIN:  Well, thank you, Senator Battin, but two retired Supreme Court Justices have opined, and their letters are on our website, they’ve been given to many people, including your office, showing Armand Arabian and Cruz Reynoso that we have the right to game.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So let’s…


MR. STEIN:  So let’s go on.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Your issue is that the…


MR. STEIN:  Is the size of the poison pill.  How big is it?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Exclusivity.


MR. STEIN:  The exclusivity.  How big is…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I just want to make sure.  Senator Battin says we’re focused on the compact.


MR. STEIN:  How big is that poison pill?  Well, first of all, let’s look at it:  $23 million a year, add about $10 million a year for the last 3,000 slot machines being reduced by 2.5 percent—that’s $33 million a year that the State is losing out.  If you had five similar compacts, if you had five similar compacts, it’s $165 million a year that is being lost through the poison pill.  And not only that, that’s just year in and year out.  Before that starts, because the poison pill is based on simple authorization by the State, not actual gaming, but simple legal authorization of gaming by the State, you have a three-year lag between authorization and when the gaming starts.  You’ve got to go through environmental approvals; you’ve got to build the casino; and then you begin operations after that.  During that three-year lag, you’re in the hole for $495 million.  And these figures are all going to be proven out.  Discussion is going to bring this all out, if not before the compacts are approved if they’re rushed through, then after them.  How is that going to look—$495 million poison pill?  And then after that, $165 million a year, is that wise fiscal policy?

Finally, what happens if there’s no exclusivity clause?  What happens if there’s no exclusivity clause?  Well, first of all, the 5,000 slot machines will go in operation.  First of all, the third casino will get built.  First of all, the consumers will drop money in the casino.  And first of all, the State will get their fees from that.  Then, are these tribes without remedy?  No.  They can oppose our legislation to get our state rights approved.  They can oppose a constitutional amendment to allow horse tracks to have slot machines.  They have the First Amendment’s right to petition the government with whatever meager resources that they have spent on petitioning the government.  So what happens is nothing.  Everything happens the same without the exclusivity clause as with it.  So why do they want it?


They want it because they want L.A. County.  They want, this Riverside County tribe wants to possess rights over L.A. County.  They want to rule L.A. County.  You can imagine that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let’s move on.


VIRGINIA CARMELO:  Virginia Carmelo, Chairperson, Gabrielino-Tongva Nation of the Los Angeles Basin.  And yes, Mr. Battin, we are not federally recognized.  We are recognized by the State of California and we recognize ourselves.  Ethnographers recognize our tribal and ancestral territory to be all of the Los Angeles Basin, including the four-channel islands.  This is also backed by linguists and also by 3,000 archaeological sites.  So, our presence is well documented.


While we wish the Agua Caliente Band continued success, we do oppose the exclusivity clause.  Just as they went out and opposed another tribe’s proposal to start up a casino in Barstow, we do the same thing.  The voters of California made it clear that Indians should be able to gamble on their own tribal lands, and this is a question of sovereignty.  Our tribal land is the Los Angeles Basin and we’re holding claim to that.  We are the caretakers of that land.  And Agua Caliente Band and any other band of any other tribe, should gamble on their own lands.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MARTIN ALCALA:  Martin Alcala, Vice-Chair, Gabrielino Tribal Council.  Archaeologists tell us that we’ve been in the Los Angeles Basin…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Time for the compact…


MR. ALCALA:  For at least 14,000 years, Senator Battin.  Also, we’re not a fantasy.  We are for real.  We look upon this as a direct infringement upon our sovereign rights as a nation.  We do not see any other Native American tribes going out of their traditional lands to gain exclusivity contracts.  The L.A. Basin belongs to the Gabrielino-Tongva Nation, not to the Agua Caliente.  And the Chairperson should be ashamed of trying to usurp our sovereignty.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


SENATOR POLANCO:  Mr. Chairman, Members, if I may close.  The people have spoken in Proposition 68.  In Proposition 68 it was very, very clear that the gaming devices would not be in the card clubs and/or the racetracks.  Before I go on, the people in that initiative did not have exclusivity clause.  Prop 5, Members, when I was here, you all know my history here as it relates to the Native Americans, Prop 5 did not have exclusivity clause.  Prop 1A did not have exclusivity clause.  The exclusivity clause is unfair; it’s not just; especially to a tribe that has well over 3,000 archaeological sites in L.A. County, over 400 publishing’s at LMU, that has registered over 1,800 members.  The exclusivity clause does not/should not be there.  L.A. County should not become the possession, should not become the possession, of a Riverside tribe whomever it may be.  And so Members, we are asking if you move forward with this particular compact that just as they negotiated very quickly, they negotiate the exclusivity…three words….L.A. County be removed from these particular compacts.  


Thank you for your time. 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Mr. Pane.


JOSH PANE:  Mr. Chairman, Members, Josh Pane, on behalf of the Morongo Band of Mission Indians.  The Morongo tribal government has heard a lot tonight and they’re concerned about this issue that somehow, and I think it was clarified, but somehow if the racetracks got some type of device that that wouldn’t be a breach in exclusivity.  
We stand on the side of the Governor in that we oppose Proposition 68, many of you did, as well, and the people spoke, 82 percent, against Proposition 68 to allow tracks to have slot machines.  So we want to make sure that there is, when it comes to this exclusivity clause, that there’s no breach, because perhaps the racetracks get some type of video device that may not be a slot machine, or someone interprets it that way.  I think that’s what we’re very concerned about.  And I don’t know if we got a clear answer tonight.  I don’t think the Administration was suggesting that, but we wanted to make sure that you heard our concern.  Because any type of device at a racetrack would be breaking the faith with the voters—82 percent or so who opposed the racetracks and the card rooms—16 different sites around the state.  So when it comes to that exclusivity clause we would urge you to look at that.  
And we appreciate all the time you’ve taken tonight and your patience, so thank you.

SENATOR VINCENT:  Mr. Pane, let’s be straight about what you just said.  You said what happened the last time you went to the polls and you indicated about the racetracks.  What you really want to tell it like it is—there was other casinos involved in that, not just racetracks.


MR. PANE:  I did say card clubs, as well.


SENATOR VINCENT:  No, you did not say that.


MR. PANE:  I said 16 racetracks and card rooms, Senator.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Okay.


MR. PANE:  I said 16 locations.


SENATOR VINCENT:  Well, what I’m saying is, what I’m talking about is a separate thing from horseracing from the proliferation of gambling throughout the state.  I never said that, but that’s what you’re implying.  That’s the reason I think it didn’t pass in the first place.  If we’d narrowed it to racetracks, I think we would have had a shot at it.  But this thing is just starting.  You know, let’s face it.  


Do you know what?  There’s a lot of people just kissing the Indians you-know-what, and I remember you were out hanging them and shooting them.  If they get broke, nobody is going to go with them.  It’s all about money.  That’s what all this stuff is about.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Alright, let’s keep this….Mr. Pane, before you leave, I just want to understand your testimony, so for a moment.  What is your thought on the amendment that was brought up tonight?  Your thought on it.


MR. PANE:  Which amendment, sir?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The amendment that was brought up by the Administration to solve exclusivity?


MR. PANE:  It sounds like that goes to the issue where I think the Governor really is, and that is, they don’t want to breach exclusivity.  I think, I haven’t read it, but it sounded like that second or third or fourth time they were answering, I think they finally got it.  I think that’s always been the Governor’s intent, at least that’s what we understand to be.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I hope so.


MR. PANE:  I hope so too.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  


PETER ENGSTROM:  Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee, thank you for your patience and your energy.  My name is Peter Engstrom.  I represent the Big Lagoon Rancheria.  We support the Agua Caliente Compact Amendment because we support the sovereign right of Indian nations to negotiate compacts with the sovereign state of California under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act.


The only two points I would make are these:  Number one, as you remember from our hearing here in March, there was opposition expressed to the Big Lagoon Compact on the grounds that it would set the bar too high for other tribes.  That demonstrably is not the case.  The provisions in the Agua Caliente Compact do not go as far as those in the Big Lagoon case.  So the concerns about the adverse precedent we were setting for other tribes have proven out at least in the Agua Caliente case to be unfounded.


Number two, there are more to compacts than money, and I would just urge this committee and the entire Legislature to remember the benefits of the Big Lagoon Compact in the form of the protections for the environment.  You’ve heard from numerous state agencies; you’ve heard from a broader environmental community; you’ve heard that there’s a lot at stake; there are good public policy reasons to support the Big Lagoon Compact and the Los Coyotes Compact.  


The last thing I would say, again, urging this committee and the Legislature to be mindful that there are other compacts out there.  They are awaiting ratification.  While the rich are getting richer potentially, let’s not forget about the poor.  We’ve got Agua Caliente, one of the richest tribes in this state, $250 million in net win on machines only, and you’ve got two of the poorest tribes in the state, Big Lagoon and Los Coyotes.  Please, again, I would urge this committee and the Legislature to approach the big Lagoon and the Los Coyotes ratification process with the same level of seriousness and the alacrity that the Agua Caliente process has generated in the past week.


Thank you very much.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  


RAY LARIO:  Mr. Chairman, and Members of the committee, my name is Ray Lario, and I am a tribal member of the Los Coyotes Band of Indians.  And I am here not to oppose the compact amendments for the Agua Caliente Tribe, but I do oppose this committee supporting this compact without also supporting the compacts of the Los Coyotes and Big Lagoon Tribe.


Today I will join with other members of my tribe in a fast for justice.  We are not doing this because our tribe asked us to.  We are fasting to appeal to our brothers and sisters and other California tribes to stop their opposition and let us have the same opportunity to be self-sufficient.  We are fasting to appeal to members of this community.  All we’re asking is for fairness and justice for all tribes in California.  Do not forget about the poor tribes who are only asking for a chance to provide housing, healthcare, and a future for our members and their families.

Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


KEVIN SIVA:  Thank you.  Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee, my name is Kevin Siva.  I am an elected representative for the Los Coyotes Band of Indians.  I’m up here with my membership today just as was stated, to announce a fast to bring to the attention of this committee and to the Legislature, the disparity between the tribes that are wealthy in this state and the tribes that have nothing in this state.  

I would like to just point out a couple of things and then I’ll be done.  And that is this, Chairman Milanovich today came before this committee and he made a statement, he articulated what was best for his people.  And Chairman Milanovich is one of the tribal leaders in this state that does that very well.  His eloquence is just extraordinary.  He said a couple of things that I think really comes to the heart of all tribes in California including, Los Coyotes.  One was that he said that the compact that he had brought before you today for your consideration fell within the guidelines of the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act.  That’s exactly what our compact does.  It follows within the guidelines of the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act.  He also stood before you when you asked him the question why he didn’t just put into the agreements what he would do with regard to labor, other issues in the casino, and he responded in this way.  He said that he intended to do those tings but he didn’t want somebody telling him to do those things.  But at the same time, in opposition to our compact he came before this committee and other committees and stated that Los Coyotes didn’t have the capacity to be able to negotiate on their own behalf; that they were taking advantage of by the State.  Those are patently not true.  We knew exactly what we were doing when we embraced labor.  We knew exactly what we were doing when we recognized the Governor’s requirements.  

So, we don’t oppose you supporting Agua Caliente’s compact.  What we do oppose is the Legislature supporting the amendments to the Agua compact without also supporting the Los Coyotes and Big Lagoon Compacts.

We’ve announced today this fast, and this fast is going to continue on until we get the recognition that we believe is needed, and the support from this Legislature to ratify the Big Lagoon and the Los Coyotes Compact.

Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Any other comments?  Support.

ALAN FERNANDES:  Mr. Chairman, Senators, Alan Fernandes on behalf of Riverside County.  I’ll be very brief since Senator Battin certainly as already conveyed the County’s support.  But I’m here at this late hour, to tell you the rest of that letter which is, although we do support this compact despite the elimination of the SDF, we would encourage the State to insure funding to mitigate local impacts in future and upcoming compacts.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

VICKY MACIAS:  How nice they let me go next because I’m the most nervous.  My name is Vicky Macias.  I’m a tribal administrator and a tribal member of the Cloverdale Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California.  We came here today because we wanted to support the compact, but what we came to make sure everybody understood on this committee….we went out earlier and tried to get everybody one of our letters….We wanted to let everybody make sure they understood one thing—the Cloverdale Rancheria has a big concern.  We have a concern with the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund.  We want to express our serious concern regarding the provisions contained in the compact that has recently been negotiated between the State of California and the Agua Caliente Band.  While we respect and appreciate the fact that this compact is the direct result of negotiations between the State and Agua Caliente, and while we wish Agua Caliente every success possible, we believe that this compact will have a dramatic negative effect upon the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, and the likelihood of each non-compact tribe including but not limited to Cloverdale, receiving the $1.1 million annually from the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund will soon disappear.  

We also know and appreciate that Agua Caliente has agreed to pay $2 million annually in direct payments to the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, nearly four times what Agua has previously paid directly into the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund.  The problem however, is that this new compact eliminates approximately $11.7 million of Agua Caliente’s payment to the Special Distribution Fund.  As you are aware, the Sharing Distribution Fund is in fact the primary funding source for the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund.  Because over 40 percent of all annual Special Distribution Trust Fund payments are used as a backfill.  That’s our concern.

When you take that $2 million and put it into the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, that’s a wonderful thing that Agua is doing for us non-gaming tribes.  But, the backfill is really what supports the $1.1 million that our non-gaming tribes utilize to support our tribes.  We all support our tribes in different ways.  We specifically use ours to help support our administration and social service programs.  We also distribute some of that money to our people.  But when you take away the Special Distribution Fund in this compact that’s before you today, you’re taking away from us.  We will be hurt.  It will have an effect on all non-gaming tribes.  

Cloverdale hopes to someday go into gaming, but we can’t sit down with the Governor to negotiate a compact at this time.  We do not have land.  The 101 Freeway goes through the heart of our former rancheria.  We can’t go home, but, we are going to stay in our aboriginal area.  We use that non-gaming monies to help us to support us, and we ask that you guys….we have a solution that we hope you guys can look at, and we hope that it can be placed within the legislative of what they want to do.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

PATRICIA PLOCHASKA:  My name is Patricia Plochaska.  I’m general counsel to Cloverdale Rancheria.  At this late hour I’ll just be very brief.  I think this issue has been broached.  The concern, specifically, is with the elimination of the Special Distribution Fund.  There is no set pool of money guaranteed, if you will, to backfill and insure that each non-compact tribe is going to continue to receive 
$1.1 million annually.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did you hear Mr. Milanovich say he’s willing to work with, I think, Senator Battin and I for a safety net?

MS. PLOCHASKA:  And that would be wonderful.  I mean, the solution is that somehow there’s money earmarked from the General Fund…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I don’t think you need to worry about that.  I think you have bipartisan support on that.  And I’m not sure this has got to be part of this compact or other compacts.  I just want to make sure, I think that is a set aside issue that Senator Battin has worked tirelessly on, and I think we can hopefully work with you and solve that night.  I would encourage you to work with us to do that.
MS. MACIAS:  And I’m just going to say this, and I heard that and I felt good when he said that.  My problem was when you asked the administration for the Governor’s office where that General Fund money was going, she did not mention the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund backfill.  That’s why I wanted to make sure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. POLCHASKA:  And certainly, if it’s in a separate vehicle, you’ve got to have the Governor’s signature on such legislation.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Got it.  Thank you.

ANNA KIMBER:  Good evening, Chairman, Members of the committee, my name is Anna Kimber.  I’m the tribal attorney for the Ramona Band of Cahuilla Indians.  I’ve also been asked to speak on behalf of Mesa Grande Band of Mission Indians and the Inaja-Cosmit Band of Mission Indians in the San Diego County area.  We want to echo the sentiments of the Cloverdale Rancheria representative, and hope that this committee will be committed to working towards finding a solution to make sure that the Special Distribution Fund backfill of the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund is preserved in some manner through the General Fund Payments made by tribes pursuant to the Agua Caliente Compact, as well as any other compacts.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

PAULA TREAT:  The hour is late.  I’ll be short.  This is Paula Treat, representing Pechanga Band of Luiseno Mission Indians.  To echo their concerns, Pechangas always felt deeply in both the RSTF and the Revenue Sharing Trust backfill also.  And we will support whatever it is to make sure that that gap’s filled.  In addition to that, Pechanga is in support of Agua Caliente and urge your support.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

PHIL ISENBERG:  Chair, Members, Phil Isenberg on behalf of Sycuan.  The letter arrived, I think, yesterday from the tribal chair, Danny Tucker.  He was here.  He had to leave to catch a plane.  We’re in support of the compact.  We urge your consideration of it.  

Just one note, a lot of the discussion that goes on on lesser terms is because we finally started, we think, to get to a point where the Administration is dealing with tribes individually, something that didn’t happen for a number of times.  And so, you will see variations of a whole bunch of things which may not clarify these kinds of hearings, but illustrates the fact that the process is more and more in compliance with federal law—very important.  And secondly, recognizes differences between tribes rather than having a one-size fit all compact.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Exactly.  Thank you, Mr. Isenberg.  I appreciate it.  

Chairman Milanovich, Ms. Garcia, any closing comments?

ASSEMBLYMEMBER GARCIA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  First let me thank you for your indulgence tonight.  It is a late hour.  But I do want to briefly touch on a couple of issues that were raised by some of the speakers.

First of all, I would ask the committee to please, let’s just focus on the Agua Caliente Compact and the conditions before you.  This is a tribe that already has a compact with the State of California and we are reopening up the compact to include some provisions that are not currently in law and to codify some practices that the Tribe voluntarily has agreed to over the years and has practiced.

There was an issue raised by one of the cities in the adjoining area to where the Agua Caliente currently has a casino.  One of the issues that he addressed was them not having local input.  This new amendment provides for an avenue for local government, including the unincorporated areas to have some input in that.  There are certainly stronger provisions for labor, protection of the patrons, and the employees within that establishment which is again something that is absent under the current conditions.

I brought a copy of the 1999 Compact, which is in place, and in Section E, the exclusive rights that Indian tribes in California, including that the tribe will enjoy under this compact create a unique opportunity for the tribes to operate as gaming facilities in an economic environment free of competition from the Class-3 gaming referred to in Section 4.0 of this compact on non Indian gaming lands in California.  

Let me just go to the bottom of that section:  In consideration for the exclusive rights enjoyed by the Tribe and in further consideration for the State’s willingness to enter into this compact, the tribes have agreed to provide to the State, on a sovereign to sovereign basis, a portion of its revenues from gaming devices.  This is in existence in the compacts that we have in place, so the issue of exclusive rights, I think, is clear by the voters intention in Prop 5 and 1A.

In terms of the amendments that we were talking about earlier today, in fact, they are not amendments, it was clarifying language.  As the attorney from Agua Caliente expressed during his own testimony, this was an issue that was raised by IGRA that the Governor’s office has been working on all day.  It was not something that was undertaken just as we started the committee and we’ll rush it around to insert some language.  In fact, the five previous compacts that this Legislature has approved, has the original language that we pulled back to.  The additional language that was struck out was something that was included in this compact that was not in the other five languages.  So, we wanted to make sure that the clarifying language was also consistent with the other five compacts that were in place.  And I believe it was the Governor’s intent to honor the timeframe of Washington, DC and to also honor your time today during this committee, so we wanted to clarify that.

And, by the Chairman’s testimony, and we can go to the payroll records, the facts are the facts.  You know, what the employees are receiving in terms of their benefits and pay, and I think there was also some confusion regarding the Tribal Labor Relations Ordinance that was an agreement that the Tribe agreed to.  Because of the sovereign nature of the Tribe, they don’t fall under the National Labor Relations Act.  However, they agreed to adopt an ordinance that would align itself with that so that the employees of that establishment would have a level of protection equal to and equivalent to.  And as the Chairman expressed, of course they didn’t want it shoved down their throat, but they also wanted to be aware of the needs of the employees and to make sure that those employees that came to work for them felt that they were protected.
So with that, I want to thank you again for the opportunity to present to you today.  And I would be happy to answer any questions.

MR. MILANOVICH:  Mr. Chairman, and Members of the committee, after listening to Bonnie, I don’t have to say anything.  She said it all, once again.  I mean, that’s why we help this woman get reelected every two years.  Thank you, Bonnie.

But by the same token, sir, members of the committee, I’ve listened to the opponents of this ratification of our amendment to the compact that we presently have.  I’ve heard misstatements; I’ve heard miscommunications; I’ve heard out and out lies.  And when one sits in the audience and listens to what is being said as gospel truth, one wonders where were they when this was being talked about; when this was being drafted?  Where were they, those individuals who are now so vehemently opposing these amendments, this amendment to our compact?  

I stand by my words when I say that we take utmost care of our team members.  We have been in those similar shoes.  We have also lived that life of need many, many times over and over again.  We know what it’s like to be discriminated against.  We know what it’s like to have a lack of food, lack of clothes, because our parents, our guardians, could not afford, were not afforded the ability to maintain a quality of life for themselves.  We, and I personally, ensure that each and every one of our team members has that ability to basic necessity of life, of living standards to the best of our ability.  That we will continue to ensure that that’s what’s going to happen.  And again, I’m saying, with all regard to all those individuals out in the audience today, particularly those so-called labor leaders who feel that they are the only ones who know best to tell a sovereign nation, or to tell a group of people, that because you have somebody working under your tutelage, that you are not properly taking care of them, that’s a fabrication.  And I will continue to stress, we know best as to how to handle our labor issues.  We’re not afraid of anybody coming in to talk to them.  If you, yourself, wish to go down and talk to any one of our people, please do it.  I’m not afraid of anybody saying what was suggested here today.  If our own staff asked me, Richard, do you think that we should bring up some of our team members?  I said, if we did that, that would be like we selected individuals who came up to say something nice about us.  No, I’d rather it happen on happenstance or circumstance where it was not a scripted event.  So much of what was said today was scripted.  We don’t script our people.  If they wish to organize, they have the right to organize, and I stand behind it.
Thank you very much.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Members, any questions before we adjourn?  

Okay.  What we’re going to do is, we’re going to adjourn the informational hearing of the Senate Government Organization Committee.  I expect that before us will be a compact that we will take a vote on.  And as you work out enhancements to the amendments or the enhancements to the compact, and we look forward to getting information.  I would suggest that all the committee members get that as well.  And as I mentioned the schedule earlier, we are still on schedule, so I want to be clear with that.


Senator Soto and then we’re going to adjourn.


SENATOR SOTO:  I just want to encourage, I think, all factions to get together to bring things to the table to try to work out the best agreement for what benefits you and what benefits the people.  And I know you will, because I’ve known you for so long and I know you’ll try to do the right thing.  So I have the most faith and confidences in you, that you will never, never ignore the needs of your people, because I know you well.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s end it at that.  Mr. Chairman, thank you.
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